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CMD, IREL and Director (Marketing) of
the Company receiving FIEO "Export
Excellence Award" for Outstanding
Export Performance in the category of
Two Star Export House 2016-17 from Shri
Nitin Gadkari, Hon'ble Union Minister for
Road Transport & Highway, MSME
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Shri D. Singh, CMD handing over the
Dividend Cheque for FY 2019-20 to
Shri K. N. Vyas, Chairman AEC &
Secretary DAE through Video
Conference.
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CMD with His Excellency Governor of
Odisha, Sh. Ganeshi Lal during

Inaugural Session of CSIR Foundation
Day at lIMT, Bhubaneswar
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amraﬁaqa‘rm / CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

forr grememtent,

foreier o 2019-20 & @ S T 70 o AR A I3 F
AT T 3T Gt BT T T g T IR TH=T 2 | €
T ISR o for wer Uferfaes o TaT €, S T o
e Y R TR S THSR § TR kT o W W g TE T
T g8 F, HIA BT TS T AT IR, A T I8 HY,
Wit Saare, fafee T3 3ref o1 Sered, onfe il e &t |
“gefee” I AT T3 © | AR 89X ‘Ihy’ THSAY
(MoU) T U & aTelt shut 3T ety 1% gfead
TOE AMAESIYE (FIEO), Shuferdel (CAPEXIL), STsedt
(IBC), IWHA TSR (CSR) TSI i, IET A
ThIHer WIS, Tfead et 31w Hiad e Sy et 4
T qREERTT b faeraT oF |12 Ot o1 ShTel FoaTet 3Tt aie
Y IR e © | 3 3TeATe, ITCeer gehTeal ol A1g=q ateh
TARTE & SN e [EHR T TSI o Hri-adT & g
&R, 3Tfe [T T 8T

TS % 1] gU G B T 7 o STkt huet hE ufrsat
o1 IRfer T JE FT H T R ST A T F g oy
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Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on the
occasion of 70"Annual General Meeting of the Company
for the financial year 2019-20. The year has been a historic
one for IREL, with company reaching the four figure mark in
turnover for the first time since inception. In the year gone
by, the Company has received “Highest” achievements in
many areas like Revenue from Operations, Profit Before
Tax, Mineral Production, Production of Mixed Rare Earths,
etc. The performance of the Company is well reflected
with the Company receiving “Excellent” MoU rating for
the second consecutive year in a row and the horde of
awards from Organizations such as Federation of Indian
Export Organization (FIEO), CAPEXIL, IBC, National CSR
Leadership Congress, Institute of Economic Studies, Indian
Chamber of Commerce, etc. In addition, many awards were
won by the Operating Units during Mines Week Celebrations,
for implementation of Rajbhasha, etc.

| am happy to state that your Company has been able to initiate
grounding of many projects which were in the pipeline for
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W off, S R SAEeRT & e AR ©T ST
foraR, T3 37ef Tl aeh GO 37X T3 aref ofiw wreh | 59
TSR b St e o fo wSifear s @ T §
37T 3T 2-3 T o ST URASTIST o1 =Tl T fea S |
TSR o SFATSI & T3 el averan Sifswm ok g #
TTHTY] WIS 1Y TeTer o T &7 T o 39a RO H ¢ |

STYERT YT FRT TR/ AR ohi STEATAHAT o STTER TT
IR TS B 3T §RT 7 T 3K TATET o SR X T 3Tl
o7 foeprq off foram 7o o S ST fo oY A Ut o I

AlthlgAd ﬁ' STIST ST |

ST ST Tl o | ST T GU, THIHT = Ueh 5 9IS ol
YT §, ST 7T SEehTT, TR Hfersaredt 3T fequment
% T 9 T ST B A Hclt ¢ | Sfeeh Tafee wonfia e
FI A i TA R

YIS SENTE 1 EHIT 3T9eh! ST o IRETE i Teh
SR TEY € e 7o WiegeT fom & A § 37t
TSI SohTSaT o STUUTY o1 T SATSTET St SAThTEme i
TG TG H HeE oh & 3T 5 o SfTUeht shuet  ShueT Sttt
& drd Fruifea € & e1fues @ foran § | 39 ofaTraT, Shifae
-19 T YRAT & Y, AU R Mafafedt, Sy Sevaes
T qeTelt ot faeRor, Wk, AfeTesR, e foren ® BT
I FeTIT & feIw darere, Tt ot T, e H ST seme
% AT, ST o BT 371G Td Teh fSHIeR SaRa 3eTs
& & H TS T W T T HRARE Mo & T8 st
Faft gemet &7 off e e T R |

TCHT HI & T8 FRa Ta1 & 70 T R B o 39T |, T
T BT AT Seel” T T THA § | @A Sael ¥ uge
& T8 H, 4 S T FRERX ST H Ft fe9m § ydeh
HHART, Wehelest, HaX, UTeeh, faghar o1 & Are™ & fau
39 T Tga o T o TIfafesy & i S |

ek fereh TRgya

It WRE 3R T H 9% T W), HeTRT % ded Tl § 3R
e T TR ST ST Wi 0T oft ere S | Sieis
TRT 1 (STETATE) T 2020 F IFqh ST 4.9% T FH &
T STTHH AT €, STafch LIS o 7.6% o TIAA HaR
AL

STUTEH o Hepa © TS o T[T, S 91T o Wrasifeh miferenon
T 11 feferem stitent STert o ST o W1l U foremel TsTen i
TTCHTE o1 SITOT ot §, S YR PR T AR St &
T 10% o T 20 ARG HAUS ok O FcdTe i =o
FT 2| AR YR & IR F A aE e T e
e 3T SATHTTUT WA o I W T STeht ¥ o Fref
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years such as capacity expansion of Mineral Separation Plant
of OSCOM, Rare Earth Permanent Magnet Plant and Rare
Earth Theme Park. Agencies to implement these projects are
in place and the projects will be commissioned within the next
2-3 years. New areas of operations such as Rare Earths in
Ambadongar, Gujarat or Atomic Minerals in Odisha and Tamil
Nadu are also in advanced stage of seeing the light of the day.

New products were also developed by your company based
on rigorous efforts put in by the R&D team based on strategic/
market requirement which will add to the product profile of the
Company in the upcoming fiscal.

Continuing with its branding initiatives, the Company has
adopted a new website conveying renewed approach,
redefined commitments, and increased engagement with
stakeholders. The expectations of establishing global footprint
is also on the anvil.

Caring for the community has always been a cornerstone of
your Company’s operations which has helped keeping up
with the aspirations of the local populace around its operating
units through its CSR wing and this year your Company has
spent much more than the stipulations under Companies Act.
Further, with the onset of Covid-19, wide spread activities
such as distribution of essential food items, masks, sanitizers,
tablets to assist students in online education, sanitization
of villages, offices of district administrations in Ganjam,
nearby Industry houses etc were extensively carried out as a
responsible Corporate entity. The Company is also following
the best practices under Corporate Governance.

Having completed 70 years of unstinted service to the
Government, it is time to commemorate “Platinum Jubilee” of
the Company. Many activities will be undertaken, to reach out
to each and every Employee, Stakeholder, Mentor, Customer,
Vendor, etc. for their part of the contribution towards achieving
the 4 figure turnover, in the year prior to the Platinum Jubilee.

Macroeconomic landscape

Urban India and the world at large, continue to fight the
growing menace of the pandemic, simultaneously on the
health and economic front. The International Monetary Fund
(IMF) has projected global output to contract by 4.9 % in 2020,
while OECD’s projections are harsher at 7.6 %.

To fight output contraction, public authorities across the globe
announced a huge fiscal stimulus estimated at USD 11 trillion,
with Indian Government declaring a financial stimulus of Rs. 20
lakh crore, close to 10% of the Indian GDP. With the Hon’ble
Prime Minister’s call for Self Reliant India movement and his
vision on the five pillars of Atmanirbhar Bharat comprising of
Economy, Infrastructure, System, Vibrant Demography and
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Demand, many Industries have undertaken bold reforms to
drive towards self-reliance. IREL on its part is contributing
towards Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan by various strategic and
commercial initiatives.

With India unlocking, the worst seems to be over as high-
frequency indicators show an improvement from the
unprecedented trough the economy had hit in April 2020.

Downside risks to global recovery stem from an over-leverage
in the non-financial sector including external debt financing
risks, simmering trade and geo-political tensions, and
unprecedented COVID-19 induced unemployment losses,
etc.

On the external front, India continued to attract robust foreign
direct investment (FDI). This reflected the unshaken belief of
foreign investors in India’s macro economic fundamentals.

Mining & quarrying sector, despite being exempt from
lockdown, suffered a fall in output. Among mined products,
off-take of coal shrank and production of crude oil and natural
gas declined. However, | am happy to state that IREL has
been able to hold on to its operations, domestic and export
commitments till date.

The future economic recovery of India is crucially linked to how
the COVID-19 infection curve evolves across states of India.
Risks on account of rising COVID-19 cases and intermittent
state lockdowns remain.

Business environment & industry structure

IREL fortunes are closely linked to fortunes of various end of
the chain application sectors like aviation, paints & pigments,
real estate/construction industry, metals, petroleum industry,
electronics, etc. In addition, ups and downs in the MSME
sector which IREL has been nurturing for a long time also
impacts the performance of the company. The world GDP
growth reduced to 2.9% in 2019 with India’s GDP growth rate
also taking a hit and going below 5 % for first time since 2008-
09.

The major titanium bearing mineral, iimenite, has advantage
of bulk domestic buyers being in the vicinity of the Mineral
Units. On the international front, Asia (including China) and
Europe continue to remain important markets. As regards
Rutile, the domestic welding electrode market stayed upbeat
and IREL was able to reap the benefit of this market segment
with sustained sales.

The low demand for Zircon from a large consuming sector
— ceramics was more than made up by refractories and
chemical sector. However, Indian Steel industry which
is major consumer of refractories made from Sillimanite
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struggled during the year. On account of the ongoing turmoail
in petroleum sector, Garnet market showed signs of softening,
further, there was a shift in demand from coarse to fine grade.

The rare earths market remained subdued with prices
gradually reducing during the course of the year.

Outlook:

Major economies will see a loss of the value in their gross
domestic product (GDP) and the eminent scenario of recession
will come into play. India, which the world has witnessed as
one of the fastest growing economies in the world, is set to
see a negative GDP growth during 2020-21 as per RBI's
estimate. The economic fallout depends on factors that
interact in ways that are hard to predict, including the pathway
of the pandemic, the intensity and efficacy of containment
efforts, the extent of supply disruptions, the repercussions of
the dramatic tightening in global financial market conditions,
shifts in spending patterns, behavioural changes (such as
people avoiding shopping malls and public transportation),
confidence effects, and volatile commodity prices.

Many countries are facing a multi-layered crisis comprising
of health shock, domestic economic disruptions, plummeting
external demand, capital flow reversals, and a collapse in
commodity prices. Risks of worse outcome predominated. The
actual impact and the duration for the situation to normalize is
very difficult to gauge at this juncture. However, the same is
likely to be worse than the 2009 Global Financial Crisis and
may follow the footsteps of the Great Depression.

IREL’s Outlook:

The economic damage caused by the COVID-19 pandemic is
largely driven by a fall in demand, meaning that there are no
consumers to purchase the goods and services available in
the global economy. IREL’s products having niche applications
are bound to take a hit in the coming days, as all Governments
will focus on developing the core sectors initially, after which
the demand for the niche will develop.

The pandemic has affected infrastructure activities and
demand for housing, cars, travel, consumer goods and
essentials which are drivers of demand for IREL’s product.

The end of the value chain products of IREL are lifestyle
products whose growth is closely co-related to the growth in
GDP. With GDP growth of most of the world economies being
forecast to be negative for at least a year or so, the near-term
outlook does not look encouraging for IREL.

China seems to be emerging out from the effects of the
Covid-19 pandemic. China has been driving force of demand
for limenite in the recent past. However, the political equations

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20
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faumt, T TR, Wit Seenfiat, 35 e, T weent,
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of China with the advanced economies especially the USA
seem to be at a nadir and may impact the Chinese economy.
In June 2020, the standoff between India and China in Ladakh
has created anti-China sentiments in India and trade between
the two countries would be depending upon Government of
India policies. This and the fact that the demand for end of the
segment products has waned will ultimately decide the market
dynamics for titanium feedstocks.

Zircon market that showed signs of softening is likely to be
impacted further and holding the prices and demand to the
level of 2019-20 would be a difficult task.

The petroleum industry is in doldrums due to drastic drop in
demand resulting from sharp reduction in road and air traffic
as well as economic activities. The unmanageable prices
are resulting in shutdown of rigs. This phenomenon will have
direct bearing on demand for Garnet as petroleum industry is
the major consumer of this product. Even the demand for rare
earths that go in the fuel cracking catalyst will be impacted
negatively with reduced refining activity.

Automobile industry that drives the demand for steel, paints
and magnets which in turn are demand drivers for Sillimanite,
limenite and Rare Earths has plummeted. The EV car projects
expected to boost demand for Rare Earth Magnets are likely
to be put on a backburner as the industry will take some time
to come back on rail.

For IREL, there will be challenges in evacuating the production
as the year progresses as the demand drivers are likely to
remain subdued.

Overall, the outlook is negative for 2020-21 with most
industries, likely to pass through difficult times.

Acknowledgement:

On behalf of your company’s Board of Directors, | place on
record my sincere gratefulness to our valued shareholders for
your continued support, ideas and trust. This motivates us to
excel in all our pursuits and constantly create and add value
for you as well as for the nation. Your company will continue to
play critical role in various flagship programme of Government
of India aimed at Atmanirbhar Bharat. It will be our endeavour
to work relentlessly for sustained growth, expansion and
prosperity of the Company.

| appreciate the unstinted support and valuable guidance
received from the Department of Atomic Energy, Govt.
of India. | also express my sincere thanks to other Central
Government Ministries and Departments, State Governments,
all employees, Trade Unions, Auditors, Consumers, Suppliers
and all other stakeholders for their continuous co-operation
and support.
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IUARRTSA, MYfihaiell 3R o §oft fedemant & R
TEAT ST TelT & o off geagde ¥=raTE S e &
37 H, & 7% WHRT A1 e § o & T ot o shwaat
TRT 3o T GHTI TaTEr 3T el Hed o ol §9d &1
TR | 3T g faram © foF TRt s, Wek - ST arraTor
% WY, 39 hicd 99 | o, Aferer TAw stk e o fag
TR

SEERIIG)

&g e
AP UF yay feyreh

I §as
femien: 21 faawR 2020.

To conclude, | would like to acknowledge that all these have
been possible due to the relentless and dedicated efforts and
hard work by the employees of the Company. | firmly believe
that your Company, with a team-centered environment, is
poised for more exhilarating performance, even in these
difficult times.

Jai Bharat

D. Singh
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 215t September, 2020
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IREL (India) LimitedW\ grgomduer (feam) fafiee oft Trdiomdt See,
FHSTRE o a9 14 FFET, 2020 HI ST HHd
& W Y “YRA § TETEE WA % SR & fau S
YA T T o T T O R FEET

MU signing Ceremony between IREL (India) Limited &
UKTMP JSC, Kazakhstan for setting up of "JV Company
for Production of Titanium Slag in India" through Video
Conference on October 14, 2020

Memorandum ot Understanding

UKTMP JS5C, KAZAKHSTAN

ot s g, duws), mEemETe, 4t wy. &t @,
TRIMSTTe (TIUH TS UH), SeTRetel, 4t AfaT ereiasiey,
ThTE T |ierel (37T U TH), SITE, ST, SiT. HeHer
TG, ey, SuHeRud, o T, WeNH, qwnied
TR (qarient) 3T o7 aftss SffuerTiiar st Sufefa
H ISR 3TN SR -SITHSTUSA & el THATL
T AT T T GHARIE |

MoU signing Ceremony between IREL and DRDO-DMRL
in the presence of Shri D. Singh, CMD, IREL, Shri S.V.
Kamat, DG (NS & M), DRDO, Shri Mervin Alexander,
the then JS (I & M), DAE, Dr. G. Madhusudan Reddy,

Director, DMRL, Shri A.K. Mohapatra, the then Director
(Technical) and other senior officials.

VIOUR s s wmtt s 9t o 5 e swgher o
SUPFLY OF (MoU) & f=ITes & R ot T3 o &we, Weresen
RMANE (TTTY U ), SIAXSIST T Mokt TEAiaeeT yech
% foTg =k WiTd 5T ot <= fqe, dumeh

Shri D. Singh, CMD handing over the cheque towards
technology transfer fees to Shri S.V. Kamat, DG (NS &
M), DRDO during execution of MoU for supply of Rare
Earth Permanent Magnet.

ST, 9. . GRd, Yo, ifa 3TN, YR GHR Hi
et 7 Sf. WEhT Fasit, 7@ gfea, Sidls, 51T TeEdt
FHICARE ToHE T Fefafere] fors 31ame 2020

ICC Corporate Governance & Sustainability Vision
Award 2020 by Dr. Bhaskar Chatterjee former Secretary,
DPE in presence of Dr. V. K. Saraswat, Member of NITI
Aayog, Govt of India.
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gt <o fog, dumel, Aifsdr Siehg & 7w ¥
"Ti02 T wieweie” W afem, s+t # wfafafeat
T HaITed FId g

Shri D. Singh, CMD addressing Delegates at

Berlin, Germany on "TiO2 Pigment Feedstock"
through Video Conference

T & 9T ST, 3TSTT FHAR Hgdt Sl TaehT
H HIEfT STRY & IR | SR < g« At & e,
e, |

Shri D. Singh, CMD explaining the Mining Operations
to Dr. Ajit Kumar Mohanty, Director, BARC at OSCOM

7. 3T(d FAR Aedl, Feyen, siwsm, ffgwm o
Hoaet, TRARICA ! IuATq § Wgda e e
(PFT) 3T ITHTEA FTd §T

Dr. Ajit Kumar Mohanty, Director, BARC Inaugurating

the Private Freight Terminal (PFT) in presence of CMD,
IREL at OSCOM

St A= g, WAE!, N MR & 3 IS
Ayl =1 Iureafa ® 9 fost & wenfead g=mes &1
ITHTTT T GU ST, TSI HAR A, Fvmeh, dieemat

Dr. Ajit Kumar Mohanty, Director, BARC inaugurating
automated operation of weigh bridge in the presence of
Shri D. Singh, CMD and other senior officials of IREL.
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SRS i ShTSAT | ATSAT I (6T o ATeH §
AT It T T I

Celebration of Platinum Jubilee Year in IREL Units
through Video Conferencing

IREL (India) Limited

18 3T, 2020 I T ol a8 FARE
% ITHET TF o E T ISafad w g
TS, SIS vl o T

CMD, IREL with Directors Lighting the Lamp
during Inaugural Session of Platinum Jubilee
Year Celebration on August 18, 2020

TITAe, SMESTRET 18 3T, 2020 T T el
I GURTE % ISHEA TF & T SHARe 3 T &
FHHAT T AT AT o AT T Fafa wid

‘U

CMD, IREL addressing to the Corporate and Unit
Employees during Inaugural Session of Platinum
Jubilee Year Celebration on August 18, 2020 through
Video Conferencing

LRI 1 25 T, 2020 1 AEAT H13hg o ST
“ TS TRRUSA b1 I - 28 Tedl I Fe T T afeHT
ST foram

IREL conducted a webinar on “Genesis of IREL- Story
of 28 Elements” on August 25, 2020 through Video
Conference
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Platinum Jubilee

A Webinar
on
Strategic Metals:

Challenges, Opportunities

and Initiatives

By Dr. Indranil Chattoraj
Director, NML

freeTenr =1 Sufefq & Humet T Sfgar HEET ok
3T A% o o WA ¥ T8 a1ed g e H
TR T FSIfef=m g giaen 1 Ieume 5|

CMD in presence of Directors, Inaugurated the Nuclear
Grade Gadolinium Nitrate Facility in RED unit through
Video Conferencing and Internet of Things.

3rd Session of
Webinar Series of
Platinum Jubilee
Year Celebration

Sifear Hi2hg o AW ¥ 25 fadeX 2020 & 79 &
TSI T fea o SO Gera tferfer o a7
A <o e, S, sEemEta |

CMD IREL, as Guest Of Honour, during the 79th CSIR

Foundation day on 25 September 2020 through Video
Conference

I 1 difeadr HhT & AW ¥ “Wfvw
oo A, SR IR Ted’ W T difedr
FHIhH ST o1 |

IREL conducted a Webinar on "Strategic Metals:

Challenges, Opportunities and Initiatives" through
Video Conference.

STESTRETS  SfeAT 13T o AT § TS 01 9 0F
A FShHoT” 0 e STl hishg SIS |

IREL conducted a Webinar on "Complete Valuable
Extraction from Fly Ash" through Video Conference

M BAT CELENRATION

1 — - ]

September 2020
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foer o IATeatt Ma

f 3= fie, et
HIETaeh GG hT SSHTEA |
Shri D. Singh, CMD Inaugurated Community Hall in Arjyapalli
Village at OSCOM.

HITWIR ek Tafaferdi / Activities under CSR

IREL (India) Limited

¥ L e

IR o HITHITT IYHAT o AT Tah H At
AT H e TRUAT 3T, STETCH ST GIorelT ohs T Iome |
Inauguration of Facilitation Centre by Smt. Sharanya Ari, IAS
at RDO Office at MK under CSR initiatives of IREL

HIUH3TR IYHAT o T Hleger ey e =1 e

Mobile Health Camp organized under CSR initiatives

4 APINYER
. RESPON
o (@8

)]

¢ Kanamana Panchayat Sanitised

2 '_'.I|
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FITS-19 TEHRT & IR
BRI (Sanitization)

Sanitization during COVID-19
pandemic
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AEATETA  RT hifge-19  HEm™R
F I HUGAR IUHHT F Al
T3 ET0T

Sanitization by IREL during COVID-19
pandemic under its CSR initiatives

LTS GRT T Fenfedi i SffaTgsi o faawor

Distribution of sanitizers by IREL to local inhabitants

T T 26T ferecoT

Distribution of school bags
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faeyTeR! &t ftde / DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Yar
HEEOT
IR (Efean) fafids
3 fSwTeRt ST 31 A, 2020 ! T foi a¥ & o
ot faawoll & WeeaN iR THfRd WY % WY 9y
3TMYehT SHUHT o SR TF F=TeH! T 70 o afies Rdrd e
T g BT BT T8T § SR o & ST ot g1 st ol TS gfeg
T g e § guit &7 W e |
1.0 To<ie aftumm
v fargiwand
1.1 9% 2019-20 o AT HUT & T=TCHI U6 HEEET i
TE A qor e 9 ¥ gt ga frefatad
Wﬁwﬁ"@%:

(F. 1@ #)
. ferun KEERIE Tifera
%. 2019-20/2018-19|2019-20{2018-19
1. [5d TS 109523  81663| 109523 81663
2. |[TTE T UREIE T | 44440| 23912| 44439| 23908
G 7 wmy/(@F), T
3aTE 7S
3. TN TR W 4146|  3850| 4146 3850
TR 2
4. |SiTE/(ERT0): 3YvETE HE 0 0 0 0
5. [ F @ /(&) 40294| 20062 40293 20058
6. [STT: T T 11118|  8310] 11119] 8309
7. |y /@) | 29176) 11752 29174| 11749
8. [3re/ (W) : 37 (810)|  (308)]  (810)]  (308)
M 3T
9. |t ST I 28366| 11444 28364 11441
10. |feceft 731 3l 53742 40137| 53742 40137
2.0 faeht wd fauu=

2.1 HATGHM AT H I IR & T H GHT &% e J&
3% Ifera famoe THIfa & 1Y, STESREUS ohaR
TR ¥ & AT I=aH FRER 9a w7 § T8 T@T |
I o 3heTeTd § Teell A &. 1,000 S (F. 10
faferer) o g o or ferar T | o farsht STk Frarfer
T AT 35% 3T 29% i gfg & Ty faent HRER §
32% ' g §E. ToF % oo #, sohRe, TR iR
fSRatT 1 fashl & 39% ot gfg 52 i fafeaimee ok
T 96% T o T

2.2 T I @IS o o Sheremgorer fafafy, frger fag
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To,
The Members,
IREL (India) Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 70"
Annual Report on the business and operations of your
Company along with the standalone and consolidated
summary of financial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2020 and happy to inform about the remarkable
performance of the company achieved during the year.

1.0 Financial Results
1.0 Highlights

1.1 The highlights of the operations and performance of
the Company for the year 2019-20 and its comparison
with the previous year have been presented in following

table:
(X / Lakh)
Standalone Consolidated

SI. Particulars 2019-20(2018-19|2019-20|2018-19
No.

Total Revenue 109523| 81663| 109523| 81663
2  |Profit / (loss) before 44440 23912| 44439| 23908

depreciation and

amortization expenses

& exceptional items
3 |Less: Depreciation and 4146| 3850 4146 3850

amortization expenses

4 |ADD/(Less): 0 0 0 0
Exceptional Items

5 |Profit/ (loss) Before 40294 20062 40293| 20058
Tax

6 |Less: Tax Expenses 11118| 8310 11119 8309

7 |Profit / (Loss) for the 29176 11752| 29174 11749
period

8 |ADD/(Less): other (810)] (308)| (810)| (308)
comprehensive Income

9 |Total Comprehensive 28366| 11444 28364| 11441
Income

10 |Foreign Exchange 53742| 40137| 53742| 40137

earnings

2.0 Sales & Marketing

2.1 With pro-active marketing strategy coupled with support
in form of higher production at OSCOM unit, IREL
was able to achieve highest turnover for the second
successive year. Land mark of ¥ 1,000 crores (X 10
billion) was crossed for the first time in the history of
IREL. The sales turnover increased by over 32% year
on year with domestic sales and exports rising by 35%
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2.3

2.4

3.0
3.1

4.0
4.1

4.2

5.0

SEITRET W ST Cewumset ©, fertiem 1 3t 2019
YU TS & 8T i TS | SH o ded e S
3 3r=gen S § et fafare Tttt weifeat § s
TN o WY GoTE €9 Y FHTfad fopg Tu |

SH @S ot 3= faehl WET o HIY-WrY TEEAT 3T
TTEeh! o1 e TEHITTAT TR & SHROT SEIETA g
fovm €9 T THUEURE WS I ST T

¥ & I, LA & UG T 250 TEH!
THTAURE TEehi ohT STTUR o, ST 51 fasht & 40% &
3frer o)

AT o fol gl ((Terdtan)

AT Iee ATSHISH T G HA A TT TG F
o stavger fafame o ueH &1 s FRT 31X
TaYT & AU Terdtal sraterr wenfud faa w g | 2y
SYETE & AN § e TG i HEiehd R
3R foreror werw foma T 7 | Frafi favrer W denfer
ERTHATS o ST & [T FeHTeal bl Fageia
ST T © | HUTATCASh et ST SAGhTN SehTeal Tt &9
Y 3T IR STRT T g | SGe §R-T ©T- 1| 3
T =t STgAfT T A ot faR H Teel SROT ot o
faumT &1 STAfT & Ted SefTer YTooh ST foham T 7 |
T (T 3T G Uz &1 o foIg TataRer we o
T o AT =0T H B | TR ST e Wfend STHe
TSHT & IR e Savasharsil s I % fou
gfenanall 3T STHTTI oht TTT AT R |

EIRIEET

YA T el @ISt AT 4.45 1@ a7 TeT i1 el
forar o T g | e 23 Y% T g < 7 | STafR
AYFH THE T TP ARHAT &I F FAT 92 %
TeTer fora €, 98 T 3T | et Iamed # waa
g g ®, ST Tl fo o oht o & @ 459% 9@ ©
| AT H IATET LRI o SUHRT T Fafera e Tamef
T TRl SN IHUT T &, S HTHISTeh-TSTiiieh
T, TIHIE AT gRT STere, 37fe o gRT Bg Tt ot
& Tt o o fer O

g H THEfte @aE H WR ot fyepdur g9y
(REEP) % GaTer ¥ fuer fam ad ot g # fafga Ter
a1ef FRTES (MRCL) & 3T ® ST 20 % ohi 35
T

LIEIEE

5.1.1 Yo oref UeE T T T TCHN] ol T@T I

3YAfte &t | STANT o feaw g - TRt ges
% IAEA & T fius&d (BARC) IRER, 3ifaqH,
forstT & wenfye forar S|

22

23

24

3.0
3.1

4.0
4.1

4.2

5.0

@

1
El
3

and 29% respectively. In value terms ilmenite, Rutile
& Zircon sales increased by 39% and Sillimanite and
Garnet surged by 96%.

Canalisation activity for Beach Sand Minerals, for which
IREL is the State Trading Enterprise, were done under
the revised SOP from 1st April 2019. Shipments under
the same were effected smoothly with requisite co-
operation from various Government agencies involved
both within the DAE fold and otherwise.

Higher sales were realized despite a faltering business

environment owing to higher sales volumes of both
minerals as well as chemicals and intense customer
engagement strategy adopted by IREL especially the
MSME segment.

During the year, IREL had MSME customer base
of about 250 customers accounting for over 40% of
domestic sales.

License to Operate (LTO)

LTO office has been established for centralized
monitoring & managing the regulatory compliances,
required to achieve and sustain the targeted production
plans. Centralized monitoring and control of statutory
compliances is enabled through database dashboards.
Units are sensitized for complying with the statutory
requirements at regular intervals. Manavalakurichi
and OSCOM units are continuing their operations in a
sustainable manner. OSCOM has deposited the statutory
fees as desired under Stage-| Forest Clearance towards
obtaining the Stage-Il Forest Clearance. Chavara Unit is
in the final stage of receiving the environment clearances
for its mining lease areas. LTO office establishes the
processes & tools for proactive information gathering
and structuring of regulatory requirements.

Production

Mineral Production of the Company stood at 4.45 lakh
tons which indicates growth by about 23 % compared
to last fiscal. While OSCOM unit operated at about 92%
to its licensed capacity, there was substantial growth
in mineral production in MK unit, which grew by about
45% compared to last fiscal. Production in Chavara was
marred by issues pertaining to surface rights, complex
socio-political issues, agitation by locals who were
instigated by groups having vested interests, etc leading
to reduced collection of feed material.

Operations of Rare Earth Extraction Plant (REEP)
in OSCOM Chemical plants witnessed significant
improvement with Mixed Rare Earth Chloride (MRCL)
production increasing by around 20% compared to last
fiscal.

Projects

5.1.1 Rare Earth Permanent Magnet: The plant will be set up

in BARC campus, Achitapuram, Vizag for production of
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TTge L& TAfareri ohi S o fle fesme e geter
Fiafd oiv geem wfafy, dwstREr (BARC) ¥ 1AM 31X
TATSROT STTAT AT T T R |

forga SSifrafr o= &1 get § 3R aeam foxita o
et fommel ¥ SSRfaior seERHe e (U
Hied T WEE W M FT IE F o 3R
ot g T TE R

5.2.1 T3 aref wa fearfram ofiw ureh : oft e T3 oref

3R TS W 1 o g § Hrenffeat T efiT e
3T wfersT o afiTfoores ToET bt T 3K G o
fom et 31X FreTer Sheenfat o fashfad i o 3Red
T 1uTet & TR H X I |

T ot T FEse T &1 ot § 31X ST g
e € T (qenaa JanTemel ST ol Srefiienar bt
M S & fou wSifear ety &t ¢ € | IREtsrT ot
YRTAS T AH o foTu eTavees qige nfafafiat 39 af &b
T e # Y B o fow 8 Te ¥ AR R |

5.3.1 MUK AT AT JuaT fa@r: 77 RS 38

T GTST SAET AT T ST HA o oL 7, ST 59
TRUTHGEET ST i el GieT ScaTe &HAT ST T
100 TSR(k) a7 Hfq ¥ SQIe | T Hie | gRESH
AN FH F U i R #TE 31 shfEiT
fafafiat 2T fSme @ ot 8 % oo 97 STavaes
AT 7 T gt o fo SiEY wieHe T frar T € |

5.4.1 UETeh hUT SMSANSUA- FSehict faatdes (lIL):

T STH SHUAT T TTIAT T H FHE T I @iAsT ST
%! TG & g 1 TE ©, fSer R et & qefe
e BT | SSTTE o [ & 3R HeLTA
TR TR T o 1€ 57 | Feteh & w1 =ion o fom
e 1 3ifoH =R H € 1 AT o fa SeTR AR
T ferm T e |

=11 for ¥ # @ Ug o e o foe stravaes wteR
Tl HO[ET AT ST, T FISTT AR AT, S o
QTS -8 e fer ST |

5.5.1 Uehlehd TSt WUTRH: Go & 59 W 3TH GG1eF

TS o1 ] & o fe e Tieey soed fafids,
Hag 1 fae Saom T ST & ¥ § e foma
T ] | THSTRCH o [ &M o 918, To-3eThd SaaTia,
Hies AfASyM, o fRfaa onfe afed TireaeR o1 faem
et & 3T 39k e Tt WisTe & faw W g
AT T H T |

5.6.1 AT WG YREHT: Fg TRASHT TR T &

ST gRT @ISl T SHTEHEE STAT 3T e o g &
FTE R
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Samarium-Cobalt permanent magnet for use in Atomic
Energy, Defence and Space sectors.

Environment clearance and clearance from Design
Safety Review Committee and Safety Committee, BARC
for carrying out site activities are received. Detailed
engineering has been completed and appointment of
contractor to commence site activities on Engineering
Procurement Construction (EPC) model from the 3¢
quarter of the current fiscal have been taken up.

Rare Earth & Titanium Theme Park: The theme park
will be located in Acharpura, Bhopal with the objective
to demonstrate technologies in the value chain of
Rare Earths & Titanium and develop Entrepreneurs
and skilled workforce to set up and operate the future
commercial plants.

Design of the plant buildings have been completed and
Agencies are in place for taking forward the laboratory
scale technologies developed by BARC to Pilot scale.
Site activities necessary to ground the project are all set
to commence in the 3rd quarter of this year.

Capacity Expansion of OSCOM Plant: The project
is to double the mineral producing capacity of the unit,
which in turn will augment the total mineral producing
capacity of the Company to about 100 k tons per annum
(tpa).

Agency to implement the projectin EPC mode appointed.
Engineering activities and order placement for items
requiring long lead time of procurement completed.

Subsidiary IREL- IDCOL Limited (lIL): The Joint

Venture company has been established to harness the
beach sand mineral deposit in the state which in turn will
widen the footprint of the Company.

Ground work towards declaration of the precise area is
in the final stages at the State after completion of DGPS
survey and preparation of cadastral map. DPR for the
project has been prepared.

Pre-project activities such as obtaining environment
clearance, preparation of mining plan, etc necessary for
execution of the mining lease deed will be taken up in
the current fiscal.

5.5.1 Integrated IT System: Towards implementing enterprise

resource planning on open source platform, M/s. CMS
Computers Limited, Mumbai have been appointed as
system developer & integrator.

After completion of SRS, development of the software
involving user-interface development, field validation,
bug fixing, etc and its testing are in advanced stages of
completion for all the modules.

5.6.1 Ambadongar RE Project: The project has been initiated

to harness the carbonatite deposit explored by AMD in
the state of Gujarat.
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5.7.1

5.8.1

6.0
6.1.1

6.2.1

6.3.1

TR H, AT 1.55 TFTAT STAT ST STANT hIA T T&qTa
®, ST 3 TASHAMD) & @ISt IR & STHR T
TSI ST | TS o1 oo Saerar i faxie
STEETIAT TN i o oIy e Y A e |

fasft T 2fiet (PFT): faee 3ffme TrwT (3
Hied T qHTe TETETe, G, STET 3T T o
% eI WieT SRS TIFET T F1= Hieg TuwT
¥ qee & fog wfafafy & it 7€ 71 S & fa,
e STRfaT ot (TOC) o &7 § H9¢ IR
i fafde (GPL) & 9 Ggiiar fomfed ferar mar g |
fegaR 2019 ¥ gRETeTd fHT U duwdt o feames o
o o9 & WY SMTavae THE fRT T E |
ataeRta ¥ fedfemym wie: 5 fafesm ooy ufa fe7
(MLD) TRfe 99t siar fedfaem woa sifgeh #
ToqTfirel femalm ST TeT § ST sTueTEt g feorentae 3T foe
It SEfiTeRt T ST € | SIS T STTAET
Y ST Y faferet frfor st o1 & o6t R @ T E,
ST T 90% T T BT T & | STSAVIRROT Tl T
forsTeft st STfT e S ot fEwm & Hisger 132 et 3U-
WY % fawr, stiafier fagediertor o o 11 et faga
TR i 3Nfe S 31 i fehy U & |

THITRE SATIATAT:

WA oh AT & ST o HEET HT AR B,
TR o 7T &1 ST e i 3T o | ey
TG % ILVT ¥, LIRSS Thwd &Y ¥ affferrg &
FHRAFART 57t T 3fifeem & TRy 5ot § Wwics
TR bt TTTHT ST TET & | TST GLehTT ot 11 TSI,
T (TAMIN) 3 9T Teh 7 STH ST ST T3 Fleh
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Initially, about 1.55 Ha of the deposit is proposed to be
harnessed, which will be further extended based on the
exploratory results of AMD. Action has been initiated to
establish the technical feasibility and financial viability of
the project.

5.7.1 Private Freight Terminal (PFT): The activity has

been taken up to convert the existing IREL siding to
Brown Field PFT for effective maintenance, operation,
utilization and revenue generation on Built Operate
Transfer (BOT) model. Towards the above, agreement
is executed with M/s. Gopalpur Ports Limited (GPL)
as the terminal operating company (TOC). Necessary
agreements have been put in place with Railways for
execution of the PFT, which became operational from
December 2019.

5.8.1 Desalination Plant at OSCOM: The 5 million litres per

day (MLD) hybrid sea water desalination plant is being
set up at OSCOM based on technology developed and
funded by BARC.

IREL has been given the responsibility of carrying
out civil construction works on behalf of BARC, which
is completed by about 90%. Other activities such as
extension of the existing 132kV sub-station towards
providing power supply to the desalination plant, 11kV
electrical substation work for internal electrification etc
have been taken up.

6.0 Corporate Planning:

6.1.1 New areas of operations: With a view to widen the

footprint of the company, establish new areas of operation
and increase the market share, IREL is actively pursuing
setting up of greenfield operations in Kanyakumari
district of Tamil Nadu and Bramhagiri district of Odisha.
The proposal for harnessing the beach sand mineral
deposits in Tamil Nadu by constituting a Joint Venture
Company with the nominated State Government
Agency, TAMIN, is under active consideration by the
State Government.

6.2.1 Foreign Ventures: As the Country is gearing up towards

e-mobility, green energy, e-office and other niche sectors
there is need to secure Rare Earth mineral resources in
areas beyond the boundaries of the Country. Towards
the above, IREL has been given the mandate to explore
and acquire Rare Earth resources abroad towards which
activities for constitution of a separate entity under the
aegis of the Department have been taken up.

6.3.1 Titanium Slag: Earlier efforts by the Company to set up

titanium slag manufacturing facility based on innovative
build-own-operate (BOO) model with assured supply of
feed stock, infrastructure facilities including land, etc did
not yield anticipated results due to the anxiety on part
of the technology developers to face future competition.
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6.3.2 As part of IREL's commitment towards the cause,
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discussions have been initiated with M/s Ust-
Kamenogorsk Titanium and Magnesium Plant JSC,
Kazakhstan for setting up of Ti Slag plant in India.
Signing of an MoU between the 2 companies is on the
anvil to initiate discussions to further the venture.

Human Resource Management

As one of the strategic pillars and proactive business
partners, Human Resources and Administration (HR
& A) Department is continuously focusing on building
competent human resources aligned to company core
objectives and deliverables. As a part of the above, HR
& A Systems and sub-systems are constantly reviewed
and new initiatives are taken to ensure that its human
resources adds-on to the competitive advantage, the
company has in the national and international markets.

7.1.2 During 2019-20, IREL has formulated broad guidelines

on Engagement of Apprentices, Introduction of Non-
Unionized supervisory cadre, implemented pay revision
of executives as per 3¢ Pay Revision Committee,
Employees Health Wellness Programme, focused
Executive development Programmes, implemented
Reward & Recognition Scheme, Connect and Inspire
Schemes, Employee Participation Schemes, etc.

7.1.3 The manpower strength as on 31.03.2020 was 1222

employees, comprising of 376 Executives and 846
non-executives. As a measure of capacity building
in the executive cadre, the company inducted 15
Management Trainees in the year 2019-20 and for
the first time organized their induction programme and
training programme in partnership with Atomic Mineral
Directorate for Exploration and Research (AMD) at their

THTHHA 3T AYTE0T SHTHehH T TSI foma | Hyderabad facility.
7.2 HUARY SHeaT Tfataterat 7.2 Employees Welfare Activities
7.2.1 ;h ft e [o ;i ] E a; STEITIERT0T # Tl EE‘ % 7.2.1 The Company is continuously engaged in the updation
ek ST SHHAAT 1 el bl G T o R 2T of welfare policies so as to cater to its employees’ needs
FHHATRET o STTHE I g I o AT ST i qara and has been incorporating best practices from across
3T T ST T ol % | industries to improve its employees’ experience.
FHUHT & HHAET o foru foreafia sreamrerr fafaferly > The welfare activities extended to the employees of
T 307 31T o7fi foren § Gafrq e WW the company include Loans and advances, incentives
‘ . ’ . ' ' related to education, Social Security, Pantry Services
@WC‘HES iE?L ‘ etc.
FHUT I Tk Tes fafdwar IwR AT & ST eTaite , _
ompany has a comprehensive medical treatmen
> C h h dical treatment

~Treft AT ARr-Tt § ST SUSR i e el € | SR
T ST TRTEAT / TS R STEUY o IEl / Fel H gy
38 STl o1 g YrATEe e o forg et & T € fo
HHTAT ohT T Graensit s garan oy et | 39k
STATET, SO = 3T hTH o T T HHATAT T TR
et 2 o fo frafrg w9 ¥ fafste e arer fafear
TR o T I fehar e |
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policy that covers both in-patient and out-patient
Treatment. Company has empanelled the best hospitals
in the cities/towns surrounding its Units/Mumbai that
are located to ensure that employees get the best of
healthcare facilities. Further, Company has also tied up
with visiting medical consultants on a regular basis to
provide initial consultation to employees at their place of
work.
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7.3. Reservation Policy

7.3.1 IREL has strong team of 1222 employees as on
31.03.2020 as against 1377 of the previous year. The
representation of Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes
as on 31.03.2020 is 245 and 37 respectively. Whereas
the representation of Ex-servicemen and Persons with
Disabilities on the roles of IREL is 32 and 14 respectively.
Since April 2019, 9 Persons have been recruited and
163 have ceased to be in employment on account of
resignation / retirements / deaths / termination etc.

7.4 Employee Relations:

7.4.1 The Employee Relations scenario has been cordial
and peaceful during the year. Smooth Relations are
maintained by effective communication meetings
between the Management and the unions on all issues.
Plant level committees such as Safety committee,
Works Committee etc with adequate representation of
management and workmen are in place to discuss and
resolve workplace related and other issues. A Grievance
redressal Mechanism is in place to address employee
grievances in the company.

At the crux of the effort, is a holistic and meaningful
employee engagement making them conscientious
stakeholders in the affairs of the company.

8.0 Corporate Social
Sustainability

Responsibility (CSR) &

8.1.1 Vision: To be a corporate with CSR policies
demonstrating its social responsibilities that is embedded
in the core business and aligned for inclusive growth of
the society.

8.1.2 Mission: To implement programmes which uplifts
and enhances the living condition of the community
surrounding it by way of initiatives in the areas of health,
literacy, skill development, providing safe drinking
water, infrastructure development, sports, environment
protection, sustainability and other socially relevant
matters.

8.1.3 IREL complies with the provisions of Companies Act
2013 and the guidelines issued by the Government of
India from time to time for selecting and implementing
its CSR activities. The area of implementation of CSR
schemes are not only around the vicinity of mining
sites and backward districts where the company has its
operating units, but also beyond. Budgetary allocation
for CSR activities of IREL is in accordance with the
Companies Act 2013, Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 and guidelines issued
by the Government from time to time. The CSR policy
of the Company is available in http://www.irel.co.in/
content/3570_3 CSR.aspx.
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8.2

8.3

8.4

IREL (India) Limited

Composition of CSR Commiittee:

i. Shri Ved Prakash Yajurvedi, Independent Director
- Chairman

i. Col. (R)B.B. Pandian, Independent Director
- Member

iii. Shri K.K. Mohanty, Director(Marketing) - Member

Average net profit of the Company for last three
financial years:

2016-17 : WRs. 3814.02 lakh
2017-18 Rs. 12383.80 lakh
2018-19 Rs. 20,000.69 lakh

Avg. Net Profit . Rs. 12066.17 lakh of past 3 years
2% of Avg. Net Profit: Rs. 241.32 lakh

Prescribed CSR Expenditure for 2019-20:
Rs. 241.32 lakh.
Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs.
241.32 lakh

Amount unspent, if any: Nil

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial
year is detailed below:
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CSR project or
activity identified

2l
Sector in
which the
project is

covered

RIS 9T ShTEehu(1)
T & 91 3 =(2) T
ST =T TR =Te] o |
Project or programs (1) local
area or other (2) specify
the state and district where

prjects or program was
undertaken

(®.

SIEC))
Amount
spent
(Rs in
lakh)

@ &t T
RTIYT:

PILI eI
T T
& AT Y
Amount spent:
Direct or through
implementing
agency

fraifé
Irafer qaeh
hT ot
R}
Cumulative
expenditure
upto the
reporting
period

IR @y @Y,
STef, WeSdl TS
gfed @ @I H
BISIEE ]

Promoting health care
including preventive
health care, Water

supply, sanitation etc.

fRTeqT, TSR SIg ared
ST R ShITTel SeaTe
T TedTe T

Promoting Education,
employment enhancing

vocational skills etc.

T forraa, e
T T o1 FTaT,
TSI oh CIToT,
Infe

Protection of national

heritage, art & culture,
setting up of libraries,

etc.

WAl I TGTaT
Promotion of Sports

TTHIOT faeRTe aftErST

Rural Development
Project

@,  [EE 3R
T it e
I ERE]

Disaster Management

including relief,
rehabilitation and

reconstruction activities

SIcat e S )
[EEIE)
Development
Aspirational district

of

U]

(ii)

(vii)

(x)

(xii)

gidié
EaEiE)
RIEERCEICD
DPE OM
dated
10.12.18

T & ey o, 7o,
sifeem, woTEaTE=, affd
RS

Local area Kollam
Kerala, Ganjam, Odisha,
Manvalkurichi, Tamil nadu

241.32

60.76

21.44

21.96

2.91

146.10

13.92

4.71

60.76

21.44

21.96

TERETA 5T
rer AR e T

Implemented

2.91 |directly by IREL

146.10

13.92

4.71

Total

241.32

271.80

271.80
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IREL (India) Limited

In case the company has failed to spend the two per
cent of the average net profit of the last three financial
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report:

Not applicable, since the Company has spent beyond its
prescribed CSR budget for the year.

A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that
the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy is in
compliance with the CSR objectives and policy of the
company.

IREL complies with the provisions of Companies Act
2013, Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules 2014 and guidelines issued by
the Government from time to time for selecting
and implementing its CSR activities. The area of
implementation of CSR schemes is not only around the
vicinity of mining sites and backward districts where the
company has its operating units, but in areas where IREL
does not have any operations. Budgetary allocation for
CSR activities of IREL is in accordance with the limits
specified under the Companies Act 2013.

Implementation of Official Language Policy

IREL (India) Limited is committed to the implementation
of official language policy and in pursuance of the same,
it has undertaken the following initiatives in the year
2019-20:

(i) Efforts were made to fulfill the targets set for the
implementation of the Official Language Policy of
the Government of India and the said targets were
achieved, demonstrating our commitment and
determination.

(i) To encourage the use of Official Language,
several workshops and various competitions were
organized throughout the year and during the
Hindi Day/Hindi Fortnight. These competitions and
workshops have increased the progressive use of
Hindi by employees of the company in their day-
to-day working.

(i) IREL (India) Limited's in-house half-yearly Hindi
magazine 'Veeral Darpan' is being published
successfully by our Company for the development
of Official Language and it has received wide
appreciation not only from employees but also
from other organizations.

(iv) Besides the above, employees of the company

were trained in the “LILA-Rajbhasha (Learn Indian

Languages through Artificial intelligence), a multi-

media based intelligent self-tutoring application for

learning Hindi, recently launched by Rajbhasha

Department, Government of India.

IREL (India) Limited, Mumbai was awarded successively,
runner-up Rajbhasha Shield 2018-19 by the Department
of Atomic Energy for outstanding performance in Hindi.
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The said award was received by Director (Technical)
during the All India Official Language Conference
organized by the Department of Atomic Energy at
Hyderabad.

10.0 Right to Information Act, 2005

10.1 The company, in order to promote transparency and
accountability, has put in place appropriate mechanisms
in line with the RTI Act, 2005. Central Public Information
Officer (CPIO), Assistant Public Information Officer
(APIO), First Appellate Authority (FAA) and Transparency
Officer have been notified and utmost care is being
taken for timely compliance and providing requisite
information as per the provisions of RTI Act, 2005.

10.2 During the year 2019-20, 161 RTI applications
including opening balance as on 01.04.2019 of 13 RTI
applications were disposed of by the CPIO and 22 First
Appeals including opening balance as on 01.04.2019 of
01 First Appeal were disposed of by the First Appellate
Authority. Besides the above, 03 Second Appeals were
also disposed of by the Hon'ble Central Information
Commission (CIC) during 2019-20.

10.3 As a system improvement in RTI Management, copies
of RTI Applications received through the post and their
respective replies are being uploaded in the RTI Request
& Appeal Management Information System (RTI-MIS)
maintained by Central Information Commission.

11.0 Vigilance

11.1.1 The Aim of Vigilance at IREL is to build confidence in
managers to take the right business decision thereby
inculcating a culture wherein the fear of vigilance is not
used as an excuse for inaction. IREL vigilance believes
in aiding decision making in the organization through the
proactive, educative and participative interventions.

11.1.2 Vigilance Department worked as an effective link
between CVC and organization. Complaints received
were timely investigated and appropriate actions were
taken in consultation with the concerned authorities
including CVC and Department of Atomic Energy (DAE).

11.1.3 Vigilance officers are appointed at each Unit of IREL
to carry out the regular vigilance related activities in line
with the vigilance guidelines and directions of CVO,
IREL.

11.1.4 16 CTE type examinations, 48 Periodic inspections and
192 Surprise inspections of the units were conducted
during the year. Proper, prompt and timely action was
ensured in respect of the advices given by agencies like
CVC in their investigation reports.
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11.2 The following activities were carried out in the field

of Systemic improvement:

»  Surprise Checks and CTE type examination were
carried by the Unit Vigilance Officers on works/
items as per the instructions provided by Corporate
Vigilance Department.

> Rotation of officers in sensitive posts was carried
out.

11.3 Vigilance Awareness Week

12.0

Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was observed from
28th October to 2nd November 2019 at IREL Corporate
Office and all the field Units of IREL with the theme as
“Integrity — A way of Life”.

VAW - 2019 opened with the administration of Vigilance
Pledge and Integrity Pledge in presence of CMD and
other officials at Corporate Office and in the units of IREL
by the respective Heads of units. Messages received
from Hon’ble Vice President of India, Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India, Ministry of Home Affairs and Central
Vigilance Commission were circulated amongst various
departments and field units during the observance of
Vigilance Awareness Week.

Banners highlighting observance of Vigilance Week
were displayed at Corporate office and respective Units
of the organization. Vigilance Badges in trilingual form
were distributed in field units of IREL.

Vendors/Contractors/Customers meet was organized in
the field units i.e. Manavalakurichi, Aluva and Chavara
Units of IREL. During the meet vendors/stakeholders
were sensitized about the integrity e-pledge initiated by
CVC and encouraged all the vendors and their family
members to take e-pledge.

During this week, various competitions i.e. Quiz
Competition, Slogan writing competition, Debate and
Essay writing, Poster making competition organized at
Corporate Office and all field Units of IREL for Officers,
Workmen, house wives of Colony and School Children
and College Students. In the field Units apart from the
above competitions, Walkathon was also conducted
in the promotion of Vigilance Awareness. Prizes were
distributed to the winners of the various competitions
held during the Week on the valedictory function day.

Disclosure of information on public procurement
notified by the Government under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

12.1 Total value of goods and services procured from MSEs

(including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs) during
the financial year 2019-20 is Rs 154.76 Cr i.e about
45.2 % of Annual Procurement value of Rs 342.25 Cr.
Considering the total annual procurement of Rs 184.1
Cr (excluding items for which MSEs representation are
non-existent), the MSME procurement value is 84.3%.
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13.0 Public Awareness Initiatives

13.1

IREL is organising its public outreach programme at all
units, in the surrounding areas and across the states,
to reach out to all sections of the society with a view to
disseminating IREL’s vision and mission and its role in
nation building; helping and engaging targeted student
community exploring the interminable possibilities with
Beach Sand Minerals; in their academic curriculum,
career and their overall development. The activities
also include vendor development programme for SC/ST
entrepreneurs with a view to promoting entrepreneurship
and to enable their economic empowerment. IREL
actively participate in various Science exhibition / fair to
promote the benefits of sustained mineral harvesting for
the society and facilitates industrial visits of students from
various colleges/ Universities/Institutions to IREL’s units.

13.2 IREL also utilises the immense reach of social media

14.0
14.1

platform to engage with younger generation to
propagate the importance of beach sand minerals and
rare earth compounds in the advancement of science
and technology.

Research & Development

The company invited research projects pertaining to
products in the value chain of limenite, zircon and rare
earths compounds, improvement in recovery energy
efficiency, etc. IREL Technology Development Council
(IRELTDC) has also approved five projects valuing Rs
296.86 lakhs during the financial year in the field of
development of high tech zirconia ceramic components
like plates, tubes, grinding media, blanks for dental
implant; Neodymium metal; 99.99% pure gadolinium
oxide/nitrate and rare earth compounds for eco-friendly
dyeing in textile industry.

14.2 Benefits derived from IRELTDC projects:

1) Identification of appropriate spiral separators
for maximizing recovery of beach sand minerals
having low heavy mineral (HM) content. MG 6.3
spiral were found suitable for separation of HM
from tails of Heavies Upgradation Section (HUS).
HG 10 spiral was found suitable for MK zircon wet
section tailings to produce 90% sillimanite.

The ceria-alumina based catalyst developed by
NCL, Pune was tested for catalytic application
towards automobile exhaust gas treatment. It was
found that the coating of the composition was very
good with required weight of catalyst on metallic
support & with good adhesion property. The
material can find application for Two / Three / Four
wheeler petrol vehicles for exhaust treatment.
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3)  Nano Cerium Oxide with <100 nm particle size was
also been developed by NIIST, Thiruvanathpuram
for glaze coatings for ceramic tiles and cool textile
coating application.

14.3 In house R&D works carried out during 2019-20:

1)  Process developed and implemented on pilot
scale for production of 99.8% pure Samarium
and 99.99% pure Gadolinium. Similarly laboratory
scale process implemented towards production of
99.5% pure Dysprosium.

2)  Process developed for production of marketable
grade sodium tri poly phosphate (STPP) from Tri
sodium phosphate, a by-product generated from
REEP operations.

3) Developed flow sheet for production of Thorium
fluoride from Thorium nitrate for non-nuclear
applications (as per priority theme areas of
IRELTDC) for use in as Multilayer anti reflective
optical coatings on thermal imaging lenses
for applications such as aerial thermography,
thermography in aerospace, automotive, military,
chemical industry, electronics industry, thermal
control mirror to prevent heat build ups and solar
cell applications.

4)  Flowsheet developed for separation of heavy
minerals for the subsidiary of IREL (IREL-IDCOL
Limited) in Odisha.

15.0 Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption &
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

15.1 In accordance with the requirement of section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 information and details in respect
of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo is annexed
hereto as Annexure- ‘A’ and forms part of this report.

16.0 Auditors’ Report

16.1 The Statutory Audit of the Books of Accounts of the
company has been done by M/s Gokhale & Sathe, the
Statutory Auditor of the company and the Statutory
Auditors’ report are annexed to the accounts. The
Statutory auditor has not qualified the accounts, so no
comments on the same are placed.

16.2 Further, in pursuance of the provisions of Section 143(6)
of the companies Act, 2013, the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India has conducted the supplementary
audit and their Comments on the financial statements,
standalone and consolidated, for the year 2019-20
along with management's reply thereof are annexed to
the accounts.
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17.0 Taxation

17.1 Company has exercised the option of shifting to lower
tax rate along with consequent reduction in certain tax
Incentives permitted under Section 115BAAofthe Income
Tax act, 1961, as Introduced by the Government of India
through Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019.
Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for
Current Tax for the year ended 31st March, 2020 and
re-measured its Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax
Liabilities on the basis of the rates prescribed in the said
section.

18.0 Dividend

Your Directors have recommended Rs. 22.53 Crore
as Final Dividend for the year 2019-20. Earlier Interim
Dividend amounting to Rs. 65.00 Crore has been paid
to the shareholders during the financial year 2019-20.
Thus, the total dividend for the year 2019-20 is Rs.
87.53 Crore.

19.0 Public Deposit

19.1 During the year under report, the company has neither
invited nor accepted any deposit from public within the
meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013.

20.0 The details of directors or key managerial personnel
who were appointed/ resigned/ superannuated
during the year

20.1 During the year under review, Shri Sanjay M Kaul,
IAS, former Secretary to Govt of Kerala, Industries
Department ceased to be nominee director w.e.f.
23.09.2019, Ms. Sheila Sangwan ceased to be
Independent Director w.e.f. 27.12.2019 and Shri Arun
Kumar Mohapatra ceased to be Director (Technical)
upon his superannuation on 29.02.2020.

20.2 During the year, Shri Sanjay Garg, IAS, Principal
Secretary to Govt of Kerala, Industries Department
was appointed as nominee director with effect from
22.10.2019.

21.0 Particulars of Employees

21.1 IREL (India) Limited being a Government Company
is exempted from the provisions of Section 197(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules in view
of the Notification dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The functional directors
of the Company are appointed by the Administrative
Department i.e. DAE within the terms & conditions as
per DPE guidelines.

22.0 Auditors

221 M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
was the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the FY
2019-20. M/s Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai was the Statutory Auditors of the Company
for the FY 2019-20. They have audited the Financial
Statements for the FY 2019-20 and submitted their report
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which forms part of this report. There is no qualification
in the Auditors Report on the Financial Statements of
the company. Notes to the Accounts referred to in the
Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do
not call for any further comments.

Cost Audit

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Amendment Rules, 2014, the Cost Accounts maintained
by the company for the FY 2019-20 are being audited by
Cost Auditors M/s. R. K. Patel & Co., Vadodara.

Material changes affecting the company

There has been no change in the nature of business
of the Company. The company has also not issued
any equity shares with differential rights as to dividend,
voting or otherwise. Further in the era of COVID-19
pandemic, the year would through challenges for IREL
and the Company is taking steps to minimize the impact
of COVID-19 pandemic to the best possible extent.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013, directors, to the best of
their knowledge and belief, state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on
a going concern basis;

e) The Directors, in the case of a listed company, had
laid down internal financial controls to be followed
by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating
effectively. Not Applicable

The Company is not a listed Company. However,
an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting were operating effectively
during the year ending on 31.03.2020 and same
was checked and certified by the Statutory
Auditors in their report, as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
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26.0 Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors
under section 143(12) during the year under review

26.1 No frauds were reported by the auditors to the Audit
Committee or the Board under section 143 (12) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

27.0 Declaration by the Independent Directors

27.1 The independent directors have submitted the
declaration of independence, as required pursuant to
section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that
they meet the criteria of independence as provided in
section 149 (6) of the said Act.

28.0 Statement on development and implementation of
Risk Management Policy including identification of
elements of risk

28.1 IREL has in place a robust “Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM)” policy in line with the ERM policy, the Risk
Officers at Unit level identify various risks in consultation
with each functional department and suggest mitigation
measures for each identified risk. After reviewing the
applicable risks and mitigation measures suggested by
Risk Officer along with action reports, Head of the Unit
submits the Quarterly Risk Reports to Chief Risk Officer
for review by Risk Management Committee (RMC) at
Corporate Office.

28.2 During the year 2019-20, RMC reviewed the various
risks identified by the Units on half-yearly basis based
on the Risk Categories such as Low Intensity Risks,
Medium Intensity Risks and High Intensity Risks. As per
the ERM policy, the observation and recommendations
of RMC for the low intensity risks were reported to Unit,
medium intensity risks were reported to business head
level (concerned Director) for necessary action and
advice. High intensity risks were reported to Board of
Directors through Audit committee for information and
necessary direction of Board.

29.0 Safety, Healthcare & Environment

29.1 Details of Safety, Health Care and activities related to
Environment Protections undertaken by the Company
are given in the Annexure ‘B’ forming part of this report.

30.0 Corporate Governance

30.1 Aseparate section on Corporate Governance along with
a Compliance Report on the Corporate Governance
certified by a practicing Company Secretary and the
Management Discussion & Analysis Report are placed
in Annexure ‘C’ and forms part of this Report.

31.0 Compliance of Secretarial Standards

31.1 During the year under review, the company complied
with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
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Significant and Material Orders Passed by the
Regulators or Courts

There have been no significant and material orders
passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
Company’s going concern status.

Extract of the Annual Return

As required under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the extract of the Annual Return for the
financial year ended 2019-20 in the Form MGT-9 as
per provisions of section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 has been prepared and
hosted on the website of the company www.irel.co.in.

The Whistle Blower Policy

IREL has formulated a “Whistle Blower” Policy which
facilitates its employees to report to the management
and in exceptional cases to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee about unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud, or violation of the company’s general
guidelines on conduct or ethics policy. This policy
provides employees of IREL to genuinely blow the
whistle on any misconduct or unethical activity taking
place in the Company and to protect the whistle blower.
Board noted that during the year 2019-20, Company
has neither received any complaint under the Whistle
Blower Policy nor any employees has been denied any
personnel access to the Audit Committee during the
year 2019-20. Whistle blower policy is available on the
company’s website www.irel.co.in.

Complaint mechanism for women:

As per the requirement of the sexual harassment of
women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013, and Rules made thereunder,
Internal Complaint Committees is in place to redress
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. IREL
(India) Ltd has been conducting training / workshops
both for male and female employees sensitizing them
about the issues and law relating to sexual harassment.
During the year under report, no complaint of sexual
harassment has been received.

Loans, guarantees or investment under section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013:

During the year under review, the company has not
made any loan, guarantee or investment under section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Related Party Transactions

There have been no related party transactions between
the Company and the Directors, the management or
the relatives except for those disclosed in the financial
statements. Accordingly, particulars of contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188(1) along with the justification for entering into such
contract or arrangement in Form AOC-2 does not form
part of this report.
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38.0 Awards / Accolades:
38.1 In order to have better visibility in the Country and

overseas, the Company participated in number of
Award competitions. The following accolades won by
the Company, speak on the growth of the Company in
various fields:

“India’s Most Trusted Company” Award 2018 by IBC Info
Media.

“Best Community Development” Award in the National
CSR Leadership Congress.

CAPEXIL- “Top Export Award for the Year 2015-16 &
2016-17 for export of limenite, Garnet and Sillimanite
by Hon’ble Shri Piyush Goyal, Minister of Commerce &
Industry and Railways, Govt of India.

CMD, IREL conferred with the "International Leadership
Innovation Excellence Award 2019" in Colombo, Sri
Lanka organized by "Institute of Economic Studies"

CMD, IREL conferred with "Export Excellence Award" for
outstanding export performance in the category of "Two
Star Export House 2016-17" organized by "Federation
of Indian Export Organizations".

ICC "Corporate Governance & Sustainability Vision
Award 2020" for the best practices followed in the
company.

Successively awarded runner-up Rajbhasha Shield for
the year 2018-19 by the Department of Atomic Energy
for outstanding performance in Hindi. The operating
units of MK and RED were conferred with Town Official
Language Implementation Committee (TOLIC) for Hindi
language implementation in the year 2018-19 by TOLIC
Nagercoil, Tamilnadu and TOLIC Kochi, Kerala Kochi
Town Official Language Implementation Committee
(TOLIC) for Best Performer in Official Language
Implementation in PSU category for the year 2018-19
on the occasion of Joint Hindi Valedictory Function held
on 12.02.2020.

OSCOM Quality Circle "Parivartan" got Distinguished
Award during National Convention on Quality Concepts
(NCQC-2019) held at IIT BHU, Varanasi. They were
also awarded 1st Runner up prize & Gold First Quality
Circle award during 28th QCFI (Quality Circle Forum of
India) Koraput Chapter Convention.

MK unit won National Safety Awards (Mines) which were
presented by Hon'ble Vice President of India. These
awards were (i) Longest Accident Free period- Winner
for the year 2015 and (ii) Lowest Injury Frequency Rate-
Winner for the year 2016.

During Odisha Metalliferous Mines Safety Week
Celebration (2019-20) organized under the aegis of
DGMS, Bhubaneswar region OSCOM Unit was awarded

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



>

sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

“HeFTEeS ST HEE WIEY” T Juit g WK 37
FAMTT T AT Y FUTT H ORI TR 0T g |
SISNTATY, <9E & o TTae § ST @ ga 3a-
T FdTe AR 2019 % TRM, THS (AT T “Hem
gfaemeTt o fafer glaursti” & faw yom R
i, “Hie o JeE; ‘e faen” oiR “afteRT iR
froTre” o fore gaeT Jeeeh oTe g3 |

39.0 3THIT
39.1 v wuee fafirs grenrdt farmii we usifaEt, sent we

3 AN Al ied TA] SHeit fGUTT, 7
AT STTHYM %, Shard Td Td GLhR| ohT THreme
af & SR I qeaa Jarell Td gaq gue & fow
TR e T & |

39.2 fAeSTeh AU 39 3TTET I FHHETLAT ST qoft T oY fo

T AT o T 3Seh! TR Wt T Bl

are o fee it o &t SR @

(@ors faw)
Y UG A FeyTeh

faaien: 28 TG, 2020

70th Annual Report 2019-20

39.0
39.1

39.2

IREL (India) Limited

1st prize in the category of "Mechanised Open Cast
Mines" in the event of "Safety and Compliance" and 2nd
prize in the category of "Mechanised Open Cast Mines"
in the event of "Training, Health & Welfare".

During the Mines Safety Observation Week 2019
organized under the aegis of DGMS, Chennai Region,
MK Unit won the 1st Prize for “Welfare amenities and
Medical facilities”; “Injury Rate Performance”; “Swachh
Mission” and 2nd prize for “Transport & Workshop
Facilities”; “Personal Protective Equipment”; and
“Overall Performance”.
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Annexure ‘A’
(Annexure to the Directors’ Report)

Matters required to be included in the Board’s report for
the year ended 31st March, 2020 pursuant to Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Conservation of Energy:

i)

iii)

Steps taken and impact on conservation of energy:

Replacement of conventional fittings with LED fittings,
procurement of energy efficient motors, timers were
installed for switching of the street lights & High-mast
lights, replacement of conventional ceiling fans with
energy efficient fans, procurement energy efficient
(higher star rated) Air conditioners etc.

By taking above steps, about 8.92 lakh units were saved.
OSCOM unit, CHAVARA unit and Rare Earths Division
(RED) unit received an amount of Rs. 5.66 lakhs, Rs
4.02 lakhs and Rs 2.81 lakhs respectively towards
incentive from respective State Electricity Board for
maintaining required power factor.

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

1. Roof top solar UPS of 3 KVA in under operation
at one of the 60t Weighbridge at OSCOM.

2. Roof top solar power schemes of about 170KW
are in pipe line and will be completed within a year.

The capital investment on energy conservation
equipment:

Total capital investment on energy conservation
equipment for the year 2019-20 is about Rs 80.36 lakhs

Technology Absorption
Efforts made towards technology absorption:

a) Replacement of old cross Belt Magnetic separator
(CBMS) with new generation Rare Earth Roll
Magnetic Separators (RERMS) in Rutile &
Monazite Circuit.

b) Installation of 2 nos. of man-less weighbridges at
SMP-II & SMP-IV.

c) Installed double geared drive for the centrifuge,
higher capacity cyclone separator for reducing the
downtime in the attack plant.

d) SS-304 pump with double mechanical seal is
introduced in the lye evaporator in Attack plant.

e) Process parameters optimized in attack section
of REEP for improving recovery of down stream
products.

f) Continuous R & D initiatives were carried out to
improve purity of RE products at RED.
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R&D process has been developed and established
for the production of Gadolinium and Dysprosium
with purity 99.95% and 99% respectively.

Erection work of Spin Flash Driers was completed
for drying Nd-Pr oxalate and Cerous Carbonate.

The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development or import
substitution as a result of the above efforts:

a)

b)

c)

d)
e)
f)

9)

h)

Monazite of 96% purity is consistently produced at
OSCOM and Chavara units.

Augmentation of production of Silimanite by 20%
at OSCOM.

TSP slurry throughput increased, chocking of
the cyclone in TSP drying area has reduced and
cycle time for Attack operation has also reduced in
REEP.

Recovery of products improved at REEP.
limenite recovery improved by 1% at Chavara.

Magnetic fraction in Rutile product maintained
<1% consistently to avoid rejection.

2 nos of REDMS in the garnet circuit introduced
for improving recovery and throughput of garnet
product at MK

Performance of Lighter Rare earth solvent
extraction circuit improved. Cerium product purity
improved from 99 to 99.5% and Lanthanum and
Nd-Pr products are being produced consistently
having >99.9% purity.

In case of imported technology (imported during the
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)

a) The details of technology imported — Nil.

b) The year of import — NA

c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed — NA.

d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has

not taken place, and the reasons thereof — NA.

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research &

Development

Particulars (X / lakh)

a) Capital 53.71

b) Revenue 179.49

c) Total 233.20
(v) Capital Expenditure

Particulars (X / lakh)

From own reserve 6284.19

©

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

a)
b)

Earnings by way of export - ¥ 53,742.35 lakhs
Outgo by way of import - ¥ 28.69 lakhs
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Annexure “B”
Safety, Health Care & Environment

Safety, Health Care and Environment of the employees
and those of the locals around the neighborhood of
the operating plants are given utmost importance and
attention. This approach has enabled the company
to achieve efficient utilization of resources, higher
productivity, safe working environment and better quality
products / services.

All the operating plants are accredited with ISO
9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 and OHSAS 18001:2007
certification and Corporate Research and Safety unit
is accredited with ISO 9001:2015. All the mineral and
chemical laboratories of the company are certified
by NABL in accordance with the standard ISO/IEC
17025:2017.

All the operating plants are having DSIR registration for
in-house R & D activities.

Safety

IREL (India) Limited is committed to provide highest
standard of healthy and safe work environment. We
believe that sustainable progress can be achieved only
by bringing in proactive safe and healthy ecosystem that
protects employees, contractors and others in IREL’s
value chain including suppliers, customers and public.

IREL believes that all work-related injuries are
preventable and therefore safety and health are
integrated in the business processes in such a way that
all activities are evaluated with the health and safety
perspective. The management system provides frame
work for systematic identification of hazards, careful
risk assessment and appropriate mitigation measures
to control danger. IREL adopts continuous improvement
in the safety performance by systematically improving
processes, work practices and systems by keeping
abreast latest developments, knowledge and
information.

IREL is committed to ensure zero harm to its employees,
contractors and the communities in which it operates.
This is integral to the business process and is laid down
in the standards and working procedures.

The company has established and maintained safe work
environment with suitable facilities, procedures and
training to ensure health and safety of the employees.
A regular and systematic method for assessment and
evaluation of safety standards of all the operating
plants is in place in the company. An expert committee
with members of prominence in the field of safety,
visit all operating units and assess the safety, health,
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environment, energy & water conservation conditions
of the operating units and recommend for the award
of CMD shield in the said areas. Barring few minor
accidents, there was no fatal accident during the year.

Health Care

All the operational units of the company are
having occupational health centers with qualified,
experienced, trained & competent male and female
medical practitioners and para medical staff along with
adequate medical facilities to look after the health of the
employees and their dependant family members. As part
of corporate social responsibility, company conducts
medical camps, provide assistance to schools, in the
nearby villages.

Environment Care

After completion of mining, the mined out area is
refilled, leveled and reclaimed to maintain the original
topography. The mining units plant saplings in the mined
out areas, colony and residential areas with a view to
restore and maintain ecology. Rain water harvesting
points, water recharging are set up to improve the water
table of the mined out area. Solar lighting systems are
installed to reduce the carbon foot print.

The company is committed to provide clean environment
both at the work place and surrounding areas. The
operational units of the company are adhering to all
safety norms / standards fixed by the respective state
pollution control boards / Central Pollution Control Board
and other statutory bodies which are closely monitored
and maintained well within prescribed limits.
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Annexure - “C”

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0

2.0
21

2.2

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company’s philosophy is to achieve business
excellence and maximize long-term value for all its
stakeholders on a sustained basis through ethical
business conduct. At IREL, we ensure that we evolve
and sincerely follow the corporate governance guidelines
issued by Department of Public Enterprise (DPE),
Government of India. The company’s policy is reflected
by the very values of transparency, professionalism and
accountability. We consider it our inherent responsibility
to disclose timely and accurate information regarding our
financials and performance, as well as the governance
of the Company. During the year 2018-19, the company
has been graded as “Excellent” by the DPE on the
compliance of guidelines on Corporate Governance for
CPSEs.

Board of Directors
Composition and category of Directors

The Board of the company comprises of Functional
Directors, Non-Executive Government Directors and
Non-official (Independent) Directors. As on 31.03.2020,
the Board of the Company comprised of 8 directors. Out
of which 3 are whole time Functional Directors and 5
are Non-Executive Directors. Out of 5 Non-Executive
Directors, 3 are part time Official / Nominee Directors
and 2 are Independent Directors. None of the Directors
are related with other Directors’ as per the meaning
of relatives provided under section — 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Meetings

The Board of Directors’ met six times during the year
2019-20 and the gap between two meetings did not
exceed four months. The dates on which said meetings
were held are as follows:

14th June, 2019, 26th June, 2019, 18th September,
2019, 8th November, 2019, 16th December, 2019 and
12th March, 2020. Required quorums were present at
all the Board meetings.
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¥ 2019-20 3 SR ST A1E S3oht § FITTehT ot IUTEATT T 31 7T, 2020 T 3T Tl FevTehed & faawo F= fer M 2

Attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings held during the year 2019-20 and their outside directorship as on 31st March,
2020 are given hereunder:

. frevTeR w1 w0 TrevTehe =AT oS ddent W aTer e vTehe aht et
g, @ey Suferfa =t 9. 9.
SI. Name of the Director Nature of No. of Board No. of outside Remarks
No Directorships | meetings attended Directorships
1 | A= fEE LaRIED 6 3
Shri Deependra Singh Functional
o | 1% % AR LaRICED 6 1
Shri K K Mohanty Functional
3 gﬁ' E a,,-j:hg'q'm W 5 1 Ceased on 29.02.2020
Shri A K Mohapatra Functional T g
4 | AT R FHTATEH 6 1
Shri A Roy Chowdhury Functional
. 20.05.2020 T ATHHT
ot ©q. ufdT TeTeTeT T o
5 : 6 3 T fe=m
Shri S Mervin Alexander Nominee AT Nomination
withdrawn w.e.f.20.05.2020
6 | et taree RUEG] 3 1
Dr. Dinesh Srivastava Nominee
. Nomination withdrawn
7 glﬂ? ;ﬁﬁM - ETFHH 1 - w.e.f. 23.09.2019 T
ri Sanjay au ominee o R e
g | Gt hten grmam T < ) Ceased on 27.12.2019 &l
Ms. Sheila Sangwan Independent AT
g | &t 3 ToRTeT Fect =dT 4 0 16.07.2019 ST IMHA TT
Shri Ved PrakashYajurvedi | Independent Joined on 16.07.2019
10 S’ﬁ e @ 1) A wdT A 0 16.07.2019 T IMHA §T
Tife Independent i
Col. (R ) B.B. Pandian p Joined on 16.07.2019
11 | ot Gem e 1 1 22.10.2019 T ITHA TTC
Shri Sanjay Garg Nominee Joined on 22.10.2019
2.3 39 O &l 9T 1 9 9g 9% ﬁrg?ﬁ T 2.3 Brief Resume of the Directors who were appointed
ﬁ%waﬁwﬁmﬁa?ﬁ: till the date of preparation of this report:
2.3.1 st mr&wgﬁ' 2.3.1 Shri Ajay Ramesh Sule

A 3 TET g [T fagforme ¥ 1986 & fafaa
TSR was 71 ff g2 TS It S 1S
AISTHE TSI AT SeaT o 3TEdT IT AT AT@IehT
T A gB T FWIT IAIfSTeR g TR, S
faafaamema, B, fexes T fawg eremam § SR
IRy O R

A gad o 1993 H TR T&T T Harl | et g1 37k
I for, wiTeh ST SHET gt nfafafert & 26 ot 9
Nfurch T TN T | ST & G faumT, T WA,
T AT Jele eI S T8 worer # fafus wef
W W foFar €1 i #, 9% 99 TfET (ST IR
ST TT T HTRR G T8 & e =foera e
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Shri Ajay Ramesh Sule is a Civil Engineering graduate
of 1986 from University of Pune. Shri Sule is a qualified
CostAccountant of the Institute of Cost and Management
Accountant of India. Shri Sule has post-graduate
degree in Development Studies from International
Institute of Social Studies, Erasmus University, Hague,
Netherlands.

Shri Sule joined the Indian Defence Accounts
Services in the year 1993. He has more than 26 years’
experience in versatile activities such as Finance, Public
Administration and so on. He has worked in various
capacities in Defence Accounts Department, Ministry
of Defence, National Disaster Management Authority
and Ministry of Home Affairs. Currently, he is holding
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giufa & oremg oft ¥ FNURT ofX TefEad 39d &
ST, 4t FHR T STehTe 0k & H off 19 FaTg 21 § T
BUEIE o & =T I forgfammer, faeamegl § s
foram T & fafSife feree) &1 o/ § 37 e &
R, SR e TR / J9TGT 0 S &, 5 e
Id ¥ gareT W&, I TR0 Jarsit & fow 3
A T [T YN 7 | 37 [WEhRT H I e (fawie
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the charge of Joint Secretary (Industries and Minerals)
Division which also includes PSUs viz. Nuclear Power
Corporation of India Ltd., Uranium Corporation of India
Ltd. and IREL (India) Ltd. Shri Sule is also the Internal
Financial Advisor in the Department of Atomic Energy.

Shri Sule is also on the Board of NPCIL, ECIL, UCIL as
well as BHAVINI, Kalpakkam.

2.3.2 Shri Sanjay Kumar

Sl

Shri Sanjay Kumar, Joint Secretary (Administration &
Accounts), DAE, born on 24th January, 1965, joined
the Board of IREL as Govt. nominee Director with effect
from 20th May, 2020. He is Central Civil Service Officer
of Indian Railway Accounts Service, 1988 Batch and his
academic qualification include Master degree (MBA)
in Finance, Bachelor of Engineering (Electronics) and
is presently pursuing PhD in Management (Transport
Economics).

Shri Kumar carries versatile experience of more than
29 years in Indian Railways, State Government, PSUs
and Central PSUs. During this period, he dealt with
Administration, Scrutiny of Financial Proposals, High
Value Contract Management, Investment Planning,
Traffic Costing, Preparation of various Statistical
Statements, Computerization, Preparation of Budget.
Preparation of various MIS reports etc. He has also
dealt with World Bank projects.

Shri Kumar is also a member on the Board of other
DAE Units like Uranium Corporation of India Ltd
and Electronics Corporation of India Ltd. He is on
the Governing Council of Tata Memorial Centre and
Atomic Energy Education Society. He is also the
Chief Vigilance Officer of DAE and Chairman, Official
Language Implementation Committee of DAE. Apart
from Corporate and Industrial exposure, Shri Kumar
has served in academics as well and was a Visiting
faculty in the Department of Computer Science in Guru
Ghashi Das University Bilaspur, Chhatisgarh. During his
career in Railways, he has won a number of Awards/
Appreciation Letters including the highest Award in
Indian Railways, i.e. the Minister of Railways Award for
exemplary services. Other awards include Appreciation
Letters by Railway Board (Financial Commissioner) for
significant contribution in various facets of Accounts
working, General Manager's appreciation letter for
outstanding work. General Manager's Certificate of
Merit for outstanding performance and devotion to duty.

The attendance at the 69" AGM held on 18"
September, 2019 (Adjourned on 28th September
2019) were as under:

Name of the Shareholders

Hon’ble President of India - Present (through
representative)

Shri K.N. Vyas - Present (through proxy)
Shri D Singh - Present
Shri S Mervin Alexander - Present
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3.0 Audit Committee
3.1.1 Brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit

f)
9)
h)

Committee are as follows:

Review the quarterly/annual financial statements before
submission to the Board.

Review of internal audit, statutory audit and Government
audit reports.

Reviewing with the management, statutory auditors and
internal auditors about internal control system and its
adequacy.

Ensure compliance with the applicable Accounting
Standards and other statutory requirements for the
preparation of financial statements.

Review of Significant Accounting Policies and changes,
if any.

Reviewing audit qualifications, if any.

Recommending appointment of cost auditors.

Recommending to the Board for the fixation of audit fees
of statutory auditors & Cost Auditors.

Recommending to the Board for appointment & fixation
of remuneration of Tax Auditors.

Approving payment to statutory auditors for any other
services, which are not statutorily prohibited.

Review of Cost Audit report.

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up thereon.

3.1.2 Composition & other particulars of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors was
reconstituted in the Board meeting 364 held on 12th
March, 2020. The Audit Committee met four times during
the year on 26th June, 2019, 18" September,2019, 16th
December, 2019 and 12th March, 2020. The name and
attendance of the members at the Audit Committee
Meetings were as follows:

Sl. [Name of Director Category | No. of Remarks
No. meetings
attended
1 |Ms. Sheila Sangwan |(Independent 4 Ceased on
27.12.2019
2 |ShriAK Mohapatra |Functional 2 Ceased member
of committee
w.e.f. 18.9.2019
3 [Shri S. Mervin Nominee 2 Ceased member
Alexander of committee
w.e.f. 18.9.2019
4 |Dr. Dinesh Srivastava [Nominee 2 -
5 |Shri Sanjay M Kaul  |Nominee 1 Nomination
withdrawn w.e.f.
23.9.2019
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5.0

3G 3T yaY FewTer ST faeyrer (forer) Tomelt smfa
B © 3T St Wie o alten wiAfa o gfd & &9 §
FT A |

THieR Ue uTfsifirer wfufa
1 feramret faw w@fae #:

SATRTICT MR T-Tefepa weierent & gqas frerifoa S
% ofieR faeror & fog frogre gefua aam ofix fifs &
A W 3 39 T % 37 I 5= 918 g9-9ag
TR s it gRT TREoT e S STHGET 4
foTu Tefire T GerdT & T HHel! oX fofy o & o |
2 qTisifires afufe st TeT ST o faemT

ST o FISYTeR Hed o1 W@ad T ATHifehd Tt a1
T TR Sl ¢ ST S 5w T W e
BT © | UIafher winfg ¥ 9 9= B9 §, 4 o
To[dt, Iy % w9 ¥ wWad feve, S . 6t
ITATIET T & o &9 | <. e darsar
39 o S deh 3 suferfa

12 @, 2020 1 THHT S qRAHS wEfT w5t
I3F T2 | A . f A S ST, T, AT IreIoSiET
2019-20 & SR AT S35 H IR 9 |
4 UTfCITeR <fif / |eft e vTeRt oh i eifen ot faawor
e Faferd aae (PRP) Ut o Fyut fsare o g
GeNTerd BIT §, ST ShUT o Teieh shTepTdt ST A-gefed
et & e & Genford B e |

o fevTent At uew uTitsrfues

¥ 2019-20 % IRM, HUT T S T A gRT I
THfqEt ot Teie doe § Sufefd o fag 31 T Tty
e FETTeRt &1 %. 10,000/~ S sge ot < § fafen
WG T P AT o a8 Td IHeh! WAt i
I3 § Ul o U ey T o e vt %
e Wit BT AR 9T T § AT T R gRT
T foRT T T AT Y[oeh, AT & Te STaT =1 ohi
ofe o et € 1 9 2019-20 & IR fafaT wig % w9
H T FISeeRl 1 F. 2,30,000/- T LR T IO
fomar |

6 |ShriV.P. Yajurvedi |Independent 1 Joined as a
member w.e.f
18.09.2019
7 |Col. (R)B.B. Independent 1 Joined as a
Pandian member w.e.f
12.03.2020
Chairman & Managing Director and Director (Finance)
are permanent invitees and the Company Secretary
acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.
4.0 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

4.1.1 Terms of reference in brief:

To decide on the payment of Performance Related Pay
and policy for its distribution across the executives and
non-unionized supervisors, within the prescribed limits
and such other matters as the Board may from time to
time refer to the remuneration committee to examine
and approve.

4.1.2 Composition & other particulars of Remuneration

Committee

The Company has a Remuneration Committee of
the Board of directors consisting of independent and
nominee directors and it is headed by an independent
director. Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, Mr. V.P. Yajurvedi, independent director as
the Chairman, Dr. S. Mervin Alexander and Dr. Dinesh
Srivastava, directors as member.

4.1.3 Meeting and attendance during the year

Nomination and Remuneration Committee met on 12th
March, 2020. Shri V. P. Yajurvedi and Dr. S. Mervin
Alexander were present in the meeting held during
2019-20.

4.1.4 Remuneration policy / Details of remuneration to all

5.0

the directors

Performance Related Pay (PRP) is driven by the overall
performance of the Company vis-a-vis performance of
each executive and non-unionized supervisors across
the company.

Remuneration paid to Independent Directors

During the year 2019-20, the Company paid sitting
fees @ Rs. 10,000/- per meeting to its Non-Executive
Independent Director for attending each meetings of the
Board and Board appointed committees. The Company
also pays daily allowance to outstation Independent
Directors and reimburses local conveyance, travelling
expenses and accommodation expenses incurred
by the Independent Directors for attending meetings
of the Board and committees thereof. An amount of
Rs. 2,30,000/- was paid to the Independent Directors
towards sitting fees during the year 2019-20.
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5.1.1 Tt e vTent =Y Wmmm&maﬂm/ Details of remuneration paid to all the directors

ST STCTT WA WeeIeh 1 ShIHeh bl YT fohaT T A Heh ohl fT=Tar yehe foaT 1T € | / Remuneration paid to the
individual key managerial personnel has been disclosed as under: &. yay feyTeR, qut -ehiferen fevTeRT T/
STUET WAeTeh! SRl AT HeR

A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

il @aﬁmwf&am_ THE /ST S/aaeIh T A0 UL
qEm Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount
Name of MD/WTD/ Manager i
SI.No. (in lakhs)
1. Hehel aa= #t < faw 37 TE ware] FgeTeh
Gross salary Shri D Singh CMD 55.05
(&) 3T AU, 1961 & ¥RT 17 (1) 4t o o HIEId freeres (foqur)
Tied TaH & Sﬂﬂﬂaﬂ? Shri K K Mohanty Director (Marketing) 57.07
(a) Sala_ry as per provisions contained in St T % T IEEIENGEEIED))
section17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 Shri AK Mohapatra Director (Technical) 82.15"
At T I ey s (farr)
Shri A Roy Chowdhury | Director (Finance) 35.13
(@) 3T U, 1961 &t &RT 17 (2) &t < g Y 9 qee fewmen
% TEd ST 1 AT (ITIHT 3e3F Shri D Singh CMD 9.07
e Trfer o6t TR 6T E © | AR | o ORfy e (famom)
HfereoT 7=T) Shri K K Mohanty Director (Marketing) 165
(b) Value of perquisites.u/s 17(2) of Income- tax £t T % T vy (qa ) .
Act,1961 (Amount is calculated for Income Shri A K Mohapatra Director (Technical)
Tgx purpose @ 15% of salary. No actual . e 3 : v &) 6.09
disbursement) . ]
Shri A Roy Chowdhury | Director (Finance)
sﬁlaﬁ_‘{m Y TF qaY 3!35% 5.66
. . CMD
(M) TR SAffTEm, 1961 T ¥RT17 3) % | ShriD Singh
TR S oh T I AT ot o o el ?E 7 () 0
(c) Profits in lieu of salary undersection 17(3) | Shri K K Mohanty Director (Marketing)
Income- tax Act,1961 ot T TR TR (ThHiTh)
Shri A K Mohapatra Director (Technical) 0
P 10.08.18 ¥ freren(fam)
Shri A Roy Chowdhury | Director (Finance)
from10.08.18
2. ek %1 faehed / Stock Option I/ NIL
3. 3T 3T / Sweat Equity ¥/ NIL
4. HAT - AT HY% FETH - 377, AR HT.. I/ NIL
Commission - as% of profit - others, specify...
5. 31, A Ay I/ NIL
Others, please specify
251.87
et (ah) / Total(A)
srfafam o SR wiferT T TTET NLA.
Ceiling as per the Act
*Fenfrgfe o ey et &1

*Includes retirement benefits.
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Xl ity @1 faawm e/ SgES/ Udg®: & AW T e
= Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager (F. or@ o)
Sl. Total Amount
No. (in Rs. lakhs)
1SR ECNENEIPEN IS D 1.00
Independent Directors (ID) Ms. Sheila Sangwan
TS GAfd 1 IIhT F AT o o o o Fid (Fetie) .4 ifsar
-Fee for attending board committee, meetings Col (R) B.B. Pandian ID 60
3. T s ot~ It St doeh o fog,. | AR Agd
-Others, please specify —Honorarium for Sr. DPC | 941 ¥l Wimar
Meeting Ms. Sheila Sangwan D 0
Tl (YD) s wifsaH
Col (R) B.B. Pandian ID 0
CINCER CON DR G
et (1) / Total(1) 2.50
ferfem & R Fe faerrent diferm / ] AR
Overall ceiling as per Act N.A.
(1) TS/ Weieeh / o] TS oh STl 3T U USeIeh 1< chifieh! eht UTisifieh
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD
EXl urftsiftren <At fereror FEEYUT HErh T Shifich
| Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Sl. no. Wgelt| huiufaa | Huwe | e (g T)
CEO | Company Secretary | CFO | Total (in lakhs)
REAiCRE]
1. Gross salary ) )
(&) TR AUl 1961 %1 8T 17 (1) ® ffed smaemi| 0.00 13.18 0.00 13.18
% ITTER I
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1)of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(@) STFeT U, 1961 1 ¥IRT 17(2) o T&d 37garv | 0.00 1.43 0.00 1.43
T H{A
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
() 3TRIERT ATUfTEH, 1961 T T 17 (3) o Ted 97 & | 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TaST H A
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
Wi o1 faehed / Stock Option IEI/NIL YEI/NIL| IE/NIL IE/NIL
3T 3T / Sweat Equity =/ I/NIL| TRI/NIL IE/NIL
NIL
4. HAYE / Commission I/ IRI/NIL| TE/NIL IRI/NIL
- AMFHY H FAH / - as % of profit NIL
- 37, ST FL / - others, specify...
2 371, ffde i wiferr ffer/ Yo 2 oftt foeiieeT o1 e | S/ 2:23| z=U/NIL 2.23
Others, please specify Employer contribution towards NIL
PF / Superannuation
6. &l / Total 16.85 16.85
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6.0 39 GHT A3

6.1 WWRH, Hag W SMEANSUA o USihd ehraierd
¥ raifad shut st fuselt @ H W d8dh
freaEm @

ot ot feien B p)
2018-19 28.09.2019 | TATE 11.45
2017-18 25.09.2018 | STRTET 1.00
2016-17 26.09.2017 | 3TRIET 5.00
6.2 SAHTT oY Sh ATfYeh TH THT d3eh St ARG, THT
T I

ST Y 70 o FNfieR 3T G SISk SMEIRETA( feAm)
fafads, gag o Usigrd swEed ¥ 21 faaw=), 2020 &1
T 1.00 T STHEA B |

7.0 AT YHUT ok WA

7.1 wERier e few o fonmet fode aftomei g
TR TAfT ERT T S 7 T S FRT STAIE feam
ST ®, T Gaiferd wemrger fam (Th) w1 g o
ST 2 | <ifh, ST Ue X Feltars, ot ©, 3
e GG FLHT hi STATIHT STUET o TR TAHT
T T S ST €

8.0 @O JIad

8.1 YRA & Fifafd oiam wiesh gRT SR i wxre fard
H hIE ATgaT TET § 3 e 3T weTerar wWiees g
TRk TRET ST YRS St TE & S ¥ 2019-20 F
foT REaTa i Thfera famdta faawor ¢ 39eh! forwforat
TEE 3 STATT % T Ger ¢

9.0 WAE & WA

9.1 & T8 GiTST JUFHIT o ic. HUTATeAp L o~ AT,
TToRT-ShTe T SAIT-3ATEe # R 7| SR wiie
FAYT- SAfET & I € 7R TGl § Haferd R Hid
AT TR 37eF T, STefa - i | R ¢ |

10.0 Weier =t e fageryor fad
10.1 SHIAR SHT ATATEI0T Te SEHT GTEAT

10.1.1 EARITA U q¢ T @1, T3 37ef Afpt
31 THIFT T ST el € | T Seqet gaet o fafs
PRI S AT, ¥ 3 frmie, frae v / fmfo
TN, 4T, TS e SE, Seiera (e, 3TIfe § STFRT ard
¥ | THTY ST o1 F1oaTe, et & 3 &1 o wre
Y fihaal § T2 g7 7| I MEET o gug §
THUHTHE & <hT ITH0T Y TeT ¥, THUHUAE &7 H B a1
SAR-weTd 4t LA o FOTe ot qUTfad a8 |
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6.0 General Body Meetings

6.1 The last three Annual General Meetings of the
Company were held at the registered office of the
Company at Prabhadevi, Mumbai as under:

Financial year Date Time
2018-19 28.09.2019 11.45a.m
2017-18 25.09.2018 1.00 p.m
2016-17 26.09.2017 5.00 p.m

6.2 Date, Time & Venue of the Current years AGM:

The 70th Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held on 21st September, 2020 at 1.00 PM at the
registered office of IREL (India) Ltd, Mumbai.

7.0 Means of Communication

7.1 Unaudited quarterly financial results are reviewed by the
audit committee and approved by the Board which are
furnished to the Administrative Department (AD). Since,
IREL is un-listed company, external communications are
made as required by the Government from time to time.

8.0 Audit Qualifications

8.1 There is no qualification in the Audit Report issued by
statutory auditor and Comptroller and Auditor General
of India has conducted the supplementary audit and
their Comments on the financial statements, standalone
and consolidated, for the year 2019-20 along with
management's reply thereof are annexed to the
accounts.

9.0 Plant Locations

9.1 Mining & Mineral Separation Plants are located at
Manavalakurichi - Tamil Nadu, Chavara — Kerala, and
Chatrapur - Odisha. The REEP plant is located at
Chatrapur- Odisha and the Rare Earths Division dealing
in chemicals is located at Aluva - Kerala.

10.0 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
REPORT

10.1 Business environment & Industry Structure

10.1.1 IREL produces beach sand minerals, rare earths
compounds and other chemicals. These find usage in
various end of the chain application like aviation, paints
& pigments, real estate/construction industry, metals,
petroleum industry, electronics, etc. IREL’s performance
is, therefore, closely linked to the fortunes of these
sectors of industry. As IREL has been nurturing the
MSME sector for a long time, the ups and downs in the
MSME sector too affects IREL’s performance.
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10.1.2 1G-SR o T g1 T, fae o emfeer ufigwr 2019 %
SN T 21 T ST gfig o grer o T T it
foam T, ST fU=er o & o # hH AT | Sk 2019
T fag S 1 9fg TThT 2.9% &1 TE, T8t YR &t
St gfig X off Jenfad g€ ST 2008-09 & g Tl
TR 5% {1 ST TEY & | A Bielt g8 gfeg T o1 o
AT, R T o fafsre Tea T STRY AT ST fored
HRT T T H A AT Feaqu o |

101,338 & oTeh T ST TSRS & @St
TIGHT0T T o YT o &7 ¥ feord €1 Sfauivis urd
T, A 7 Ti02 Tk AR | 70 feufd wstad & ot
3T T o Tern & e wiiifereh aeIRl % @
HEeAYUT TSI H I Teh ST I € |

10.1.4 U < @Y ATt 8- ey T fSani= ot 7 e off |
TTelifer, Thad ST 3T TN & & § WTeeh ©E ot AT
IH YT

10.1.5 9 & ST SeigaTe ST H ot TaT 31T SMESTRETe
TR ot FRAX fI5hT o W1 T AR bl HTEHT ST AT
I3 H & |

10.1.6 FITHATET & T 3TTaieh T THE STHIHT VAT TETT
T 7 T o IR G foRar 2

10.1.7 TTE T TG 7T o o7 ® U ITerem e # = Tel
IUA-JI & FHRUT TS o TSR H T F F Tohd
fier |

10.1.8 T 3 ERTT i~ 7 1 aTeit hIFGr o |7 T3 37ef
T FTSTX AT e |

10.1.9 TERY famTet o 3T H, ST a1ad AR} fedaw 2019
H o o qEH IId ¥ E 53 | TS & 999 & T 9% 9
o fafrer &t & Tt T ST R e o7y ufget <o St
T | AR ot Y A TE T@ T N HE WHER
I BTG -19 FETART T 3R @I o faT 71+ 2020
% 37T H TPATH 58 YE AT U7 | TSI T foeht
T THHT S TS U] Hifeh AT 2020 F i qame #
T T IACIN X 3THA a1 fohal ST FehT |

10.2 1R S mASRY

10.2.1 vifR

o TqIf wfeRa Tl Tiie TE ST STITENT & fow Iere

o ITIYA VIR, RF WIET T o HRUT walt 7afer §
T TR |

o Y3 o7f fTeHYuT S JUTHIUT T 4T K 97 T 3Nehed
TR

o IR T Wi S|

o T uforaTd FUATY ERT UTE AT SRS o
forT wwstTe wre=rar gfed g §

@

1
El
3

10.1.2 As the year went by the world economic, outlook was
revised downwards with GDP growth of major nations
during 2019 being lesser than the previous year. While
the world GDP growth reduced to 2.9% in 2019, India’s
GDP growth rate also taking a hit and going below 5%
for first time since 2008-09. To boost the sagging growth,
the Government of India had to come up with various
initiatives - the significant being reduction in corporate
tax rates.

10.1.3Bulk domestic consumers of limenite are located in
the vicinity of the Mineral Separation Plants of IREL.
On the international front, China has consolidated its
position in the TiO, pigment market and remains one
of the important markets along with other geographical
markets in Europe and Asia.

10.1.4 The demand for Zircon from a large consuming sector
— ceramics was low. However, demand from customer
segment in the refractories and chemical sector more
than made up for the same.

10.1.5 The welding electrode market in India stayed upbeat
and IREL was able to reap the benefit of this market
sentiment with sustained sales of Rutile.

10.1.6 Indian Steel industry which is major consumer of
refractories made from Sillimanite struggled during the
year.

10.1.7 The market for Garnet showed some signs of softening
as the last quarter of the year approached on account of
the ongoing turmoil in petroleum industry. The demand
seemed to shift from Coarse to finer variety with end-
users.

10.1.8 The rare earths market remained subdued with prices
gradually reducing during the course of the year.

10.1.9 At the end of the third quarter, Corona virus epidemic
started in Wuhan province of China in December 2019.
Within no time the same engulfed various regions of
China and then spread to many other western countries.
India was also not left unaffected and the Central
Government had to come up with nationwide lockdown
in end-March 2020 to curb the Covid-19 pandemic. This
had some impact on sales of IREL as orders on hand
in the last week of March 2020 could not be executed.

10.2 Strength and Weakness
10.2.1 Strength

b Established process flow sheet and products for niche
applications.

® Experienced manpower, skilled intervention over long
period due to being early starter.

M Only entity in the Country in the field of Rare Earth
extraction and processing.

° Established brand of products.

® Al processes are certified by QMS including NABL
accreditation for QC laboratories

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20
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g 1 wfafed o TETd FErTeTenst ¥ 3T UE & T
el |

HegH ST IGF ToF AT e ok hemesTer
o felg W gfem deammss|

* YT Y Hied |

o fer ST Wolg Yerd qoo 3R faamg |

Tfoes &9 T qATEL0T & 3T Tfoha |

g ufehan TyfH fafetor & o &, et W) o &l
I ST, SNfE o ATerH § et & o ferw U € |
G- WO ST FgU& T oo §@ar &l &, I &7 6
T ST HT SR |

10.2.2 ST

o W UM 3R FW Yo 1T IS G o HRUT et 3yafer
o qfETeT o @ |

%% Tt § RO Torer & HRoT foaRrae I |
Tag o ISR 1 I HTA § T ST b arel
QST o UTehiceh B oh & § 31f¥eh 1@ ohi Hgfe |

* W MIGHCHS TUTeh, Teha i 37¥ fagra, fafed et arer
BRT AT H a7 |

Hramsre ¥ Tauadt w1 fawr fiftg §1

< sepTea it offy T T et SHET
T ToT TEHRT GRT TUHHIRR ST Toof 3T 31T
ST & ST T g |

10.3 3TEET HT @A

10.3.1 3EET

THZ T o 1 @Sl (TCAT] @it ) o foremet % |
TiTSiT, T3 37ed 3K &1 U € & forw At we e
et fafire stefier &t & e gfis 1 Torer |

SHAe TR TSIl ol FE a0 I @isT (] Tfe)
3 frerifia werelf o @erm 1 eifard 2 |

Fonifere TR 31ef STHT I Feft FTTHTH STHT TUATHSTR §RT
fafmfra 21

T & ST S TR MRt S SueTear
3 37 TR & TR

9T H it Sugen T Tet St AT g o o s
LT o7 e |

STETEUSA & HT S o (AT TSI FIHRT ht &1 |

*  IMC FH UG F Y IR i Taeiear
TSHATHIT |
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° R&D support from reputed and eminent laboratories of
DAE.

° State Trading Enterprise for export canalization of BSM
and its value added products.

o Established business model.
o Ethical & robust core values and beliefs.
° Naturally environment friendly process.

° Process renders the area suitable for inhabitation by
way of reduction of background radiation, backfilling of
low lying areas, etc.

° Multiple element production are source of multifaceted
value chain, creation of avenue for industry sector.

10.2.2 Weaknesses

S Low volume and low value products with higher span of
operations due to mining.

O Legacy orientation due to continued operations from
years.

e Inhabitation tendency higher in area of natural
occurrence of minerals causing hinderance in obtaining
surface rights.

* Hindrance in operations by local inhabitants having low
emotional quotient, irrational blind beliefs, susceptible to
being misled by groups having vested interests.

® Expansion of MSP is prohibited in CRZ.

C Increasing expectation of private land owners in
southern units.

° Non-implementation of AMCR by respective State
Governments in true letter and spirit.

10.3 Opportunities and Threats
10.3.1 Opportunities

L Large reserves of Beach Sand Minerals (Atomic
minerals).

hd Performance enhancement quotient in various industrial
sectors providing avenues for minerals, Rare Earths
and R&D.

° Only Government Agencies are mandated to mine
Beach Sand Minerals (Atomic Minerals) and prescribed
substances.

° Potential Rare Earth deposits and all BSM deposits
regulated by AMCR.

° Availability of limited processing technologies and know
- how other than China.

d Central Government proposal for pre-mature termination
of private BSM mining leases in the country.

° Interest of State governments to associate with IREL.

° Alignment of market dynamics with availability of
product.
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10.3.2 @R

o FfAT -19 F FRU IR & fR1ET 3T MfT gt #
YT T 3TIET |

o HUHUH &7 &% G % FRUT G & 91 FAfed w@ef |

o T & H URATST STRY €1 o ShIUT HTehiceh STIraT /
o TELEE &1 GHIET |

e T SUHUH SHT T ST H O ¥ T8t 3¢ W famw /
TG HT faehTe |

o fF ITIRT / FfeRT0T H UREwd o faw STvi @St i
0T ST aTet TS §RT GH-G T ST4TE

o Mol sHEA § YR T Yo § R @i 9l o
i &

o YR 3refeerEen & e § A & U W IRE
3 ST &Y STEmd w7 BT |

o A AN AffeTg H St rafSTeh- T T8 |

o TIT ITEH, SRS IS Sy TRIRE FgE WS &

T TCA] WS &7 o o denfer STurer |
o AT ST &T9aT aTel 3U-STEH T Goi |
10.4 G@e-91 1 SAE-GR HoaeT

10.4.1 9% G 3T Q@i (FTHTH) IcdTeeh! & e giar oK ¥,
TAEE AR W T IG ¢ | LRI & fow of
TS T AU a1 G371 € | SHAISE 7 467 TR
Y 3fereh FUTTA T R H TN 72% HT A AT
T o HaH H, SRS T ANTSH T 46% T |

10.4 23TEARECA § Aequd Ht T I3 It § ot
ESGEIEHE a’?\ﬂ(’llql wclged, Fﬂ{cth, R‘l("'l"HSd, ‘llxd,%m
37ef e WiST 3T hToR I Iaet € |

10.4 35THTR ot faent § SRS I ST 1Y T 88% hT
AT /T, STafeh 39 12% B TGEA1 &1 ANe @

10.4.4TiO2 JTRT ST LRI o SIS T THE 3ifam-
It €, ST ST A § Ao TEd §¢ HH AT
7T fRer e

10.4 5T 3T TR T SEAETS & Torea | IeH
T 26% AT | 3 IAG! ol T&A § T 9T H TITHTTS
&7 T TEe S foif, foReS, BEE s
SRR I hitered o ST ¥ STFIT foram STTem © 37K
GE T AfceT Tl 1S o STG o Tt START foralm STrem
7

10.4.6 STTESTTETSA T a8 & S THe AT feiamEe T 3tfue
S feam & | 59 foom & 31 yaret § 3 @ & e
TEC W B AT 10% T 15% TS # ANTGH §aT |

N
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10.3.2 Threats

® Expected market downturn and supply chain disruption
due to Covid-19.

b Vested interest created over period of time due to
opening up of BSM sector.

° Prone to natural calamities/ high maintenance as
operations are in coastal areas.

® Development of Habitation/ Occupation over virgin BSM
deposits before harnessing.

M Lack of coordination by state holding the mineral leading
to change in the land use/classification.

° Gradual depletion of heavy mineral content in beach
washings at southern units.

O Globalization of Indian economy leading to reduced tariff
for imports and removal of trade barriers.

© Complex Socio-political issues in Kerala and Tamil
Nadu.

% Statutory compliances for Atomic Mineral sector similar
to conventional major minerals viz; iron ore, bauxite etc.

ol Generation of by-products having limited market

potential.

10.4 Segment-wise or Product-wise performance

10.4.1For Beach Sand Mineral (BSM) producers world
over, limenite is usually the main product. For IREL
too limenite continues to be the mainstay. limenite
contributed to about 72% of sales of over 467 thousand
tons of BSM. In value terms, limenite’s contribution was
about 46 %.

10.4.2IREL has a unique basket of BSMs which includes
Rutile, Zircon, Sillimanite, Garnet, Rare Earth bearing
mineral and Leucoxene besides limenite.

10.4.3The sales of BSM contributed 88 % to the revenue kitty
of IREL with chemicals contributing the balance 12 %.

10.4.4The TiO2 industry that is the major end-user of IREL’s
limenite was more or less stable with demand keeping
pace with supply.

10.4.5Zircon and Rutile’s contribution to IREL’s revenue was
about 26 %. These products are mainly consumed by
the MSME sector in India with the former being used
in production of Ceramics, Refractories, Foundry and
Zirconium Chemicals and the later for production of
welding electrodes.

10.4.6IREL has also given more thrust on Garnet and
Sillimanite during the year. The concerted efforts in this
direction resulted in these minerals contributing to 15%
of the revenue from about 10% in the earlier year.
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10.4.7THTE Y 37 faIght 3hT 31% 1 ATAT o feTT 3T T iferar
H fafarerr o o S8vd § T ot Rt ) SR 37 o foe
ST S TATET T FTRIER SETaT ST Tk € |

10.4.83TET o A W, SEANEUA 3qT SAGHA 3HhTE |
TSI & TS T TATaXT Farelt Tepfa 3K Temer &
foT weufa o 9 & 91 30% TF TG H TEH 7 T4
¢ | 7 STUHuH T 3= T IeuTe oy et # gfig o
FHRET § Y T o |

10.5 ufgya

10.5.1 feHaT 2019 7 <9 ¥ Y& g Fifag -19 AEMRT 7 T
T o1 IR foa 7 | Sfger wifag 19 T SREEERE ¥
3T &ifer ot AferTault ST Sge Afvehet § | BTelifeh,
Tg STTHM AT T 2, 5 Sifrchier yq@ ereforaensit
I 2020 TH 3T Fohel B SATE (ST & TF
JHTE BT - FSTHE A7 &7 YT BN | AR Rt
I % ITIAM T TIHR, WA ST AT BT Fo it
¥ wgdl referawen § ¥ T T@1 §, 2020-21 % SN
THRTAS STt gfg 3@ & fow 3R 21 39 feufa =
T 3 o o arfaes T9Te 3T 31afy o1 39 are
T STTH AT I8 GRehel € |

10.5.2 TETHIR T Tt e T TafafeEt i arg, HRY,
AT, ITHTHT FEIST M MAvIh T&IAT HT AT
quTfare fordm © ST STESTRETS o IcTE ol HITT o =ITefeh
gl

10.5.3 SMESTRETSA Tt qod FGel o T See Sfar Ireft o
3T & et gfg Tohet ] 3TE | 9fg § fFehear §
Taifed 7 | STferchier fare sreferawensii & Tohe TR 3T
% gfg & &9 § %W T A1 & U o A TRRIHSE g
T ITAM 2, Frehe-orafyr 1 ufigea sEeEe & fau
IR Tat e 2 |

10.5 .4 3TETRSTA o &Teh T ST ATeh W1 o STEUT
g7 ¥ fer € | 7% 9% oy € 519 W s eTREuet 2020-
21 ¥ fRa forshl o foTw =TT T T@T © | < 37 ST
T T SR, F SHI1g -19 T F T I T ¢ |
T ASIRT § A fuiies T | e (T, st s,
THIEFR), A (ot te Zftem) St 3ifam s
STSTRY T 3Tk €1 ¥ 3Tferch T o Tehall € SHleh 2020
& ToTT 37 ST o FoTq Tehrreneh foehTel o1 A € | 78
TERT & TSR &I & 999 | geIfad wW (Tio, /
SR) / T fHTeT) 3 Sk UG, FEd STaret
TRETT T JHGH & FHaT B |

10.5.5 TIT5ET / IehTeRd I ohT ST fceT SIS o SdTad oh
o fomam St € - et e, tfarmea, fmir / foaer
TR §F W 9 " T FTER0T ST | $HeR ST,
THUHUHE Y T | 3 Sce) kT ferhT o fow 71 &t
feufa ¥ forg T ST /1 €, 9% +ff Aecgel g |
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10.4.7Higher sales of Chemicals to the tune of 31% in volume
can be attributed Company’s efforts to lay emphasis
on sale of Chemicals aimed at diversifying the product
portfolio.

10.4.8On the production front, IREL has been able to step up
the production of minerals by about 30 % at its OSCOM
unit after receipt of environment clearance and consent
to operate. This was one of the factors for increased
sales of BSM and higher revenue generation.

10.5 Outlook

10.5.1The Covid-19 pandemic that started from China in
December 2019 has engulfed the entire world. It is
very difficult to predict economic damage from global
COVID-19 novel coronavirus. However, it is predicted,
most major economies will see a loss of the value in
their gross domestic product (GDP) over 2020 — thus
ushering in recession. As per the RBI estimate, India
which has been one of the fastest growing economy in
the world, is set to see a negative GDP growth during
2020-21. The actual impact and the duration for the
situation to normalize is very difficult to gauge at this
juncture.

10.5.2The pandemic has affected infrastructure activities and
demand for housing, cars, travel, consumer goods
and essentials which are drivers of demand for IREL’s
product.

10.5.3The end of the value chain products of IREL are
lifestyle products whose growth is closely co-related
to the growth in GDP. With GDP growth of most of the
world economies being forecast to be negative for at
least a year or so, the near-term outlook does not look
encouraging for IREL.

10.5.4IREL’'s bulk domestic ilmenite customers are located
in the vicinity of the plants. This is the advantage on
which IREL is banking on for sustained sales in 2020-
21. China and Japan which are the major markets
have almost recovered from the Covid-19 impact.
The demand from these markets would be crucial.
The end application markets like Paints (construction,
automobile, infrastructure), Aviation (travel & tourism),
may take longer to recover as there are negative growth
projections for these industry for 2020. This would impact
the markets of the buyers (TiO,/SR/Slag producers) in
the long run and consequently, take a toll on optimistic
outlook presented.

10.5.5Rutile/Leucoxene are used for producing welding
electrodes — impact on infrastructure, automobile,
construction/real estate sector will determine the
demand. Further, major customers are MSME. How this
sector copes up with the situation will also be crucial for
sales of these products.




s (e fafies

IREL (India) Limited

10.5.6 SToRT o1 Te-gor Y arufa fafasha, Tradier 3T

FTEET SN AT THTHTAE &7 | & 3T 377 / vt
R aga 3fferer frlt € S hifae -19 Hem@RT & T9e &
S H Aferen g W G B |

10.5.7 BRaEIST fafarei o faeiaTse Ug-IT 97Ha w2 3am

T 9ga 3ffeer flk @ S g e o sffammamee
e it s €, forgent aftgyd 31 arer 9 & forn
TR § | Wit I Tet ¥ & a5 & ff & 7
3R 3 TIE G0 o U SicdTe ot Savgehar &
iR

10.5.8 TSk 3T TS AT H ST AT o HI-T1Y e

Tfafafert o SReT 7 ¥ 9 e & SRoT Sgifeem
ST IS | ST el o TROTHEEY (09 5
B T €| 3H T HhT G S TS T A T IS
Fifeh $9 S HT TTG STHHT T2 fera™ S 7 | el
o o UM ST SaR § ST areft T3) 1ef &t A
1 TH YRHa TAare o Y ThRIcHS ®9 F Tifad
forar e |

10.5.9 STHETEA, HeIAX SIad, T1E ®F, fagfia anfe

10.5.1

10.5.1

Tt L3R 37ef AT T ored o oy g Sifm T
T | Tl AR 3 37 3ifed swfedi § § Stferenist o farsht
T SET IRl H AU @Y Ht GUET & TTEH Tt eI
Ifer & S o1 At g # Frifefim, feifeam siic
3 k1A Yo ot o feaw e AT BT wfTeren ©
T3 (FCC), 3Tal ISRk, HTqehH, TARHT T
T o7ef T AT TR AR STfaH STANT o ST hifag
-19 TS § 916X 3T H fereh THT T |

0 T TLH 3 TAYE fefa § fue o fo g arg
LIS TN T Tkt oTehT 31TE € | T8 IHAIE bt STt @ foh
FET T TAM TR TN HT FS Gl J&M HLM | 3T
I T IEII faferer writfaer 3 anforforer weeit
TR SATCHMST H S et faem & e @ @I
LA T IR § fafersr woriferen 3T anforfSres
TRl gRT SRR Ya 1 =t fawm & Frrer < &1
T HTH 3T TR SMUR T Y % AT arefarey Wi &
TAH & T H AT G THUHUAE B & 9T HiohT ®9
TR

| 3TN o ST o AT 7T =ITeteh ! o o eaffgear
I TehTTeen SBehI0T o hIOT,TE Y STEINITA o
forw &g =Rifel frafor st ofi ifae -19 wemrd &
TS i &H T S GUT YT T T HA o [T HIAT
HeH 33T R

@

1
El
3

10.5.6 End-user segment of Zircon viz. Ceramics, Refractories

and Foundry industry are mostly in MSME sector
and are heavily reliant on housing/real estate sector,
infrastructure, Steel industry and Automobile industry
which are likely to take longer to recover from the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic.

10.5.7Sillimanite end-use segment of Refractory manufacturers

is heavily dependent on steel industry which relies on
infrastructure and automobile industry whose outlook is
negative for the coming year. Steel industry is already in
a very bad shape and may require stimulus for smooth
operations.

10.5.8The petroleum industry is in doldrums due to drastic

drop in demand resulting from sharp reduction in
road and air traffic as well as economic activities. The
unmanageable prices are resulting in shutdown of rigs.
This phenomenon will have direct bearing on demand
for Garnet as petroleum industry is the major consumer
of this product. Even the demand for rare earths that go
in the fuel cracking catalyst will be impacted negatively
with reduced refining activity.

10.5.9Rare Earth Magnets used in Automobiles, Consumer

Durables, Smart Phones, Windmill, etc. are major end-
use application for rare earths. The sales of most of
these end of the chain markets are likely to see double
digit reduction, this includes EV market that is a potential
demand driver for Neodymium, Praseodymium and
other magnetic rare earths in times to come. Demand
for rare earths from Petroleum (FCC), Auto catalyst,
Metallurgy, Polishing industry will stay subdued as the
end-use industry would take longer to come out from the
Covid-19 impact.

10.5.10 The Government of India has come out with a ¥ Twenty

Lakh Crore package to tackle the unprecedented
situation. It is expected that the same will provide
some succor to the industry at large. IREL on its part
is contributing towards Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan
by various strategic and commercial initiatives. The
Company is also actively engaging with the MSME
segment considering this customer base as the real
demand driver for the nation.

10.5.11 Due to the uncertainties and negative outlook for

demand drivers for IREL’s products, the year would
throw many challenges for IREL and the Company is
taking steps to minimize the impact of the Covid-19
pandemic to the best possible extent.
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HU H UH P IR AT JOeA HSE € SN
AN @l e GARIE, ol qher gffa ek
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0T Y g ot Fat PR et ®, S
it 0T ST QTR feha i it 31X SeTaeiierdr
R Tk ST 3T 3 Seme <ar 7| SR o
TOET fGUTT o7 ST 3R ST er@mieT afbfa g
STTHITCT TRATRIET =1 ¥ foram T 7 |

T 2019-20 F A, AT T THERT FRT TET
frard =t gt o o fog efffee &t ¥ fFafia w0 9
S3oh SIS ot | 3fifee QfHfa ol o 3Tidiier s
STTER0T o TG ST THTegTeTem oht off Fefvem shie € |
TR 3T TSI =279 1 Hofd 3 1 fawm & gere fvig
gferar GrAfaa s o o 91fes o1 foega Sreameiiet Hisle
| era wive gt 3 oy fareror yoredt, e Sft
3T gfehanati T STIUTCH, U=t ERT UIGH St ST aTet
foreier foraron W 3ok foa ot 9t T o fo st o
Fifaferss oram Therent § off 93 1 |

10.7 ULTHT shrdfaoeT @ Hafer fasie shrafreneT
T 5=t

10.7.199% 1 foqmes

af % SR, HET T T 1095.23 FUS FT F ToRa
TS %, 402.94 TS &1 HT T4 AT (FaliaT) oref fomam |
ST o TSI H 34.12 % Tk 1 IE g8 ¢ | T TG o
() & fret o & o 7 100.85% ot gfs T&F €7
Y I+ AT F FRUTEE @ |

10.7.2 ST & TSI

I & SR, TE T el TR %, 1,038.74 RIS T
ST et o ot et § 34.95% I 31ferck € 1 e fareht &
48.26% TR 3T 51.74% fata grEfaa g
10.7.3 oY 9ZTd A1
9§ & <A S HT T 74T oy T a9 w0
117.52 S T TAMH %, 291.76 FHIS TET|
10.7 .4 ATHIST
3Tk FRRTRT 3 9 2019-20 % AT ifa amwier & &7
H ¥ 22.53 IS &1 fqwiier &1 €1 fawia 9 2019-20
F R SO TESl ST I T, 65.00 FHUS T THRT
T SART AT BT YA fmar T 2| 59 TR, o
2019-20 % T Fel AU E. 87.53 FS ¢ |
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10.6 Internal control systems and their adequacy

There exists an efficient internal control system in
the company and Internal audit function continuously
monitors the efficacy of internal financial controls with
the objective of providing to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors, an objective and reasonable
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Organization’s control and governance processes. The
scope and authority of the internal audit department is
derived from the audit charter approved by the Audit
Committee.

During the year 2019-20, the Audit Committee met
regularly to review reports submitted by the Internal
Auditors. Audit Committee also reviews adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
environment. Detailed delegation of power exists to
ensure smooth decision-making process towards
approving revenue and capital expenditure. Audit
committee also met the company’s statutory auditors to
ascertain their views on financial statements, including
the financial reporting system, compliance to accounting
policies and procedures, the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal control systems followed by the Company.

10.7 Discussion on financial performance with respect to
operational performance

10.7.1 Overall performance

During the year, the company recorded total revenue of
Rs. 1095.23 Crore and profit before tax (PBT) of Rs.
402.94 Crore. Company’s revenue has increased by
34.12%. Improvement in PBT by 100.85% as compared
to previous year was mainly on account of higher
revenue.

10.7.2 Revenue from Operations

During the year, total revenue from operations was Rs.
1,038.74 Crore which is 34.95% more than the previous
year. Total sales comprise of 48.26% domestic and
51.74% from export.

10.7.3 Profit after tax

Profit after tax of the Company during the year was
Rs. 291.76 Crore as against Rs. 117.52 Crore in the
previous year.

10.7.4 Dividend

Your Directors have recommended Rs. 22.53 Crore
as Final Dividend for the year 2019-20. Earlier Interim
Dividend amounting to Rs. 65.00 Crore has been paid
to the shareholders during the financial year 2019-20.
Thus, the total dividend for the year 2019-20 is Rs.
87.53 Crore.
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10.8

CRICEIC O ER

TEYE = U fagemr RO & ey SRt IS S 9Tt
el faewor Smferd § | ot JISTT o g i
TR T8l ¢ Tondl © HAife ardfaes st fafus
! & HRUT AT &1 Fehel © ST Jae AT 31 HROT
& o Fraaor G R 2 | ot STesf faawoll o Gay § ohrs
fSTeeRY &Y ofet € ST °1e o fordlt off TR, e
T AT T SR T IRafId Bt Fohat & |

11.0 THSAT FOT (TAST)

11.1

AT 7 T Sl AT (ETE), WRA WK & Gref
2019-20 o feTT Fwehar Fro g&atia fopar g e frser

A oot T THeiy 3T 59 R 7
w fariar ad ey e
Eereo))
1 2019-20 SHE ()
2 2018-19 IFY
3 2017-18 S0
11.2 =1 fa o 2019-20 & SR U T THIAF AT

“Iepy” () B

10.8 Cautionary statement:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report
contain forward looking statements describing the
Company’s plan. The Company cannot guarantee the
implementation of plan as the actual implementation
may differ due to factors which are beyond the control
of Management or for other reasons. The Company
assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking
statements which may undergo change on the basis of
any subsequent developments, information or events.

11.0 MOU
11.1 The Company has signed MoU for 2019-20 with

Department of Atomic Energy (DAE), Government of
India and MoU ratings for the previous 3 years are as
follows:

SI. No. | Financial Year MoU ratings

1 2019-20 Excellent (Provisional)
2 2018-19 Excellent

) 2017-18 Excellent

11.2 The Company’s MoU rating is “Excellent” (Provisional)

during the current financial year 2019-20.
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Email:sjshah40@hotmail.com
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To,

The Members

IREL (India) Limited

Plot No. 1207, ECIL Bldg., Opp: Siddhivinayak Temple,
Veer Savarkar Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400028

| have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by IREL (INDIA) LIMITED (hereinafter referred
as “the Company”) for the year ended 31 March, 2020 as
stipulated in the ‘Guidelines on Corporate Governance for
Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010, vide Notification
No. 18(8)/2005-GM, dated 14" May 2010, issued by
the Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Heavy
Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India
(hereinafter referred as “Guidelines”). The Company is a
non-listed CPSE and hence the conditions stipulated in
Listing Obligations & Disclosure requirements (LODR),
which deals with compliance of the provisions of Corporate
Governance, are not applicable to the company.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the management. My examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated
in above mentioned guidelines. It is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
company.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according
to the explanations given to me, | certify that the Company
has generally complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance to the extent applicable as stipulated in the
guidelines except as mentioned in the “Annexure A” to this
Certificate.

| further state that such compliance is neither assurance as
to the future viability of the company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

Mrs. Shashikala Shah
Company Secretary

M. No.: ACS 6131

C.P.No.: 1305

UDIN: A006131B0006738814

Mumbai
8" Sept., 2020

Place:
Date :
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Stfelch &
ANNEXURE A
3. w. | GWe* PICEIC] fewfurai
Sr. No. | Clause* Provisions Observations
1. |313 THR / 3 Giees g e fhe U ifid | SR g s o e i feement @t e
frenl 9 e tfienad & 0% & QfFd & |[dH T R
The number of Nominee Directors appointed by | The number of Nominee Directors appointed by
Government/other CPSEs shall be restricted to|the Government has been three which includes
maximum of two. one Nominee Director from the Administrative
Department i.e. Department of Atomic Energy.
2. 3.14

I W Wik % AmA A
Wi TSt & gellag QR o SrRIET steae
o1 geliag GNETE %) 91 % HH U HH T fiwrs
e Wi s e =g |

In case of all other CPESs (i.e. listed on Stock
Exchange but without an. Executive Chairman or

not listed CPESs), at least one — third of the Board
Members should be independent Directors.

(a

A &% Gl & A H HUH &% |18 H wWad
fAeeTenl o1 sTuferd dea enfire 2 ot |
The composition of the Board Members did not

comprise of requisite number of Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company.

* ST A sTer & 3TH o felt ARk Ty W fegmtaesT, 2010

*Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010

Place:
Date :

LEH

08 fgam@, 2020

Mumbai

8t Sept., 2020

fwret FTfSTeReT I

hUAT wiae

.9, THTd 6131

i €. 1305

UDIN: A006131B000678814

Mrs. Shashikala Shah
Company Secretary

M. No.: ACS 6131

C.P.No.: 1305

UDIN: A006131B000678814
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Ter I o TUM A . FeawsH, M W w1 e affd

% A wfaffy A & aqfiees, Teras WA (Sefagehe) T T T ()

% WY, AT 9 R TSR TS A (@@ 3w, e, | 2015 1 2016

a9 A 3K @ gean et (DGMS) =t sufefa \ _

t=1 W%Wmﬁ ﬁmmﬁmww National Safety Awards (Mines)
T &L g .o ,

Shri N. Selvarajan, Head, MK Unit and Shri T Velupillai,
Assistant Foreman (Electrical), workmen representative
in Unit level Safety Committee, are seen receiving the
National Safety Award from Hon’ble Vice President of India
Shri M. Venkaiah Naidu in the presence of Minister of State
for Labour & Employment (Ind. Charge), Secretary, Ministry of
Labour and Directorate General of Mines Safety (DGMS)

CSIR FouNl‘;:::r:;rom:i13 DAY ot g fig, duwet, SRSt 26 fadex, 2019 W
| | IMEATETHS - HITH IS T feaq T SFIeh! bl Halfera

CSIR-dnstituts of Winerals & W
Shri D. Singh, CMD, IREL addressing to the scientists at IIMT-
CSIR Foundation day on 26th September, 2019

TS FHovE HaX § WR WHT 2019 T AT T g A
& fog, diurel, SEeTETa |

Shri D. Singh, CMD, IREL inaugurating Star Summit 2019 at
DAE Convention Centre

1. 1% o, FRyTe, et oK o o Sfwar
% 1o (UASY, ReTaTe H SR 1 o Sexme o &
Tee HfeTegt o Tt 4t s g, Wuwel, TSRt

Shri D. Singh, CMD, IREL with Dr. D.K. Sinha, Director,
AMD and other Dignitaries with Management Trainees
in Inaugural Session of Orientation Course at AMD,
Hyderabad
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(o v W W) | (A Govt. of ndia Undurtaking)

‘b wEaTen (¢fs) s p@ IREL (Indlmzedﬁi?:bﬂw

) IREL(India) Limited
5 S Huret, AL 27 FFH, 2020
Vigilance Awareness Week - 2020 VIGILA_NCE AWASSSRRIEEK | =1 e sreer e T o
Celebrations o e
Theme: } - s
WWW i - A ™ - CMD, IREL inaugurating Vigilance

il : ik . | I i Awareness Week Celebration and
Viglant India, Prosperous India M el o8 "ﬂ Employees taking Pledge on 27th Oct,

T o 210200 >M.s ! ° IS 2020

MESTE e FerT faTet 2quT ol HaTg SUGhH X TISTHTT
ST T S TR [CehR I fopdT TaT |

IREL House Magazine Viral Darpan conferred Protsahan
Puraskar by Mumbai PSUs Town Official Language
Implementation Committee.

St ATy yEre, wu ey (@S orer W dae-
IV) 3TEETS FHiARe e | O a0 & I afs
SAfeeRTRET o AT ST e U |

Shri Amitabh Prasad, Principal Director (Commercial Audit
Board-1V) interacting with the senior executives during his visit
at IREL corporate office.

At 3. T. T, T&T TRIaHS (ST T8 SHaar fashme),
IR el | SIS R S ST o ey e
T T TE o I3k | SITE Hiaffred & 9o & &7
H o e |

Shri R. A. Khale, CGM (S & BD), IREL participated as a
member of DAE delegation in 3rd Joint Working Group
meeting between India and Japan held in Tokyo.
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On the Occasion of Hindi Pakhwada, Shri D. Singh, CMD

addressing the Employees and giving awards to the
Winners online.

HRE e | ST afee oo FaRE & eXF T
ISR hrdiehd STt TSTE SIeaeiend & 9 ‘Ul a8
e’ 39 faua W T 97|

Asession on ‘The Role Vs. Soul’ with Mrs. Rajshri Belvalkar,
A Social Transformer during International Women’s Day
Celebration at Corporate Office
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A T TR, TeohTei fevre (@hHien)) fadier 5 T,
2019 T At TS FAR, G 9= (TTES T T a9 2018-19
% feTT TXAI] Sstl TSTHTT ShrA-ar 39 fosiar [Whr a1
A T

Shri A.K. Mohapatra, the then Director (Technical) receiving
Atomic Energy Official Language Implementation Runner

up Award on 5th November, 2019 from Shri Sanjay Kumar,
Joint Secretary (A & A) for the year 2018-19

ST § Ty feorg gumie

Republic Day celebrations in IREL
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MRS A farsy yteuT foaw wuiE

World Environment day celebrations in IREL

ISR H gl TGS GARIE

Swachhta Pakhwada Celebrations in IREL
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qgiayl gq dsntre e
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13 Reei-110002

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT
ENVIRONMENT & SCIENTIFIC DEPARTMENTS
A.G.C.R. BUILDING, L.P. ESTATE
NEW DELHI-110002

DGA(ESD)/EA/S8/IREL /2020212 4 Dated 2] 10120 2°

dar o,

The Chairman & Managing Director,

IREL (India) Limited

Plot No. 1207, ECIL Bldg, Veer Savarkar Marg
Opp. Siddhivinayak Temple,

Prabhadevi, Mumbai-400 028

fawa: sma & Praem v wgdes o @ et affe 2013 & Fqete 143 (6)(@)
% 3@ IREL (India) Limited & 31 &1d 2020 #f woread af & AR @& w
fecaforar

AR,
9 U9 & 1Y, FFEET HTRE 2013 & 339 IREL (India) Limited & 31 &rd 2020
# AT a¥ ¥ Consolidated Td Standalone fafoa @Wrdl, 9T wHOMGT S5 & T £l

PUA FH I A el Hre o Far Y

E AR

Horer: Fgiy o

E A ma%j
Helies orEradeT
(FETaReT ve dsniaE fasm)

GYHIY / Phone : +91-11-23403650 %aq / Fax : +91-11-23702353
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31 HTe 2020 h! GATE 94 & fow enSemEue (feam)
fafies & Weere fawa faawon ot shat srfafaem,
2013 TRt &RT 143 (6)(W@) o Salq WA o D@TEAh
TS URTETULereh ahi femfur |

HE Afufrem 2013@EfufEw) & dead fruifa fada
fifdT T@T o UK 31 A9 2020 T FAT a9 o g
AN (5 e e & Weere o fqewott &1 dar
FIT T ITEIA T % FaweT &7 arm & | fufrm &t
¥R 139 (5) & Ted YR o ol (&9 T8 FRTei@muies
TR T wifafyer cramiees STt st &rT 143(10) &
Ted FUifia ST@TadET o "l o SR WA AETaie &
MR T AR T URT 143 & e faxi foaon w ™
T 3Tfreafth o felw STRErt €10 7 | QT 3R gRT 37U ek
3 [T 2010 T @I RTd & ST S T |

Y, 9T o G T8 FRTeraTiee Sht 3K ¥ sifufem
T YT 143(6)(3F) o q&d 31 ATE 2020 I FATT a9 b [T
smeTdue fean) fafes & Weemn faxia faoron &t
TTIX TG T € | T9F 31 W 2020 T GO I8 &
fU SRR TSHIA fAfe s o faw faawel &t ST
TRETAET 1 € | TETE, H T it 3 71 a1 Fifafereh eramaierent
it Fgfee &1 € 37 7 &) 59 ShTE 1 ST SRETaieT i & |
T T Gl T WfATHeh @l qieeh] o hIHehTST o
SIS e T o faT T &9 § ferar 7 ® 3 e
Tifafere oI wieeht ST U=t & H1ET ¥ T TS IBATS 3T
TR RehTs! # & o o1 SIaTcHeh TET ek T & |

R STIX Tl WET o MR W, & Sifufem 7 omy 143
(@) (@) % TEd W A & 3 g Ffafad meweyel amwet
ISR SHTAT = 3T 517 7L foame o fgarott ofT Haifera
T O ot 3Test e W gHeH o fau steves ©
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIAN RARE EARTH
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of standalone financial statements of Indian
Rare Earth Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility
of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/
anditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under section 139 (5) are responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 3rd July 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have conducted a supplementary audit of the standalone
financial statements of Indian Rare Earth Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors
and is limited primatily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and
company personnel and a selective examination of some of
the accounting records.

Based on my supplementaiy audit, | would like to highlight the
following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act
which have come to my attention and which in my view are
necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related audit report:
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Sl
No.

C&AG Comments

Managements’ Reply

Comments on Balance Sheet

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Capital Work in Progress (Note-4): Rs. 3,916.43 lakh

The Company awarded (August 2019) a work for
construction of solid waste trench at a cost of Rs. 239.31 lakh
for capacity of 1500 m3+ As on 31 March 2020 around three
fourth part of the work was completed and an amount of
Rs. 170.36 lakh was accounted as capital work in progress.
Out of capital work in progress, company utilized and filled
capacity of 400 m3 in trench with solid waste during 2019-
20. But did not make provision for proportionate diminution
in value of capital work in progress amounting to Rs. 63.82
lakh which is also in contravention of company’s accounting
policy 1.4. This has resulted in overstatement of capital
work in progress by Rs. 63.82 lakh and overstatement of
profit for the year by the same amount.

Further company had awarded (July 2018) a work for
construction of solid waste trench at a cost of Rs. 200.82
lakh for capacity of 1500 m3. Against actual cost of Rs.
230.67 lakh capacity of 700 m3 was utilized in 2018 - 19
(proportionate amortization Rs. 107.47 lakh) and remaining
800 m3in 2019 - 20 (proporiionate amortization Rs. 123.20
lakh). A reference is invited to para 42 of Ind AS 8 which
states that an entity shall correct material

prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial
statements approved for issue after their discovery by restating
the comparative amounts for the prior period presented in
which the error occurred. Thus diminution in value of capital
work in progress in 2018-19 amounting to Rs. 107.47 lakh
charged in financial statements of 2019 - 20 has resulted in
non- compliance of Ind AS 8.

The Audit observation is pertaining to two nos. of solid
trenches having capacity 1500cum each.

(1) The work of the first trench was started in 2018-19 and
completed in 2019-20 at value of Rs. 230.67 lakh. The
proportionate value to the quantities filled up (700cum during
2018-19 & 800cum during 2019-20) is Rs. 107.47 lakh and
Rs. 123.20 lakh respectively. Audit observation, in this
regard is, Rs. 107.47 lakh would have been booked under
prior period expenses instead of fully charged to current year
account. (2) The work of the 2" trench which was placed at
cost of Rs. 293.31 lakh, 71% (valuing Rs.170.36 lakh) was
completed during 2019-20 and balance is expected to be
completed by Oct’ 2020. Since 400 cum filled during 2019-
20, Audit observed that proportionate amount of Rs. 63.82
lakh should have been capitalized and amortized during
2019-20.

Management contention in this regards is :-

a) Value of trenches can only be capitalized when the work
pertaining to the trench is completed and it can’t be
capitalized in part in compartment due to its nature of
construction and operation.

b)As per accounting policy para no - 1.9, prior period expense
is recognized only when any expenditure arising in current
year as a result of errors or omission exceeding Rs. 10 lakh
or 1% of operating revenue whichever is higher.
Since Rs. 107.47 lakh is within the 1% limit, the same is not
recognized as prior period expenses. Based on the above,
the amount of Rs. 230.67 lakh was capitalized and amortized
/ depreciated during 2019 - 20 and Rs. 63.82 lakh was not
booked as expenditure for the year.
However, management shall review and make changes
in the present Accounting policy in view of providing
for expenditures in this regard. In order to account the
expenditure in the year in which the activity of solid waste is
dumped in the trenches is being made.

Current Assets

Financial Assets

Other Current Financial Assets (Note-16) : Rs. 4,791.72
lakh

The above includes claims receivable of Rs.513.24 lakh
towards reprocessing losses of minerals recoverable from
a private party which had gone into arbitration against the
company. The arbitration award (13 March 2020) restrict the
claim of company on private party to Rs. 362.10 lakh. Till
the adoption of financial statement by Board of Directors,
Company had not filed appeal against the award.

Thus recovery of balance claims recoverable is doubtful
of recovery and company should have made provision for
the same in books. Non-provisioning for claims doubtful
of recovery has resulted in overstatement of other current
financial assets and profit for the year by Rs.151.14 lakh.

1. Provision of Rs 151.14 Lakh was not created as decision
of Arbitration is under scrutiny by Company and limitation
period for arbitration award (dated 13" March 2020) has not
expired till signing of Financial Statement of the Company.

2. In view of Lockdown, Supreme Court had given decision to
effect “In case the limitation has expired after 15.03.2020,
then the period from 15.03.2020 till the date on which the
lockdown is lifted in the jurisdictional area where dispute
lies or where cause of action arises shall be extended for
a period of 15 days after lifting of lockdown”.

3. Further M/s OSL aggrieved by the arbitration award
has intimated that they prefer appeal in higher forum
challenging the same.

IREL assures that applicability of Provisions under IND AS

37 will be reviewed in 2020-21.
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HFETLTHT ot 3T B | YT T ST ATl Tty & a9 & 39 qeh T i AreHT off |

B |Comment on Statement of Profit and Loss Account The provisioning of expenses not considered in financial

Expenses
Other Expenses (Note-33): Rs. 26,983.61 lakh

The above does not include Rs. 41 lakh being the cost of
backfilling and leveling of the mined out area. This also
resulted in understatement of current provisions for liabilities
by overstatement of profit for the year by same amount.

statements estimated to be Rs. 41/-lacs pertains to dozing
& levelling work to be carried out in Standing Mining Plants
(SMP) at Oscom of 37.01 Acres. The actual cost of the
activities can be ascertained only on completion of the
mining by SMP’s.

Since the amount of expenditure estimated was not
considered material, hence was planned to be booked in the
year of the activity being undertaken.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of
IREL (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, the profit and total
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs).
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAlI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters:

1. Note number 27 to the financial statements regarding
the rate per kg. adopted for estimation of revenue
in regard to compensation / processing charges for
Nuclear Grade Ammonium Di-uranate (NGADU). The
company receives these charges from Government of
India (GOI) for the NGADU processed by it. The rates
for such processing are determined by the GOI taking
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into consideration various factors, including level of
output, actual cost incurred etc. As mentioned in the
note although the amount claimed is higher than the
rate at which the revenue is estimated, the rate of Rs.
13,557/- (which was approved for F.Y. 2010-11) has been
consistently taken for initial estimation from F.Y. 2010-
11 to F.Y. 2019-20, since the approved rate is usually
intimated by GOI after a lag of approximately three
years. Upon receipt of such approval, the differential
sum is recognized. Accordingly, GOI has approved in FY
19-20 the rate of Rs.18,733 and Rs. 28806 /- per kg for
supplies effected in 2016-17 and the differential impact
of Rs. 1393 Lakhs has been recognized as revenue in
the current year.

2.  The RED plant at Alwaye has undertaken manufacture
of ND Pr Oxalate (More than 99% Purity) which has
applications in electric cars, e-mobility and renewable
energy. Commercial production of requisite grade
of purity has commenced last year. For commercial
reasons the inventory of Rs. 7.53 Crores (50.56 MT) as at
01.04.2019 has increased by Rs. 20.84 Crores (133.65
MT) in the year under consideration. Accordingly the
sum of Rs. 28.37 Crores (184.21 MT) is carried as part
of closing inventory. Management has explained that
inventory of this rare earth product is built up for meeting
the requirements of e-mobility plan of Government of
India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a
long shelf life no part of the said inventory is considered
impaired.

3.  We draw attention to Note 47.4 to the standalone
financial statements, which explains the uncertainties
and management’s assessment of the financial impact,
if any, due to the lockdown and other restrictions
imposed by the Government and condition related to
the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which definitive
assessment of the impact would highly depend upon
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent period.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period owing to events that occurred
in the period of the audit. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. Considering
the circumstances under which audit has been conducted
in the light of lockdown due to Covid-19 pandemic, we have
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determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matter Auditor’s response

Significant reliance on|When undertaking Phase
electronic and other|l of the statutory audit, our
evidence in offsite audit. |audit teams had visited all
In view of the lockdown |the plants and carried out on

pursuant to Covid-19 |Site audit in normal course.
outbreak in India, our|No  significant  unexplained
audit teams which had|or irregular transaction had

planned to conduct audit | cOme to light in the course of
at the company’s Plants this audit. Subsequent to the
had to conduct the major lockdown being effected; based
part of the audit from|ON our earlier samples and
Head Office and online | €Xperience, we have carried
from remote location, |out the validation of the digital
As a result, we have |/ electronic inputs and data
relied completely on|and evidence provided by the
digital /electronic or other | Management by performing the
evidence as a part of our following procedures:

audit process effective |a. Obtaining reports in regard
from 24th March 2020 to Physical Verification
till the date of this report. from the Internal Auditors

and validating the same in

present at the Company| the manner suggested by
premises, we would the Institute of Chartered

have otherwise carried| Accountants of India
out physical verification|b. Understanding the process

Had we been physically
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. N . ) § d. Getting representations from
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yfaffe STe e | necessary.
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company

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the [information
included in the Annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon]. The Annual
report is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
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or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
In the event of such situation arising we shall draw attention
of the said matter to those charged with governance and if not
suitably rectified to the stakeholders.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone

Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management
and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of Standalone
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

2. In terms of section 143(5) of the act, we have given
in “Annexure B” a statement on the direction issued
under the aforesaid section by Comptroller and Auditor
General of India.

3.  Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b)  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the company so far it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.
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IREL (India) Limited

The Company being a government company, the
provisions of section 164(2) and section 197 are
not applicable in accordance with the Notification
No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by
MCA. Accordingly, no reporting in regard to Clause
3(g) and 3 (j) of section 143 is required.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i The company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its Standalone Financial Statements —
Refer Note 40 to the standalone financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

Fd MEA € 918
HET et
%Y RYE . 10326437

ST U, e
=T
ST 4.33767
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FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT AS REQUIRED BY THE
COMPANIES (AUDITOR’S REPORT) ORDER, 2016

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of the section ‘Report on other
legal & regulatory requirements of our Report of even date
on accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at 31stMarch, 2020.)

As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016
issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11)
of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of the checks, as
we considered appropriate, we report on the matters specified
in paragraph 3 and 4 of the said order to the extent applicable
to the company, in this audit report.

(i) a) The Company is generally maintaining proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant

and equipment.

b)  The property, plant and equipment of the company
located at all the units including Head Office have
been physically verified by the management during
the year as per a program of verification which,
in our opinion, provides for physical verification
of all the material property, plant and equipment
at reasonable intervals. Discrepancies noticed on
such verifications were not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of accounts. In our
opinion, the frequency of the physical verification
is reasonable.

c) As explained & informed by the management of
the company, the title deeds (including revenue
records) of the immovable properties as disclosed
in Note No. 2 — “Property, Plant and Equipment”
to the Ind AS financial statements are held in the
name of the company considering the sample
translation of deeds provided (original title
documents are in Malayalam which is the local
language) except in the following case:-

Sr. Ig:rtng\r/‘:lglfe Location Gross Block | Net Block
No. Property (in lakhs) | (X in lakhs)
1 |Building (Freehold)| HO 53.43 21.95
2 |Lands (Leasehold)| OSCOM 61.11 0.00001
3 |Lands (Freehold) | RED -Chavara 0.27 0.27
4 |Land (Freehold) | OSCOM 0.99 0.99

(i) Theinventory has been physically verified at reasonable
intervals by the management. No material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification between the
physical stocks and the book records.
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According to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in
register maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act and
accordingly provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a), (b),(c) are not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not given any loans, guarantees
and security and in respect of investment, the provisions
of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act has been
complied with.

We have been informed that the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public and accordingly
the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the Act, and Rules
framed there under and any directive issued by the
Reserve Bank of India are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records
maintained by the Company pursuant to rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under Section 148 (1) of the Act, in respect of
Company’s products to which the said rules are made
applicable and are of the opinion that, prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate.

a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and according to the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company is generally regular in depositing with
the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax,
Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax and any other
statutory dues, wherever applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at
March 31, 2020 for a period of more than 6 months
from the date they became payable.
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b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company examined by us, there are

no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Goods and Service
Tax, cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except those specified below:-

S srafer

Eascicaki) Hafad e | SIarsil sl @&y R Sl ]
difmy |€ T W) wfaa e
Period
. Liability .
Name of Statute Conce.r ned Nature of the Dues to which ®in Forun.1 where. dispute
Unit amount is pending
Lakhs)
relates
FHATT AT
T HF A T, 2003 T A g-a1qar | fosnt 2011-12 28.56 .
Kerala Value Added Tax, 2003 | RED —Aluva | Sales Tax 2011 - 12 28.56 _?X:Jngf’pe'm
FHALT ST
T g At T, 2003 | T.3T7-37an | fasht R 2012-13 3.42 "
Kerala Value Added Tax, 2003 | RED —Aluva | Sales Tax 2012-13 3.42 gﬁn/;ppe”ate
HALT AT
A qF AUA L, 2003 | T.37.9-37FA | ekt R 2016-17 2.58 .
Kerala Value Added Tax, 2003 | RED —Aluva | Sales Tax 2016-17 258 ?X:Jngrpe”ate
wHeRT ufaer fAfer g fafay afgsy fafu & focifeq | 1997-98 % Ly | [ECEGH
Y AU, 1952 : ot o fog afegfa 2005-06 ] A
The Employges Provident Damages for Delayed 1997 - 98 to High Court,
Fund and Miscellaneous Chavara remittance of Provident 2005 - 06 1.1 Trivandrum. Kerala
Provisions Act, 1952 Fund ’
: 4T YJoeeh, 3dTE Yook
QST 3R IH | 1996-97 § ’
HET ITE e, 1944 TR s - <8 100g-00 | 986:00 |3 FaT wT eref
AT ST
Excise Duty & Sales 1996 — 97 to Custom, Excise and
Central Excise Act, 1944 Chavara Tax on Minerals — 1998 - 99 986.00 | Service Tax Appellate
Penalty Tribunal, Bangalore
. IIFT (T) HET IS
S 3 €T Hied 2005-06 9 >
forr arfufem, 1994 TTERT 58.83 |Je, WHT Yok I
ST W aT HT 2009-10 T F
Service Tax on GTA 2005 — 06 to Commissioner (A),
The Finance Act, 1994 Chavara including Interest & 2009 — 10 58.83 Central Excise, Custom
Penalty and Service Tax, Kochi
I S R JGehTH R, STT S BT | 1976 - 2011 | 26.65 | o ’
fafre stfufrem, 1957 ’ ’ Jaee, Sfem
Mines and Minerals .
Development and Regulation | OSCOM Rent, Cess and 1976 - 2011 | 26.65 | gh Court

Act, 1957

Interest

Bhubaneswar, Orissa
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s R 3G H foRTaT, 3USHT 3T =TT | 2015-2017 [ 173.99 o '
fafr erfufem, 1957 ’ ’ qaTER, TSI
Mines and Minerals .
Development and Regulation | OSCOM Rent, Cess and 20152017 |173.99 | MighCourt, —
Interest Bhubaneswar, Orissa
Act, 1957
. 1989-90 ¥
ffee g aférd &7, 2004 | ATTHH T4 forcht T o002 2453 fafusr srdieiia mfermrt
Orissa Value Added Tax Act, 1989 - 90 to Various Appellate
2004 OSCOM State Sales Tax 2001 — 02 24.53 Authorities
F=07 fawa T arfufray, . 1980-81 ¥
SR T faent #T 20.40 fafis erdtefty mfereert
1956 1998-99
1980 — 81 to Various Appellate
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 OSCOM Central Sales Tax 1998 — 99 20.40 Authorities
1999-2000 I I,
SfIfeIT yawT wY Afuframy, . TAYT &Y o R &1
1099 ST - ¥2007-08 |67.80 RERE
Td 2017-18 affeem
. 1999 — 2000 .
Orissa Entry Tax Act, 1999 | OSCOM Disallowance of Setoff |, '>07 _ g | 67.80 High Court,
of Entry Tax Bhubaneswar, Orissa
and 2017-18
2007-08 T
NI EN el DIEDE N TE¥T T o (IR T . FAfaftw
3R 2013-14 T3 [226.68
1999 arfa EIRNA)
2017-18
Disallowance of Set off 200 (=1 QI5t0
Orissa Entry Tax Act, 1999 OSCOM 2013 -14 226.68 Addl. Commissioner (A)
of Entry Tax
and 2017-18
R T )
3T SfufTarm, 1961 T ST | 3 T Av)2010-11 | 3698 AT, s
Income Tax Act, 1961 HO Income Tax AY 2010 — 11 | 86.06 ITAT, Mumbai

ST AT T FITaTE o Ted YT ol 15 AT T FHTTSIT
FHTT o S T TRTE |

(viii) AT T §, TF & TE THHRT ST WHEHT % IER,

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

ST 7 foT TR, ST 3T THR T ShrEr
THM H Tk T BT 7| YA 7 FERT & weAm g w
T Y ST R 1 R | T, TSV o ST 3(vili)
% T8 IS feuoh T & TE €1

ST Y o SR TR rdsiiTeh F&TE AT 3 Y
TresiiTer TETE (RO YRl |fed) SN Wty ®OT
e T TS U TEI ST T | TETHR, ST & AT
3 (x) A TR 7|

TH < T SR 3T THHTT & STTEI, ST 2 o
T 3T T 3T fordlt ot arferenmi/at an e/t g
FE HETT SirETE TR A # T o € o A
IR e T & T 7

T Teh TR Sl B o 0T, 39 W rfufam &t
T 197 3 FTGET, T 76 § 37 GegaR ST 3 TS
3 (xi) o JTEIT St o fore o et 1 § |
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Amounts mentioned above are the net amount outstanding
after adjusting the sum paid under protest.

(viii) In our opinion, according to the information and

(ix)

(xi)

explanation given to us, the company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to Financial Institutions, Banks
and Government. The Company has not raised any
funds through debentures. Accordingly, no comment is
called for under paragraph 3(viii) of the Order.

The Company has not raised any funds by way of
Initial Public Offer or further Public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officer/s or employee/s, has come to our
notice or reported during the year.

The Company being a Government Company, provisions
of section 197 of the act are not applicable to it and
accordingly provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the Order are
not applicable to company.
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(xii) TR TF F S TH G T SRR F NIER, HA fAfer
ST TR © | TEFAT, 37T ST URT 3(xii) o ded g
SIEEE

(xiii) TH & T THERT T WHHT F AR W AR
TS o TMUR W, e qidat o qrer it e o
177 37X 188 o STIUTCH | fohT MU & | 39k fawoit o1 AT
T. 39 & Iid YR <@l A fawia faawon & &9
H ST T AN TG A1 & STTUR T €9 § Gard
fepam T 2 |

(xiv) TH & TTE SR 37X THIH0T o STTAR, HAT 7 T o
S GefteT o 2R ferelt oft ST ot StfemTeT Sree A
STt AR W ¥R e a1 T W § A7 3niferss ®Y
e fes=t SR 7eY foh 2 | Tegaw, 319 % S 3
(xiv) T JTTIT S o <y et € |

(xv) TH < TE THERT S WHHIT F AR, HOA T a
% TR 3G afer Fewrent a1 =Afhar o arer ot
- TS T AT € | TSI, STETT T RT3 (xv)
A 3 e o T R |

(xvi) TR TF ¥ 3T g5 & T8 MR 3T WEI0T &
SR, YA T AR s1dl Sk ifufem, 1934 &
YRT 45- |A & T8 USIpd B i SATIHAT Tei ¢ |
AR, ST & ST 3 (xvi) T o fore oy T 2 1

Hd ME T8 48
K ECANC G| L)
T GSERTUT §.:103264W

ST WY, et
qreT
ST 4.33767

feh: 3 IS, 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734

(xii) In our opinion and according to information given to us,
the Company is not Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanation given to
us and based on our examination, all the transactions
with related parties have been made in compliance with
sections 177 and 188. The details thereof have been
adequately disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements
under Note No. 39 in accordance with the Accounting
Standards applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given
to us, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to information & explanation given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Gokhale & Sathe,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

Jayant P. Gokhale
Partner
Membership. No. 33767

Place: Mumbai

Date: 3rd July, 2020
UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734
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Al ch- @

31 WT, 2020 ST TUTE 99 & U oR@mel W SMgREue
(Sfeam) foafwes o daer W <huet srfafaw, 2013 =Rt amn
143(5) & 8d W or@muieges i e

1.

AT ST o U G JTETeRT Y ST o Wi I qeft
TR ST T GG o o ferw yoredt /2 afg &,
ferfrar ffeemef & Tmer Ter WAt S SREET W AT SrefTRt
T JUTTE o STeT T@Ieh e o TEehivT o ffeare, afg
gﬁs‘%‘r,a‘rwm|
|

HOAT % U foi T el (THUTE)- 9 i
T T O 1 & fow sTfeRa (Oracle) 3menfia
W § | THUTH o 3TEeT; ST ST Ja Teeeho |iea
T U S F3 a7 3 WaT Gieaw W Eh 5 s
% s o g1t & & U SAeh orar-Rie Tl T et
e T 2 | St ST T TR § 5 37 ST I T
ST €, FTgeRT SwEnT Trarelt o WEeh % faw ot feram St
T | BTCliTeR SigT qoATeR, THeR 3Mfe o ot Toiet S (ST
T TS WEFES TE B ©) & ST § eife 3fear =
It BT TR © | ST 1 STESAT & foaw uRvmmesr= SifEw
% T Jeee T STaTq AT T 7 | TH gfe R e R
foF Tem 7 TRet ¥ € U T Ui SRR & faeT $iT
e % U an 39T € $iX U TiweoeR fase sray
forar T 71 S7ART svafy ¥, THA I8 YU XA % feu
IUGTH TG S k1§ o TR / ST T ST T o
1 TEeht § dik T e foRAr AT € 1 gHRY SReTeer %
R ST T T faa ffeared € anet foRet ot el

ANNEXURE B

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT UNDER SECTION
143(5) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013 in respect of IREL (INDIA)
LIMITED on the Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020

1.

Whether the company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has Financial Accounting System (FAS)
- Oracle Based Software in place to process all the
accounting transactions. Other than FAS; some of the
data such as inventory and payroll including Salary
Processing is handled on other independent software
for which a comprehensive system audit has not been
undertaken recently. Certain other data is maintained
by the company in MS Excel which is also used for
consolidation of accounts. The use of excel sheets
(which are not always password protected) for inventory
valuation, consolidation etc. may however lead to
potential errors or alterations. The management has
been sensitised to the resultant risk to data integrity. We
are informed that management has already taken steps
for development and implementation of a new integrated
software and a software development contract has been
awarded. In the interim, we have carried out appropriate
test checks to verify that the data so processed /
maintained is properly incorporated in the books of
accounts. The sample checked during the course of our
audit did not reveal any material errors or discrepancies
having financial implication.

: : ) 2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan
g&ﬁmﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁrw%l or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc.
2. ST YA o FUT T TSR A H STHHAT o HROT, FHA made by a lender to the company due to the company’s
T T HIE GG 3Terar el FuTerar §RT S & fo inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
SR/ KUY A A T SAIAT/TE G H STAT BT B may be stated.
AT &2 A &, AT ST T FHTE A S Nil
=T 3.  Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes
s T EERATE T A s B e A ;rom ggntral/ state agencies were propgrly accgunted
) - or/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the
FITT T 3R e SR S'Iﬁ % STIEIT 3T &9 F T cases of deviation.
et 7 o? fersrer o el Bt e | The Funds received by the company for specific schemes
FHa / T TSt § faf¥me drsmett o fa st g o from central/state agencies were properly accounted
YT T OIRET e § Sl § T@T 74T o7 37 STSRT ST in the books of accounts and utilisation of the same
ST, GRS 1 I % TER ¥ Sfetad e et is in accordance with the broad terms and conditions
s WEW%I mentioned in the communication of the scheme, project
. > or agreement.
A s s, For Gokhale & Sathe,
T T Chartered Accountant
& 3. 103264 : artered Accountants
A sy Firm Reg. No.: 103264W
St ot e Jayant P. Gokhale
AR Partner
SEAT HE&TT: 33767 Membership. No. 33767
I Yag Place: Mumbai
femiten: 3 9 2020 Date: 3rd July , 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734
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31 |Te, 2020 Shi GHTE foxita an
AP (Sfeam) fofide & e fasia
faaon ux
T A geh ahi {did o fog erger=es - 1
<hut Srfafram, 2013 (“erfafrem”) st eamr 143 &
3U- 9T 3 o T (i) o i SAaiien faie fremmi ot fud
(31 AT, 2020 TF FIRTTT (F5) feafids & aarsi &
IR 7 gART T [ w1 RO T 9T AT IR At
SITIHATS T U1 57 STTHTT & T 8. 3(T%) & o fear

1)

SAfvwa

T SMEIETA (Efea) fafqee (o) & feier 31 7, 2020
o o foig fqfdm @ erafies faxi fe=ot 1 36t arig &1
AT U o ok foqw st foeier fqamor st gART oRamaRien o
Y AT T B |

TART T H 3 TR Garad SR o ORI g fou
T TS T STIER, U §, Tt wifee Wt #, i
fEaféT W T waiE Safter faxita femor qomett Hise 7 3
fasitar fearfd o o srafter faxirr feor 31 91, 2020 T
JHTE G § W L 7 o, S it Raifén | iRieye e
FT AGT T W AN T H qq M SAiafker fFEE %
STEYI FIh! 1 T | T §C AR [IA0T o VISR
TR & |

riafien faxita femmT o fog waem et et

foria were o favia STafier faig fEemT & Sramdiem
ey T # Sfcafed otidie f=mor & smavas st
T foam T gU O ST wa o RafaT aegst ™
(‘Tmfeet 1T’) R G AT R TR (SMEHITSTE) SR
IR forT T 3Tafter fE0T o STYR WX SYidfes o feor
YT & 3K ST TET & T St &1 geuT fSeeR
B 37 el # gate stafes fada framt o fesmeT,
A 3T TETETE TNiHe & S shot o ife o STurer,
AT SRTHT, WEich AfeRal ot Talehal 3T ofdr qerm ot
srfufE, 2013 & ded ST [TEEHT THSHRT I THT T
FI T A B |

rET-wtgrent l feERt

TN et TR eI o SR W faig foaiféT o
U o STAeR faxi FEoi 0 T oI T R |

@

1
El
3

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

(Referred to in Paragraph 8. 3(f) of the section ‘Report on
other legal & regulatory requirements’ of our Report of even
date on accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at 31st March
2020.)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of IREL (India) Limited (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanation given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit.
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T SMELITSMTE FRT SIRT o T “wrfeefa e’ 3fiT oram wie
% WMo o STTAR YT G T G R, ST et
rfufTem, 2013 Y 9T 143 (10) & Tea e foxia eraftes
it 1 o T S FeTe S S A SraE e 2 |
S 3R AniesiT Hie & fog 7% 3mevass § & ' Afaew
SEATTHATSIT ST Il hE ST T@TIIEIT T FISHT T T
T 91 T 3fo ST I A & T@TORTE L fof
foariter foafd w yafe etiafter faia fesT wenfeq fear
o ST FTC TE@T T3 o7 3T o7 39 L8 o 07 @t ifden
TS | JuTet @ § G e o |

T e ¥ fad fafdn e Swet uftarera
TR X SAidiier faxie fa=or qumelt st vaferar & 9 &
TR FTeT W7o i o1 Hferamd Imier € | famita fafdm o
e faxiar femoT o6t TAR oaeder # fasie oo
TR fawiia f==0T St TR U e, SREH T STehel
FHA, S TF T Aewqul FESIRT §, 31X oo
SfEd & YR I 7afer T &t fesmeT i uferera
JTETerar ST TRI0T 3R AR hiA WA 7| =af
ufmam, erEmdes & fofr o e et €, e fas
foaRuli & &9 F Hrareret 91 IfT & FRT ifeen TaaweH %
G & 3Teher THa ¢ |

T /A © for o faifdT ox ot oht avafies fasirr frisor
IO TR SR @I U9 & fAU ST IS & o fog
THR FRT 5T SGIIET o THI0T ey 7 30k ¢ |

Tariter fravfeT ux eriafien fawivar foasisor o ared

forier feaife o st T Stiafier faxiar femor =g feqifd &6t
frErgraT 37X 3T AR W) TfehTd o faiel & ST9aR famie
Ievl & foru faedter feraott o6t G & e & ST sTamed wee
T o Felt G aht TS Wk wfema ® | fariter Rdifd ox st e
FTater faita feso 39 Hffqat 3K uferansti o1 wfier sheam
TS (1) T AT & TEvEE § et 7, St 3fad faawor #,
U Y IR % oM ST WET @ S 7 (2) TE
Sfa marEs 9 ® foF e W W @henrd o fagrr
% ITIUR ot faaor daR T &1 A & fau smavas
% &Y H <ol fRU S §, 3R I8 for Shuet ot i oK =
et SaE ST FwTent o TTehTl 3 SR & o ST e
(3) U Y IRETTET & SR AR, ITAT AT WEY
! UHATH A7 GHF T T84 o IR | (o STE1E FeH T
fSreRT o foraott o Heeut w9 & TR € |
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the ‘Guidance Note’
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. The Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material

effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Gokhale & Sathe,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

Jayant P. Gokhale
Partner
Membership. No. 33767

Place: Mumbai
Date: 3rd July 2020
UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734
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31 7Tl 2020 T T oI T R T )
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020 (X in lakh)
faawut / Particulars e . 31 TTe 2020 R 31T 2019 &Y
Note No | As at 31st March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019
1. et
ASSETS
1 ﬁT—aﬁ’qﬁqﬁ'@'ﬂ'ﬁ'ﬂ?/ Non-current assets
o, G 3T ITHTOT / Property, Plant and Equipment 2 25,094.21 26,600.56
3T 9REMT / Intangible assets 3 L 807.21
IYINT T ST / Right-To-Use 3A 35.32 -
USTHT 3T1UH / Capital Advance i i
mﬁwam‘ﬁieﬁ/ Capital work-in-progress 4 3,916.43 1,164.98
foit= afEaf™T / Financial Assets
T A 1997 / Non-current Investments 5 14.17 14.17
USiTe 3 / Capital Advance - -
o7 eI FoT 31 31 / 6 2,984.53 2,583.04
Other long term Loans & Advances
3T T W‘h Y 6A 4,478.54 483.27
Other NC FA-Bank Balances
SR FY gfcgufaar (e 7 4,646.75 3,875.16
Deferred tax assets (net)
- T TRETaT / Non-current tax assets 8 2,561.71 2,311.89
TGS AU / Capital Advance Ee il 267.57
31 T - SAa TREEIGET / Other non-current assets 9B 188.28 181.41
45,835.68 38,289.26
2 gdur uftaufaai / Current assets
W/ Inventories 10 15,094.10 16,136.59
foriter 9=t / Financial Assets
1337 / Investment 11 5,693.72 2,289.76
M U9 / Trade receivables 12 3,154.19 1,731.65
EETH AR Tehc GHhE / Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,057.35 1,518.32
3 ST o 1% / Other bank balances 14 47,851.45 40,395.40
ST/ Loans 15 10,420.88 10,590.08
3T g fae aftamfaat 16 4,791.72 5,741.87
Other current financial assets
3T FIA U™ / Other current assets 17 8,855.35 6,691.01
W%WWW 17A 6.93 3.40
Asset Pending for Disposal
99,925.69 85,098.08
Qa_quﬁ'{:iﬂﬁ'ﬂ/ TOTAL ASSETS 1,45,761.36 1,23,387.34
lIl. gfEedt weh S9aT / EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
. gfaadl/ A. Equity
WW@/ Equity share capital 18 8,636.50 8,636.50
31 TS / Other equity 19 87,064.55 71,357.08
95,701.05 79,993.58
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W@. I/ B. LIABILITIES
T = -‘d‘c’h‘lﬂ'ﬁ'ﬂﬂﬂi/ Non-current liabilities
fawiia TIAM / Financial Liabilities
IYR TR / Borrowings B )
MU I / Trades Payable B )

() THUHE I 3T Pl FehTET AT - ]
(a) Total Outstanding duest to MSEs

(@) THUHE o STCATAT el qehTar oF T - )
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

3T T A fore ™ 2 20 40.51 14.49
Other non-current financial liabilities
ﬁT-Tﬁ'ﬂWW/ Non-current provisions 21 11,994.01 10,778.70
Wﬁ? aa‘trr—ri‘qﬂm / Other non-current liabilities 22 5,000.00 5,000.00
17,034.52 15,793.19
2 a?&rmé?mm/ Current liabilities
faxitar TAAT / Financial Liabilities
Wm / Trade payab|eS 23 4,171 .45 3,18680
(5F) THTHE T < Tt TehraT KT 1,751.34 974.23
(a) Total Outstanding dues to MSEs
() THTHE < 3Tl o TehTal & T 2.420.11 2,212.57
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs
3711 faiig TFAM /Other financial liabilities 24 12,351.89 8,835.23
() THUEE i <F et ST TR 360.57 177.30
(a) Total Outstanding dues to MSEs
(@) THUEE o TSN G TR oF TMRT 11,991.32 8,657.93
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs
WWW /Other current liabilities 25 6,797.29 5,936.71
TAHTT I / Current provisions 26 9,705.16 9,641.83
33,025.79 27,600.57
WW@W 1,45,761.36 1,23,387.34

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
W w@ieRT Afaar Significant accounting policies 1
fereiiar faramuil o F1eH Notes on financial statements 35-48

TR 34T fedieh st Her fud o ST ar Fd TF 9T 78 &l IR Y
e WS 913
RECIRSICICaTY
FRN: 103264W
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W
T YA T T ey oz o
T e g (formr) 3T TS Iy F1eeTeh
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
ERERIRIICK]
AT ohHTS : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale
Partner
Membership Number: 33767
Mumbai Mumbai
fedie 03 S[eE, 2020 fedier 03 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd Tuly 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207
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31 =L 2020 hT AT a8 ok ToTq o9 Uer Zf oAt feaaoT X g )
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (R in lakh)
ElCa: 31 WTe 2020 ThY 31 WTe 2019 T
Note No m
faawur / Particulars T = qHT a&a;m
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
I U=t ¥ 31 / Revenue From Operations 27 1,03,874.10 76,974.30
. ar=r 3T / Other Income 28 5,649.17 4,688.79
. 5ot & (1 + 1) / Total Income (1 + ) 1,09,523.27 81,663.09
V. =7 / EXPENSES:
Wﬁ@WﬁW/ Cost of materials 29 9,387.99 9,087.10
consumed
MR H Wik ! @UT / Purchase of stock in trade 29A 1,922.04 =
TR A, Wieh-39-3°8 3T IIfaeiiet e ot 9% Tt 30 (RS (1,711.88)
H uftad
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-
Trade and work-in-progress
AR Y = / Employee benefits expense 31 25,549.94 26,113.95
f&T &t AT / Finance costs 32 4.78 2.62
Depreciation and amortization expense
3T & / Other expenses 33 26,983.61 24,259.34
el ST (IV) / Total Expenses (V) 69,228.86 61,601.57
Vo mareTereh aEgslt S T (V) | Tee @/ (F1f) GRS 20,061.52
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (Ill-IV)
VI srerereres w7e / Exceptional ltems ) )
VII. aaréwﬁm /(TR (v-vI) 40,294.41 20,061.52
Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI)
Vi, hel 99 / Tax Expense: 34
(i)"cl'ﬁcql':f"ch_{'/ Current Tax 11,617.62 7,209.74
(ii) ST & / Deferred Tax (499.12) 1,099.86
11,118.50 8,309.60
Net profit / (loss) After Tax (VII-VIII)
X = =eR 3™ / Other Comprehensive Income (810.13) (307.80)
. (i) TR S A o o % AT O it e fe 31 HECE R (473.12)
A S (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
34 272.48 165.32

(ii) 3T WEl ¥ YT STFhT ST oty A7 JT o foTg
SEERIEAUE K

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
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@. (i) 9 9e 5= A1y 1§17 o fae qeeiiera forar s
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) 3T Tel ¥ Efid MY ST o1y AT 71 & fau
el fiepet fer ST

(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss

Xl rafyy o fow et =MTe 3T (IX+X) (3FaTer & fog @ 28,365.78 11,444.14
@) 3 37 e 37 Ffea)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)

Xil. ;rl%rs‘%z"}sﬁm‘ 31T / Earnings per equity share: 42
T 3T 7 &1 T X F ) / Basic & Diluted (in 3) 3,378.21 1,360.73
gff YRR T 3ifehd g7 € # ) / Face Value per Share (in 3) 1,000.00 1,000.00
HE@YUT TrEieR fat / Significant accounting policies 1
ERIRACEIUIRTY m / Notes on financial statements 85-48

TR T faien 1 Here RUid o S8R Fd @ FevTeh 78 ohi 3R &
e WS I3
RECARSICIEaTS
FRN: 103264W
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W
TU=T A T T et o=z fae
EREIRCIEC] EENENERD) 3Ty TE ey feeTen
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
ERGRIRIC]
FEEIAT ShHTeh : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale
Partner
Membership Number: 33767
Mumbai Mumbai
fear 03 ST, 2020 feiem 03 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207
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31 =L 2020 T TATE ¥ o ToTu TRt wag faaoT g )
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (X in lakh)
31 HTel 2020 SHT WUTE | 31 HTE 2019 h THTE
faawut / Particulars o & ferg o & e
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

. ORI Tt o Tehet yare
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

T ST 71 o fauT 2 SgaR T | e g @ L7 20,061.52

Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

R Teng 3T / &9 & fore waTE e

Adjustment for Non Cash Income/Expenses :

feTaT 31T 371 @ / Rent and other expenses B 46.53

K %'{gﬁﬁ T SATST a1 3T / Interest Income on unwinding of SD (79.32) (85.89)

qmﬁ TRt 9T AT St 3T / Interest income on LC Sales : (105.20)

31T A9 3T o T swiferes Jehem T I e (1,082.61) (473.12)

Reclassification of actuarial losses to Other comprehensive

income

T8 T gRETeT =9 4,145.86 3,850.44

Depreciation and amortization expense

"@' T YA / Lease Payment e 0

wf, Wi SR SRR o 0.50 14.86

Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Loss on Non Moving Stores

SR awT Wit/ T i ag @ § e - 0.69

Write-off of Stores Current Assets/ Advances

FHTAHRT TUhIRET o I e o T Jraem - 4,292.07

Provision for Pay Revision of Executives

T-Tg W FOT T IRIMET 38.41 42.64

Amortization of pre-paid staff loan

eI % for FaTRedt o wraes UL 856.87

Provision for PRP for executives

AR faferear @ o fore sram E2ee 554.39

Provision for Employees Benefits Medicals

e Fafrafa e st areer ez 118.64

Provision for Assets Retirement Obligation

YT wHEERET & o SueH (fadeen) ) 394.90

Gratuity (Differentials) for retired employees

Gratuity Fund Gap

A 3 T TG 7 I e 50117 395.63

Salary provision for pay revision of workmen

Fit, TR e A &g Jee - 1.20

Provision for debts, assets and advances
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HAfafh TTaer et o1 STavarchar &l @
Excess Provision no longer required

Tg @ fafed Teier w@ giery =07 o fa saye

Provision For Bad and Doubtful debts written back

Hehl 3T 7= TR o Tl STHT O 47T 377

Interest Income on Deposit with banks and other Institutions

BT T T TAHI i 3
Dividend Income from Mutual Fund

Gufar, TAF 31T ITHTT 7 faehl 9T are

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

TSI Yoft uftad=T & ugel ufeme ey
Operating profit before working capital changes
e gt § uiad:

Changes in working capital:

FEIGE! / Inventories

C2IRIES 11'5[ A U / Trade and other receivables
é‘qamrr(qa WW / Trade payables and other liabilities
I Ut uftad= o a1 ufemer o

Operating profit after working capital changes

TE FHY T YT (et gamae)

Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

i fafateray | fraer T

Net Cash From Operating Activities

Tt wifafafer & Tt vare
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Sale/(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment including
CWIP

TGy STAT H 997 / Investment in Short Term Deposits

Sreqrary/ (FeT) STHT § 31801 / Withdrwal / (Investment) in
Short Term Deposits

=3 e H 9w (LCP)
Investment in Mutual Fund (LCP)

P37 %E # fqwe (LCP)
Redemption in Mutual Fund (LCP)

Tegsh 1 § f1997 / Investment in Subsidary
UT< ATST / Interest Received
eyt fafafesn o ¥15 T

Net Cash From Investing Activities

(251.56)

(1,226.01)

(376.45)

(5.17)

5,391.88

45,686.27

917.74
(4,879.85)
2,837.15
44,561.32

(11,867.45)

32,693.87

7.34
(5,338.38)
(71,257.12)
60,747.29
(70,504.61)

67,477.00

2,291.42
(16,577.05)

(310.32)

(9.00)

(2,499.17)

(279.29)

(60.84)

6,385.44

26,446.96

(2,043.56)
(4,307.96)

1,068.60
21,164.04

(6,571.98)

14,592.06

65.10
(3,674.30)
(38,826.24)
30,808.15
(70,128.00)
69,975.00

(12.75)
1,092.04
(10,701.00)

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

IREL (India) Limited

7. o= nfafafe=n @ fae T
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RRIGIE] T3 7= ATHIST / Dividend paid (10,500.00) (3,650.00)
AT feRaT 7T TR faeR0T T/Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (2,158.31) (750.27)
IS 31 / Capital Advances (905.28)
T YT & 9g T 7T / Lease payment out of principal (9.12)
TS § 95 1 YT / Lease Payment out of Interest (5.09)
T o fofehl 9 &TST T 3T / Interest Income on LC Sales B 105.20
ﬁ?ﬂjﬁﬁ'ﬁlﬁ‘a‘ﬁaﬁm (13,577.79) (4,295.07)

Net Cash from Financing Activities

ehe Ud Tohe TR U fraet gig / (shHt) (A+B+C) 2,539.03 (404.01)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C)

Tohe 3T Tohe AT T SR T 1,518.32 1,922.33

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

T SR ToRe TAGE T Sifam 9w 4,057.35 1,518.32

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Tehe 3T Tohe U AN o U
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:

et o W <ITe] @l 3T 377 STeqehicieh STaT & 99 4,055.96 1,517.67

Balances with banks in Current accounts and other short term
deposits

T | ¢ / Cash on hand 1.39 0.65

TART 39t feAen ot Her Rard o 78R Fd U9 FevTe qed # AR T
T W T3

LECARSECICary

FRN: 103264W

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W

BT i T T ey o=z fae
T g e (f) 3T TF waY TR
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
ERGRIRIcCl
KILIEALY
HEEdT hHh : 33767

Jayant P Gokhale
Partner
Membership Number: 33767

g T

Mumbai Mumbai

feier 03 S, 2020 feAre 03 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020
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31 =K 2020 hT AT ¥ o Torg Sfaradt W uftard ot faawor R TG H)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 ® in lakh)
gfFadt aieh! o fell STEETN / Attributable to equity holders
e ue Srfergi
Reserves and Surplus
fa@uT / Particulars I U / ; Frenf
Share Capital S & / Total
/ General / Retained
reserve earnings
1 3T 2019 T 9T
Balance at April 1, 2019 8,636.50 8,200.18| 63,156.90 79,993.58
i & fAT @M / Profit for the year - 29,175.91 29,175.91
i o feT 37 AR 37T, ST 1 foeret / - (810.13) (810.13)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

T o feTT T AUk 3T / Total comprehensive
income for the year

SRTTerT STHTST ST e (Sl wfega) /
Payment of Proposed dividend (Including DDT)

31 |TE 2020 ShT 919

Balance at March 31, 2020
T o S a9 2018-19 ¥ fawia ad 2018-19 o FOIET o YR T AT & TTH F. 4,000.00 M@ 3T IR &. 822.21
% SIS it Sen Y E SR T feReT AT © SR I ek AR o T GEmEIeT feRar e €1 faier 9 2019-20 %
AT E. 6500.00 TG T START AL 31X F. 1,336.10 TG T SISET 4 Teb TRfed § fociia o o <R e fomam man 2

During the year X 4,000.00 lakhs was declared and paid as dividend based on the performance of the Financial year 2018-19 and
DDT of ¥ 822.21 thereon and the same has been ajdusted against free reserve. Interim dividend for the financial year 2019-20
of Rs.6500.00lakh and DDT of Rs.1336.10lakh is also paid during the financial year from the free reserves.

28,365.78 28,365.78

(12,658.31) (12,658.31)

8,636.50 8,200.18 78,864.37 95,701.05

31 AT 2019 oh! GUTE a9 o T sfaraet ® ufta eht faeor & e )
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 (X in lakh)
3fFaat emen! o foTT STLEHET / Attributable to equity holders
Rfere Ta AT
Reserves and Surplus
faawut / Particulars I TS / - —
Share éapital SE | e/ Total
/ General / Retained
reserve earnings

1 3T 2018 &I 9
Balance at April 1, 2018 8,636.50 8,200.18 56,113.04 72,949.72
a9 & fAT AT / Profit for the year - 11,751.93 11,751.93
a9 & fow T FTE M, AR e /- - (307.80) (307.80)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
a&%mﬂﬁ'm 3T / Total comprehensive - - 11,444.13 11,444.13
income for the year

*TY . .{g' STt Hfe ) / - - 4,400.27 4,400.27
Payment of Proposed dividend (Including DDT)
31 AT 2019 T 919 8,636.50 8,200.18 63,156.90 79,993.58
Balance at March 31, 2019
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T & R fori A 2017-18 3 FISI1ET & ST O STHIeT 3 FTH F. 36,50.00 G T IYW E. 750.27 & SIS o1 S
S B A e T @ S ST T SR ok A G feoRar T 7

During the year ¥ 36,50.00 lakhs is declared and paid as dividend pertaining to year 2017-18 and DDT of ¥ 750.27 thereon is
ajdusted against free reserve.

TAR T feieh ot Hor RUld o ST{ER Fd TG FeeTeh Hed i 3T ¥

e WS T3

LECARSECICary

FRN: 103264W

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gokhale & Sathe

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103264W
T e T T ey AT
T g e (fom) TAY TF y§Y v
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director

ERCRIKITC

rfier

HEEdl HHIh : 33767

Jayant P Gokhale

Partner

Membership Number: 33767

Mumbai Mumbai

feie 03 s, 2020 fei® 03 S, 2020

Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020
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AT -1: HEEYUT EiehT faat

1.1

(i)

(i)

(iil)

TGRSR MY :

farefar faraott ot oo T foiar Sufar wa Saamedt
1 DI, AT A TSR % aed A fha
T © TSTeRT 3T I O A | /11 ereieh ! fegyal
% ITTAR 3T STYR T TAT SHOAT (VAT e
AT =M, 2015 ©d wO erfufEw, 2013 &
WE 133 & 1Y g ST aTel ST ST, 2013
& WEYE o STHR W Tl FUT A6 Afugfaa
TR TRGTeh Ae (HTerHT) ey, e o7 @y
gifaferer feen-frdeit & Fafya wmaumt & o9
3fed Yo W AT oA ST R |
STIHTT AT FEHTE:

et feraott o TeqeiientoT o foy 7 STTavash & foh
I ITIAAT SR qATHE T TR feram S St o
feraor it fafer W ofik fedifd srafer & R o
o i i ST gl @ T S o
T JHITET HTA & | TSI TROME ST SR o
I o 3T h1 3T STATY § HIHT ST e grRoTHt
T BRI BTl 8/ A AT ST 8 |
TEEUT SRgehe ST ST fute:

foeier faeRol ot dARY ® wufw, <eiEr, o’
3T =1 ot Rard ot T TfeT Bt efer SR et
TG fifel o SR H vl STguM S LR
T o o Jeler oht STaeFehal Bl § | aetedh
TROT 37 STIA ¥ ST &1 wehd 7 | Ufwae
T ST 3T HReT oh MYR T TIAA AR
fofa w FRET fasrg foran strm @, forgd wfasr
T SIS T AT e W ST ® | e
STIATT o T Afaraslt THTe § IEe S © |

e e 1 T e 3 ferg et oot
H STeRTL, 3T T § T T 3TTehel 3T Homg
et o7t fordfer o & wftufat ofc Serfiay &t
3T o ST aTett Teohw o ot Hard Weeayot 7T g et
%, ot frefefEa ey § enfier €

(@) TR AT STl T JI9A- AT 41

(@) STehfEerarall T WrauTl ot HaATSA

YT ST GHTET - AT 40 37T 45

m fa & gufaa &t 9= - e 34
@) 3foa o A1 S AN - 1T 35

N

1
El
3

Note-1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1.1 (i)

(i)

(iif)

Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements are prepared under
historical cost convention except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured
at fair value in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India on an
accrual basis and comply with provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Ind AS notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other statutory
guidelines as applicable.

Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities on
the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Differences between the actual
results and estimates are recognized in the period
in which the results are known /materialized.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting
policies that affect reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Continuous evolution
is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Information about critical judgments in applying
accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes:

a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations-
Note 41

b)  Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of
contingencies and provisions-Note 40 & 45

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets-Note 34

d)  Fair value measurement & estimates- Note 35
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TUf, Wic T SUShT :

(i) Hufd, ©ic T ITH0T (FdE) T I agert A
F H § Hid JeagTa/aReieT @ §fa g, afe
FE B, A SH TITHT ST Ufeiide A |
TTTar T © | e i S An # S orst
AR a1 TR T 3ok TR J41T & fau
1] UM H M St AT I 7 |
ITNT 7Y W T IREE W AT T 'S & a9
& ITE § A T ® W 9 v aRdutEr %
STRTIA SHRITTIG o AMek ¥ W orat oy | gfg
A & S fop oftgufy & SwEnt sted # faww,
TR G H ghg AT 3Gk TR T ToTe o
HECYUT U 3TeET I8 i e e H ot |
U gRT orfumfed UREufd ST WRA TR
(STatrems) &t 3R § wifta T ST &t St
T YT WHR § a1 Glsaet / qfagfd Tl
& GEESH % 9% qed (iR g €1 g,
freror e o Seva o fom Ul geft wofwat ot
A T 1/~ T e G T E |

(i) S o aREafr & ana | fafers gt
¥ Y gefug T 3T 9 @G gieEted € S
T Y § Frforert Tfafafy § Sag g © qen
fafere afteuft =1 sfefed &1 ST Hed & |

Y o S 3T R & S/ FehTer o T St o ey
# et a/et Yoo AT WieasT HHfd g1 T TR ferd STATT
YA A g, ST off B €, et H @ISR | ST T
& g/ forehTet <t ¢ TS & fueT o W wiqenia o
o geof § oY / =10 o1 9T o o § ST foRar sar
2 | ey, afe 57 & ot oft onfE oh Sk FehTer/3Ter
T i ARG T a9 ot 7afy o i F9a &1 ferar
ST € fore o & 7w i it hTeree quT € S §
39 9 T HfauTia e ol Uid: 9 @I # STt o T
=TT foarcor # Tl feanr ST €4

ST o WIS | TRl 3T aTelt IREgaal ) ag foar
T A, U T I T8 i TS ol Aty H T ¥
e e T € |

T & o i uft ® 9f =t @, ISt afagfa
TE 3G T G arel Hal afT e g9 o fag A
YR, TSRt FUR, W et ofe ot gumaen ¢ fgd
Y e, afs i T, o 39 T fea S g |

TRl & qed o1 faRer 3 & fau aRieafeat &
foraifed T 31X gFalg 3 &1 AT T STTHH ]
T
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1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment:

a)

(i)  All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE)
are stated at their historical cost net of recoverable
taxes less accumulated depreciation / amortization
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of tangible
assets comprises of the acquisition cost and any
attributable cost of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets
put to use is capitalized only when it increases
the future benefits from such assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance e.g.
an extension in the asset’s useful life, an increase
in its capacity, or a substantial improvement in the
quality of the output or a reduction in previously
assessed operating costs.

Asset acquired by the company which are held
and used on behalf of Govt. of India (GOI) are
valued after adjustment by the amount of subsidy/
reimbursement received from GOIl. However, a
minimum value of ¥ 1/- is assigned to all such
assets for the purpose of control/tracking.

(i) The cost of self-constructed tangible assets
comprises of the costs directly relating to the
specific assets and those that are attributable to
the construction activity in general and can be
allocated to the specific asset.

In respect of assets discarded/scrapped, the net book
value or the estimated realizable value as assessed by
the Salvage Committee, whichever is lower is retained
in the books. At the time of disposal of the discarded/
scrapped assets, the loss/gain with reference to the
retained value is adjusted in the year of disposal.
However, if any of these assets is not disposed off within
a period of three years from the date on which the same
is discarded / scrapped, the value retained is fully written
off and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
expiry of three years.

Expenditure incurred on assets not owned by the
Company is charged off to revenue in the accounting
period of incurrence of such expenditure.

Land held for mining includes cost of land, compensation
for trees & buildings thereon and payment towards
shifting charges, solatium, registration charges, stamp
duty, etc. less realization, if any.

The estimated cost of dismantling and rehabilitation of
the assets are capitalized for determining the value of
asset.
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Intangible Assets:

Intangible fixed assets are stated at their historical cost
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible assets
comprises of the acquisition cost and any attributable
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use.

Expenses including stamp duty, registration fees paid
to the local Government(s) incurred for the acquisition
of mining lease rights are recognized as one type of
intangible asset.

Depreciation/ Amortization:

a) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
is provided for on straight line basis on the basis
of the useful life of the assets as specified under
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the
manner as specified in Schedule I, except for the
following on the basis of technical evaluation:

=, | gfegufy WW TERET sitfaer Sl. |Particulars of |Useful life| Technical justification
. No. [Asset (in Years)
W, | faawur | Sieeere
(Tﬂffﬁ') 1 [Slurry Pumps 5 Life is technically assessed
| | T s |y v w@ @ & e @ considering the nature
¥y of operation and working
Rl T SlaTeRlel deh IR} environment.
3 fryffa o ST 2
o ; . 2 |Air conditioners 8 Life is technically assessed
2 EQ’T{ 8 Al T ® kL Wﬁ‘{'@ﬁ@ considering the corrosive
NN SoReRTa aeTe! w1 g freifa fea working environment.
AR . L .
. 3 |Fire 6 Life is technically assessed
3 |sfrrmE 6 7.3 HHCTS U9 TR {7 1 % extinguishers considering the corrosive
TR w A ¥ RSSIEEEIK working environment and
ngﬁmmw%| replacement norms
4 (FERE 2 TR ST afacti 1 e & T 4 |Mobile Phones 2 Life is technically assessed
LI T HeTe daar ®7 9 i considering the frequent
WW%I technological changes.
FfFT T FEIL T 1/- EEi @ &l BIEFHT 9T The depreciation is continued to be charged fill
=T & I T a9 TR TR T STTaT % | the net block becomes Nil except retaining X 1/- as
o nominal value.
@) off A Gfed 3 HERT ATl o T 6

ST ¥ AT ST et Qe o T g AT o STUTT
# Yoy ferar STar B 1
o % a9 ¥ A i et st ard ¥ qeag
fepar ST 2 |

M) ¥ % <R A ST e aRgufadt o gey § A
‘e o Ifcafea aftEuftal &1 Srge qoug™
3T IS T S ARG T ST ITEX |
TG AT |

b)  Cost of construction of solid waste trench together
with the cost of the land thereof is depreciated in
proportion of the quantity filled to the total capacity
of the trench.

The cost of sealing of trench is depreciated in the
year of expenditure.

c) Inrespect of assets added during the year except
assets mentioned under (e) below, depreciation is
charged pro-rata from the date of addition.
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) WT/W/WWTETT@ W%Wgﬁw d) In respect of assets discarded/demolished/
ﬁ'@f«wuq / T/ T F A Fl'm"éilgluﬁf:h destroyed during the year, depreciation is charged
ST T JHIRE 2 TF?JIT%I pro-rata up to the date of such discard/demolition/
. o destruction.
€) ST®IZ 5000/~ I 3T HH AR o @AC T& AL . —
= - : . . e) Assets costing ¥ 5,000/- or less individually are
; N A depreciated at 100% retaining Re. 1/- as nominal
ISk aﬂﬂm R foreh ST 26T 10% F SAfereh g value in the year of addition except in cases where
&1 Tl T el ohi BIgehT HAAT-3FEAT R 5000/~ T the aggregate actual cost of individual items
TOY W AT i IRl I 37k IS HLA & of plant and machinery costing ¥ 5000/~ or less
u H 3ferd qoT & 9 7 T 1/- TC 7@ T 100% constitutes more than 10% of the total actual cost
aﬁa’(@"q’m T%IWITEITHT%l of plant and machinery.
) {9 3w onfeat = tfqerfaes @ma i f) In respect of fixed assets whose historic cost has
JUESTH ?\lq"*ﬁ“'ﬁqé" e & FROT I T =& undergone a change due to price adjustments,
Q'Fﬁ TR ¥ Gay & Senfa mﬁ_ﬁm change in duties etc., depreciation on the revised
e TR T e 3“3@'1'% T unamortized depreciable amount is provided
F et Q}ETIT 3 prospectively over the residual useful life of the
o ® l asset.
®) R =t | a;m ‘{ﬁ? g) At the end of each financial year, future mineable
& T 7 e R ST 1 39 heavy minerals in respect of land held for mining
-@_ﬂt@mﬂ / 1 HE t@‘sﬁ +ff feifa &1 W foem are assessed based on technical estimates
e {d BT deh-lehl STTHTI % 3TMHR WWW considering available mining lease and/or surface
TTI'IT‘IT%I lease as the case may be.
ﬁ'&ﬁ {h%wﬁwﬁﬁwwmwm Diminution in the value of such land is recognized
& AR 9 F T G ¥ T 9 @S S in proportion of actual quantity of heavy minerals
EECERCIEIRED 3T =i *;_chil'?:hd OTE @1 I mined during the year to the assessed future
T GRS ¥ o a8 am e ATl TI'E: T mineable heavy minerals plus actual quantity of
e e ﬂﬁTWﬁaﬁﬁ%l heavy minerals mined during the year.
) 31"1?? T S TR T T T h)  Amortization of intangible assets is provided for on
straight line basis as per the followings:
el T & SR T Jrar o T e
&9, faaur qfgTeT Sl. |Particulars Amortization
No.
1 G gt / A s ﬁ'—fﬁl’lﬁ’T a1 o 7 i 1 Mining lease/ Amortization of expenses pertaing to
FAIUT FUR i ® ardfas A % ST Compensatory mining lease and afforestation charges
1 fruffg w&t ' A 9w Afforestation Charges |is recognized in proportion of actual
. quantity of heavy minerals mined during
3Hfeh 11? I 3afer 1 oA ¥ TEd g the year to the assessed future mineable
@ ¥ g 9 Wil i arfas heavy minerals plus actual quantity of
Wﬁwﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁl heavy minerals mined during the year
‘ : taking cognizance of the lease period.
2 iy G FilLEERES 4 ([AR) ikl Wéﬁ'f&ﬂ'{ 2 |Computer Software  |Over a period of 4(Four) years
I =Aw & WA B o afired qania foran St tear The amortization is continued to be charged till the net
| block becomes Nil.
2
1.5 Impairment of Assets:

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment based on externall/internal
factors. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
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recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impairment no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the minimum of the recoverable amount or
the carrying amount of the asset that would have been
determined ( net of depreciation or amortization) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
accounting periods.

None of the individual asset is capable of generating
any cash flow without depending on the operation of
other assets of a production unit, hence a production
unit as a whole is considered as a cash generating unit.

Investments and Other Financial Assets:

Initial measurement of financial asset & financial
liabilities is recorded at fair value. Financial assets like
loans & advances and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

Investments in Subsidiaries:

a) In case of subsidiary, the Company records the
investments in subsidiary at cost less impairment,
if any.

b)  After initial recognition, the company shall
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net
investment in the subsidiary.

Valuation of Inventories:

a) Raw material and material in-transit are valued at
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

b)  Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at
cost.

c) Inventory of work-in-progress, intermediate
products for further processing and finished
products are valued at cost or net realizable values
whichever is lower.

d)  Off-grade material / contaminated stock is valued
at 80 % of lower of cost or market value of normal
merchandise considering the reprocessing cost.

e) Stores and spares not moved for more than 3
years are written down by 95 % of the cost.

f) The company follows weighted average cost
formula.
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1.9 Tﬁ'HTE'Ia‘ . 1.9 Insurance claims:
meﬁwwmmw%mam Insurance claims receivable are accounted for only
. . when admitted by the Insurance Company.
FHU T TR HT fore S 7|
1.10 vﬁiﬁwﬁm . 1.10 Pre-Project Expenditure:
FTH Ta‘-ﬁ'{'ﬁl'{ feieTeT ¥ dEy § ﬁﬂTﬂ'ﬁT, Expenditure on feasib.ility studies, . flow sheet
W,W—Fﬁ? forerTe, R S e ﬁmﬁ, dev.elopment, preparation  of  project report,
: . . / environmental clearance and other related matters on
: o . o S \» new/expansion projects, to the extent not adjusted,
- / E@ @ ﬁ;g;ﬁ’m" ql{gﬂl Tq; il ::;— are grouped under “Pre-Project Expenditure” pending
% g i b capitalization/adjustment/write off.
KT AT =T |
1.11 ﬁé—ﬁ-ﬂ-ﬂ-ﬁﬁq_a—_r . 1.11 Transactions in Foreign Currency:
Fegiry . g : £ a) Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
@) 'TA'T.F'FT i:{ w ?FT;‘T bl ?ﬁ% at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
E'ﬁ T AR T a@f e | the transaction.
) facsft qst T gafyd siferd tfrerfas ara ™ fag b)  Non monetary items which are carried at historic
Wﬁrqﬁﬁwqﬁﬁé?i?aﬁﬁﬁ'@qrwﬁm cost denominated in terms of foreign currency are
T T ST LT G ST o T H Feam STrer = | reported in subsequent balance sheets using the
s exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
™ iﬁ . tr; :ﬁ . .tR' = 4 G) Monetary assets and liabilities as on the balance
T <A 3 © g qtar] KA sheet date, denominated in foreign currency are
It TSt fofa ST %' restated at the rate of exchange as on that date.
w) fUem awg#fﬁ%rmrﬁz’ﬁm AT d) Exchange differences either on settlement or on
. « f” g _— restatement:
i. e ufegufy NES focy T 3
F Tl B % FS T 9% ST AT § i in th.e case of for.eig.]n currency borrowings
TSt T %, I% IYX &G F ®T relating to a ‘Qualifying Asse.t , to the extent
) they are regarded as an adjustment to the
H T ST € | : .
interest costs, are treated as borrowing cost.
i T T § ¥ H frver ] ' E ii. inother cases, are recognised as income or
fopa e % g o7 =1 =7 & &9 & A as expense in the period in which settlement
SIG1 % | or restatement is made.
1.12 TSI HI=T 1.12 Revenue Recognition :

The Company derives major portion of its revenue
from sale of heavy minerals and rare earth compounds
extracted as a part of its business operations and
production & processing of Nuclear Grade Ammonium
Di-uranate (NGADU).

i Revenue from sales is recognized when
the performance obligations are satisfied in
accordance with Ind AS 115. Performance
obligations are deemed to have been satisfied
when substantial risk and rewards of ownership
are transferred to the customer and the customer
obtains control of the promised goods. In case
of domestic sales, performance obligations are
satisfied when goods are dispatched, or delivery is
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handed over to the transporter in accordance with
the contracts with the customers. In case of export
sales, performance obligations are satisfied based
on terms defined in the contracts, usually when
the goods are shipped onboard based on Bill of
Lading / Airway Bill or any other similar document
evidencing delivery thereof. Amounts disclosed
as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances,
rebates, GST or any other applicable taxes/
duties. Adjustments on account of out-turn weight
are made in revenue on the basis of available
information from customers.

ii. Revenue from processing of NGADU is recognized
on achievement of the acceptable degree of
concentration of prescribed materials and supplies
to Government of India (Gol), at the rates specified
by Department of Atomic Energy, Gol.

Bonus/demurrage in respect of load port/discharge port,
relating to export sales is accounted on the basis of
available information from customers.

Incidental income/expenses relating to statutory
plantation activity as per mine closure obligation towards
restoration of mined out land in its original topography
is considered as other income/expenses for the year,
hence the plantations are not considered as biological
assets.

Employee Benefits:
A. Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and are
charged off in the year in which the related service
is rendered.

B. Post employment and other term

employee benefits:

long

a) Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are Employees’
Pension Schemes covering all employees
and Superannuation Scheme and new
pension scheme for specified group of
employees of the Company. The Company’s
contribution to defined contribution plans are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss and charged off in the year in which the
employee has rendered service.

The contribution towards Employees’
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Pension Scheme is remitted to the Provident
Fund authority concerned under the
Provident Fund and Other Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 and contribution
towards New Pension Scheme is made
to designated point of presence. The
Company has no further liability beyond the
contribution.

The Superannuation Scheme of the
Company is administered through Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).The
contribution calculated at the specified rates
on the monthly salary is remitted to LIC
on the specified dates. The Company has
no further liability beyond the contribution
determined as above.

b) Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity

The company operates a gratuity
scheme for employees and contributes
to Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) towards meeting the gratuity
obligation.

ii)  Provident Fund

The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards provident fund to
a trust administered by the Company.
The interest payable by the trust to the
members every year is being notified
by the Government. The Company
has an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, between the return
on investments of the trust and the
notified interest.

iii) Post Retirement Medical Scheme.

The Company operates a Post
Retirement Medical Scheme covering
the past employees and the benefits
are defined.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits:

Entitlements to earned leave and sick leave/
half pay leave are recognized when they accrue
to employees. While annual leave can be either
availed or encashed subject to restriction on the
maximum number of accumulation of leaves, sick
leave/ half pay leave can only be availed and can
not be encashed during service. However, the
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entire accumulated earned leave, sick / half pay
leave subject to eligibility, can be encashed while
leaving service.

The Company determines the liability for the Post
employment and other long term benefits every
year on actuarial valuation wherever mandated.

Actuarial gain/loss in respect of benefit plans are
taken to Other Comprehensive Income.

VRS Compensation:

Compensation paid to VRS optees is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same year in which
VRS optees are relieved.

Royalty:

Royalty on the minerals is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss on the basis of production. However,
payment is made on the basis of dispatches from the
factory including losses/shortages of minerals/captive
consumption. Royalty on closing stock is provided on
the basis of domestic sale/ net realizable value.

Research and Development:

Expenses on Research and Development (R&D) other
than expenditure on acquiring fixed assets are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss. R&D production
is included in value of finished goods only when the
products are transferred to Stock-in-trade/stores.

For legacy issue - Excise Duty:

a) In case of excisable finished products, excise duty
is accounted for as and when becomes due.

b) Excise duty on sales is presented as part of
expenses in statement of profit and loss

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets:

1. Provisions are recognized only when it has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. If the effect of time
value of money is material, provision is measured
in present value in a pre-tax rate. The change in
the provision due to unwinding of discount rate is
recognised as interest expense.
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In the event of:

i. any possible obligation that arises from past
events and the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Company; or

ii. any present obligation that arises from past
events because:

a) it is not probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation;

or

b) a reliable estimate of the amount of
obligation cannot be made.

No provision is recognized, but such obligations
are disclosed in the notes as Contingent Liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized but are
disclosed in the financial statements, where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable, a brief
description of the nature of the contingent assets
is being disclosed at the end of the reporting
period and where practicable, an estimate of their
financial effect.

1.20 Rectification of Error in booking of Income &
Expenses of earlier years.

1.

Expenditure / Income relating to prior periods
arising in current year as a result of errors or
omissions not exceeding ¥ 10,00,000/- or 1% of
operating revenue whichever is higher in each
case shall be treated as expenditure / income of
the current year.

The effect of any expenditure exceeding the noted
limit will be considered for reinstatement of the
opening balance sheet by way of adjustments in
retained earnings.

1.21 Provision for Current tax and Deferred Tax:

1.

Provision for current tax is made after taking into
consideration the provisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
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(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income

tax liability is settled.

3. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilize those temporary
differences and losses.

4. Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents:

All financial instruments, which have original maturities
of three months or less from the date of purchase and
also financial instruments which are readily convertible
into cash without significant loss are considered ‘cash
equivalents’. Those financial instruments pledged
as securities or under lien for any purpose, are not
considered cash equivalents.

Expenses in respect of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

In pursuance to the CSR policy of the Company, at least
two percent of the average net profits of the Company
made during the three immediately preceding financial
years is spent during the year towards the activities
identified in this regard.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition/
construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one
that takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to
revenue.

Job Contract transactions:

In case of Job work undertaken on “cost plus profit”
basis, reimbursement of cost and the element of profit
are recognized at the appropriate rate and /or value
as the case may be on completion of the contractual
obligation as per the terms of the contract.
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1.26 Other Income:

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and the
interest rate applicable. Dividend is recognized when
the right to receive is established.

1.27 Government projects:

Receipts and payments in relation to various projects
undertaken by the Company on behalf of Government of
India (Gol) are captured separately and the net balance
is disclosed in the financial Statements of the Company
appropriately.

1.28 Lease:

1. Company as Lessee:

Contracts which give the company right to use
an Asset, are accounted in line with provisions of
IND AS 1186, if recognition criteria as specified are
met. Lease payments associated with Short term
leases and leases in respect of low value assets
are charged off as expenses on straight line basis
over lease term or other systematic basis as
applicable.

Value of “right of use’ is capitalised at the present
value of outstanding lease payments for assets
of significant value at the commencement date.
Liability for lease is created for an amount
equivalentto the present value of outstanding lease
payments. Each lease payment (if applicable) is
allocated between the liability created and finance
cost.

Right of use of Assets are depreciated over shorter
of asset'’s useful life and the lease term on straight
line basis. The lease payments are discounted
using average market rate of interest.

2. Company as Lessor:

In case of Finance Lease, amount due from lessee
are recorded as receivables as company’s net
investment in the leases. Each lease payment is
allocated between receivable & finance income.

Operating Lease income are recognised over
lease term over straight line basis except when
the escalations are due to general inflation or
otherwise justified
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g et qf:
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Notes:

Leasehold Land

1.

a)

N

1
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Excludes 21.832 acres (previous year 21.832
acres) of land at Orissa Sands Complex (OSCOM)
site, possession of which has been taken over by
the Company, but the compensation amount is not
decided and formalities for transfer of lease hold
land rights have not been completed.

Includes 244.436 acres (previous year 244.436
acres) of land in Odisha acquired by the Company
from the Government of Odisha on lease under
second phase. The 475.436 acres of land was
transferred at a premium of * 118.86 lakhs by the
then Tahsildar to the Company’s name by an order
dated 30-12-1992. The Revenue authorities had
since on 12-04-2002 observed that the transfer
of this land was irregular & void ab-initio and
have quashed the earlier order of Tahsildar. Out
of 475.436 acres of land, 231 acres of mined out
land had been taken over by the Government of
Odisha vide collector order dated 22-04-2002.
The Company has sought refund of aforesaid
amount (X 118.86 lakhs) from the Govt. of Odisha
or alternatively to allot equivalent land for mining
purpose.

Freehold Land

a)

Includes X. 1/- (previuos year X. 1/-) towards
approx. 24.26 acres land received free of cost
from the Government of Kerala at Alwaye.

Includes 24.86 acres (previous year 23.00 acres)
of land at Chavara in Kerala agreed to be given
free of cost to the landlords from whom land is
acquired on completion of certain formalities.

Includes ¥ 30.36 lakhs (previous year ¥ 30.36
lakhs) deposited as directed by the special
Tahasildar (LA), KMML, Chavara towards
enhanced compensation for the land acquired by
Chavara Unit.

Includes a patta land of 4.75 acres (previous
year 4.75 acres) assigned to R E Division in the
year 1964 has been ordered to be resumed back
by the Government of Kerela. The Company
has approached the Kerala Government for
cancellation of the said order.

Includes Approx. 75.37 cents (previous year
approx. 75.37 cents) of land situated at
Manavalakurichi Village in Kanyakumari District
given on lease to the Govt. of Tamil Nadu for a
period of 30 years from the date of deed i.e.
11.08.2006 for the construction of bus stand on a
nominal lease rent of ¥.1000 p.a.
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T T FAGAR e o mEaeE e e
4.99 Tg (ST a8 AT F. 4.99 THS) yfF
e & ST AGIEaT (TNEB) & foig o8 &t arii
T 31T 01.10.1990 T 30 ¥ =t 3afyr & faw &.
8089 Hf o o TAAH T WA TE R |

3. AR

%) THE YIS H STATHA T 3T Wl oht AT A
2, FSTerT Shestt ot b1 %. 53.43 or@ (frser au
T. 53.43 @M@) & YTAH T G fegr 7@ o i
SR foTT ot o 787 ® e g / IO SEarasti
o1 froae e 21

T 99 fafve geer T8faT st § %, 0.02
ar@ (e a8 . 0.02 @) & A I ©
HUHT GRT T T IR0 H 9 Y& €. 50 T AT 0
35 AE B |

M) TEH STESHHIUSTR (IGCAR),FTTHA | T. 80.15
A (s 99 €. 80.15 T@) HT AN T TSR
T e}, FTgeRT T A WA TER § A
o7 Y 0 R R,

) 3O T 3T G H HATSIEE Tem / @eat
& fou &t € T 5/- (e ot . 5/-) @ Tl
It &, FSTeh! ST WRT LR § U R
T, 73.76 TG (et 9 73.76 @) A gE 2|

T) TOH WR A4 79w § %, 1/- (fsen ¥ . 1/-)
IfEH ISR o for Tt ¢ ey wnfaer €, forgent
AT YT TR T 0T &R €. 122.33 o
(e o &, 122.33 o) T [ 1 TR 2|

) AFTAFA THE | TEY IR & TF & T.
151.41 @@ (et ai‘ 132.09 @RE) I AN
e 7, 51 fafve sifuemfat & sty ewfa
o for faferg & & fifitar fepam T 21
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f) Includes Approx. 130 cents (previous year 130
cents) of land in aggregate situated at NK Block
VI Alappadu area & NK Block Il Karithura area
encroached by some persons, the Company has
taken legal recourse to clear such encroachment.

g) Includes Approx. 62.450 acres (previous year
116.009 acres) of land at OSCOM in Odisha for
which title is not in favour of the company.

h)  Includes Approx. 0.81 Cents (previous year 0.81
Cents) of land at RED - Aluva unit for which title is
not traceable. However, name of the Company is
recorded in land revenue record of Govt. of Kerala.

i) Includes Approx 4.99 acre (previous year approx.
4.99 acre) of land situated at Manavalakurichi
Village in Kanyakumari District given on lease to
Govt. of Tamil Nadu for a period of 30 years from
the date of deed i.e. 01.10.1990 for TNEB on a
nominal lease rent of Rs. 8089 p.a.

Buildings

a) Includes cost of residential and other buildings
at Mumbai the possession of which was handed
over to the Company on payment of I 53.43
lakhs (previous year ¥ 53.43 lakhs) and for which
execution of conveyance/transfer documents in
favor of the Company is pending.

b) Includes shares of ¥ 0.02 lakhs (previous year
R 0.02 lakhs) in various Co-Operative Housing
Societies.Number of the shares held by the
Company are 35 at a cost of ¥ 50 each.

c) Excludes Godown at IGCAR, Kalpakam costing
. 80.15 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 80.15 lakhs), the
entire cost is met out of funds received from the
Government of India.

d) Includes % 5/- (Previous year X 5/-) being amount
retained towards Monazite godown / trenches at
MK and OSCOM, the cost of which is met out of
funds received from Government of India ¥ 73.76
lakhs (Previous year X 73.76 lakhs).

e) Includes % 1/- (Previous year X 1/-) being amount
retained towards thorium silo at R.E.Division, the
cost of which is met out of funds received from
the Government of India ¥ 122.33 lakhs (Previous
year ¥ 122.33 lakhs).

f) Includes cost of ¥ 151.41 lakhs (Previous year
% 132.09 lakhs) being value of the housing
complex at Manavalakurichi unit which has been
constructed in a prohibited area without the
required permission from various authorities.
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) 3O 99T F AN . 162.06 @ (e
T. 162.06 @), S 9 TREASHT T T 7 3R
%7/ - (et €.7 / - ) 9o WA €, Safew
Tt AT R SRR & 07 o A [ H T 2 |

F) IS FTHR G IEH &1 T§ Tg bt i W i
%. 21.36 7@ (et a9 %. 21.36 T@) &t ORI
ST YETHT FHGT g T AT IMAA 7 |

T)  TUH KT TSI FicAT &t AT | ¥.346.63
g (fraet 9 T, 346.63 TRE) &t ATH FT &
hrereres it T Fator v 2|

3)  TUH HAl % USiiohd SO WA % GUR i AT
% 26.07 W@ (o af % 26.07 @) gfEa
TR %.26.07 TG (F3e1 a8 €.7.45 @) I0fHet
?, S I, YR TR & diuey 7gd $eitemsne 9
20 9f et 3rafy & fo ofis o ft T ° | et =
T ST TRT & fo%g £.1069.20 TG T TRT &
T E. 1000 5 79 & 757 R W foan = 7 1 59
Tg T A WA 2020 T HEH H FHE F1 E €,
ST TefeRoT & faT dfad © |

ugh

TEHE. 1/ - R aHE. 1/ -) o AT Al U RS

F A H TIHE. 2.98 @ (TS ad ©. 2.98 @)

AT Tl FEh 1 TNTaeT fefa 4T © SRiifer T v

AR G G I R0 & foreft 2

%) IO O URENHI % T ®TH E. 743.92 A
(et 9 ¥, 743.92 ATE) T AN ATl §AT I
T T € T 3Ueh! wiaa ®. 126/~ (e
T T, 126/-) T FHfeh T AT HRT TWHR § I7ef
RIS F fireft € |

@) TOH MO AE. 66.86 TG (T9 a8 I~ ATE)
ST AT TSt T TE A I €, SRt g
®. 5/- (e o =) €, S 39t I A
WA TR I R A [ H ST |

HHE T AR

TR T3 37 T X TR § E. 25.72 ARG (Tt

§F. 25.72) S AN aTA BIHER 3R TSR MHA &,

TSRt qeaieh ®. 32/- (el 98 % 32/-) €, STaifch STeh!

T ST IRA WHT G T e T AR TR |

N

1
El
3

g) Includes building costing ¥ 162.06 lakhs (Previous
year ¥ 162.06 lakhs) being value of THRUST
project and valued at ¥ 7/- (Previous year X 7/-) as
the entire cost is met out of funds received from
the Government of India.

h)  Includes cost of Bhubaneshwar co-ordination
centre amounting to ¥ 21.36 lakhs (previous year
% 21.36 lakhs) constructed on leasehold land
provided by Government of Odisha

i) Includes cost of OSCOM housing colony
amounting to ¥ 346.63 lakhs (previous year X
346.63 lakhs) constructed partly on leasehold
land.

i) Includes cost of improvement of the Registered
Office building of the Company amounting to
% 26.07 lakhs (previous year ¥ 26.07 lakhs),
accumulated depreciations amounting to ¥ 26.07
lakhs (previous year ¥ 7.45 lakhs) which is taken
on lease from M/s ECIL, a PSU under DAE, Govt.
of India for a period of 20 years against a total non-
interest bearing deposit amounting to ¥ 1069.20
lakhs alongwith a lease rent of ¥ 1000 p.a. The
lease has been expired in the month of February
2020, pending for renewal.

Roads

Includes roads costing ¥ 2.98 lakh (Previous year % 2.98
lakh ) being the value of THRUST project valued at ¥
1/- (Previous year X 1/-) as the entire cost is met out of
funds received from Government of India.

Plant and Machinery

a) Includes Plant and Machinery costing ¥ 743.92
lakhs (Previous year ¥ 743.92 lakhs) being value
of the THRUST Project and valued at I 126/-
(Previous year ¥ 126/-) as the entire cost is met
out of funds received from the Government of
India.

b) Includes Plantand Machinery costing3 66.86 lakhs
(Previous year ¥ Nil lakhs) at OSCOM and valued
at ¥ 5/- (Previous year " Nil) as the entire cost is
met out of funds received from the Government of
India.

Furniture and Fixtures

Includes furniture & other equipments costing ¥ 25.72
lakhs (Previous year % 25.72 lakhs) at R. E. Division
& MK and valued at ¥ 32/- (Previous year X 32/-) as
the entire cost is met out of funds received from the
Government of India.
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HieT At

TOH ST H T, 20.81 A (et a9 & Y7 o1 T
ATl ST I wnfHet €, Fotent qearieh ©. 1/- (et o
TI[) T, STk 3! T8 AT W G G T e
THTER |

TR SUSHTT

T ofgeR # €.20.36 @@ (TS a6 €.3.25 A@)
T AT TSl T ST ST SHTATerd SUSh0T IMaet
T, fem g ®. 2/- (et o ©.1/-) §, STafeh Seh!
T ST YR ST 7t 7 § O BT TS 2 |
THEET S STeT HRfET

TOH 3. §. T, 3TgehiA, H¥.1.02 @ (g I .
1.02 ) o1 AT a6l She[eT Wil €, FofTeht qestiet
T 3/-(fel 9 €.3/-) €, Sefth Skt T AN R
WHRR A M AT FITE R |

YT

THH 3R S, T 37T 7GR | YT T. 224 .88 AR
(free o %, 104.05 W) AR ATet TAFTLIET ITH0T
e § 3K 79 %. 97 (@@en o & 77) % €Y H @
AT YR TCHR T TG & G e TE 2 |

ferga W i STeRTT

TOH U ST o e o T H %, 37.73 A (e a
¥.37.73 TRG) T AN Tl e T ST STy
3R T, 10/- (B TS, 10 /-) IHA § e TR T
AT YR YT & AT R § & TS 7 |
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Motor Vehicles

Includes car costing ¥ 20.81 lakhs (Previous year ™ Nil
lakhs) at OSCOM and valued at * 1/- (Previous year *
Nil-) as the entire cost is met out of funds received from
the Government of India.

Office Equipments

Includes Air Conditioning & Office equipments costing
% 20.36 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 3.25 lakhs) at OSCOM
and valued at ¥ 2/- (Previous year ¥ 1/-) as the entire
cost is met out of funds received from the Government
of India.

Computers and data Processing

Includes computers costing ¥ 1.02 lakhs (Previous year
¥ 1.02 lakhs) at R.E.Division, OSCOM, and valued at
% 3/- (Previous year ¥ 3/-) as the entire cost is met out of
funds received from the Government of India.

Laboratory, Dispensary and R&D Equipments

Includes laboratory equipment costing I 224.88 lakhs
(Previous year ¥ 104.05 lakhs) installed in R.E. Division
& OSCOM and valued at % 97 (Previous year X 77) as
the entire cost is met out of funds received from the
Government of India.

Electrical Installation & Equipments

Includes Electrical Installation and Equipments costing
% 37.73 lakhs (Previous year % 37.73 lakhs) being value
of the THRUST Project and valued at ¥ 10/- (Previous
year . 10/-) as the entire cost is met out of funds
received from the Government of India.
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e 4: WA X T H G R o )
Note 4: Capital work-in-progress (X in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 ST | 31 Wi 2019 <At
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
mfd W & A ‘Fﬁ / Capital work in progress 3,349.86 758.09
ST S ST e e / YO § € Capital items pending installation / in transit 566.57 406.89
et / Total 3,916.43 1,164.98
Ae 5: W-adwe fae @ g )
Note 5: Non-current Investments (X in lakh)
31 T 2020 hT 31 WTe 2019 =T
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
faaTut / Particulars W sfend , W sfena .
@) TR |(GaEd)| @) [T R) |(@EaEH)
Quantity| Face | Amount | Quantity| Face | Amount
(No's) |value R)|(R inlakh)| (No's) |value (%)| (X in lakh)
) eTTeh hu-l o Sfaradt fasr
A) Equity Investment in Subsidiary*
A foRan gam) (Siferd Te 10 / - T Wiq 9rE
IREL IDCOL Limited (at cost) (Unquoted - fully paid up) (Face
Value Rs. 10/- per share
@) THA T 0 3= ¥ gfaaet Fevr it Sga i g @
T for ge
B) Equity investment in Others at FVTPL Unquoted fully
paid up
(i) STMERE HHART o - SR e TR fAfAS, TR 833 100 083 833 100 0.83
(i) IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative Stores Ltd., Eloor
(i) SMENRE HHART FogX - AT fed WK fafads, woergpcar | 109 10 0.1 1,004 10 0.11
(if) IRE Employees' Consumers' Co-operative Stores Ltd.,
Manavalakurichi
(ili) STEE =Tt Forge U shfeT WSS fAfies, Faerep e 200 10 0:02 200 10 002
(iii) IRE Employees' Thrift and Credit Society Ltd., Manavalakurichi
iv) STESATET HHART STHIHT Feohr! HER feafids, =t e W e 10 0.46
iv) IRE Employees' Consumer Co-operative stores Ltd ,Chavara
el W-aaA a9 (B) 142 142
Total non-current investments (B)
e N-FAH AT (A+B) 1.1 17
Total non-current investments (A+B)
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
35 a7 3R U TR T i ef AT
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof
faT & g # et o fow ot aaEe
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments
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* UgTHAeh hU-1 ok faaUT / * Details of subsidiary

IREL (India) Limited

HETIeh ShU-t ehT AT T Tfafarer frta= AT o HUHT FNT & W@ fgd / 9ae™ o
TR ST SITUTT
Name of subsidiary Principal activity Place of Proportion of ownership interest/voting

Incorporation

rights held by the Company

31 W= 2020 ST 31 W= 2019 AT
As at 31st March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019
SRS ST fAfFdS | 9 92 30 @/ 9T/ India 51% 51%
/ IREL IDCOL Limited Beach sand Mining
e 6 T adar fasha aftamfaat - T e )
Note 6: Non current financial assets - Loans (X in lakh)
31 Wr=f 2020 <hT| 31 WT=F 2019 AT
faa=ut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
YL ST/ Security deposit
STYFET 3T=T AT 4T / Unsecured considered Good 2,152.95 1,893.17
Wﬁmﬁqﬁ{ﬁ% / Significant Increase in Credit Risk : )
@G{d %07/ Credit Impaired 15.28 45.29
2T ; FUT h1 BT o fAT JTIET / Less: Provision for Credit Loss (15.28) (45.29)
3T FHUT 3T &1l - SHHERY / Other Loans and advances - employees
YL 3T=7 AT AT / Secured considered good 723.49 556.70
STGIFRFA 37T HIAT 74T / Unsecured considered good 100.92 133.17
) Wﬁ%ﬁ{”’fg’? / Significant Increase in Credit Risk = -
Q{9 %7 / Credit Impaired . -
HITT : FT 1§11 o fAT WG / Less: Provision for Credit Loss - -
I T A AFIW- Tehe T TG T § U TSR ST a1er o1 Yo o ferg agedt e
Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to
be received
ITHIIEIT 37T WHT 41 / Unsecured considered Good vl )
T SfEw ¥ WU gfE / Significant Increase in Credit Risk - -
G{d %7/ Credit Impaired B )
T ; K0T Shi mﬁr% 1‘?111 QT4 / Less: Provision for Credit Loss : B
el / Total 2,984.53 2,583.04
e 6 F : o N-aau faie ufgufaat o W)
Note 6A: Other non-current financial assets (X in lakh)
31 W= 2020 <hY| 31 AT 2019 <At
faaut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Wéﬁ?é—?}ﬁ'ﬂ/ Other Bank Balances
Deposits placed for more than 12 months
@T'T/ Total 4,478.54 483.27
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AT 7: AR KT ufEutaar (faer) R arE H)
Note 7: Deferred tax assets (net) (X in lakh)
31 |T= 2020 <hY| 31 |Te 2019 <hY

faawut / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

T 3 HTUT ¥ SMRATTT ST FATU / Deferred tax liabilities on account of:

e G & T JAET o A1 T A LA 1,217.62
Difference between book and tax depreciation
el RN T TIATY, / Total deferred tax liabilities ST 1,217.62
E'Ha?EFITUT STTEIT Sh UFTUT /Deferred tax assets on account of:
YT 43 G o TET GEATRI o 0 H HT A AESar L 358.62
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing differences
e %07 & STHT o foT /& / Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances 58.10 91.15
@wﬁqﬁrw&ﬁﬁm AT / Post Retirement Medical Scheme 1,521.72 1,994.98
3T GHAT / Other timing differences 2,876.79 2,642.39
Wﬂﬁ'ﬁ{@'ﬁﬂ'ﬂ /' Unabsorbed Depreciation ; -
W‘ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬂ?ﬂﬁ/ Unabsorbed loss . )
TS 3T T SR / Deferrement of interest income 043 0.57
fowr ST <M/ 9T AT / Finance lease obligation / Lease Liability 12.71 5.06
THUAT ShST UTHAT / MAT credit entitiement . .
el IRANTA T URHUFAET / Total deferred tax assets it 5,092.77
el / Total 4,646.75 3,875.16
AT § - AT AT T afEufat R AT )
Note 8 - Non-current tax assets (R in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 ShY| 31 HT 2019 &
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
AT HT - T I # / Advance Tax - Non current # 2,561.71 2,311.89
et / Total 2,561.71 2,311.89
# T 43 TH / # Refer Note 43
e 9 & - USiTa SAuw & g )
Note 9A - Capital Advances (R in lakh)
31 TT 2020 SHY| 31 T 2019 Y
faawut / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

‘Fﬁ"ﬁ IfUW / Capital advances
Y& 37T AT 7T / Secured Considered good
TG 3T=T M 7T / Un-secured Considered doubtful
FoT Sifew | tl%ﬁl"l”'f q@ / Significant increase in credit risk
Qd 0T / Credit Impaired
HATC : %07 o1 BT o o urerer

Less: Provision for Credit Loss

et / Total

89.88 -
1,045.40 267.57
6.67 6.67
(6.67) (6.67)
1,135.28 267.57

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

- IREL (India) Limited

\\\

e 9 @ - I T adur uEufaai (&iick:)
Note 9B - Other non current assets (X in lakh)
31 WT=t 2020 AT | 31 WI=F 2019 AT

faa®uT / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

Fﬁ STy S STATaT 31T 31RIH / Advances other than capital advances
(5R) GIT ST/ (a) Security deposit

3T=3T HIHT AT / Secured Considered good

IS /M T / Un-secured Considered good 0.51 0.51

wshf@wﬁﬂzaﬂﬁq&q/ Significant increase in credit risk ) .

@& T / Credit Impaired 1.77 1.77

T Gfewe Fo7 ST 1A o ferg e (1.77) (1.77)

Less: Provision for Credit Loss

(W) 31T T ST ABW- Tehe A1 TEg T A W fRY T a1t =1 e o fo
T AT

(b) Other loans and advances- advances recoverable in cash or kind or for
value to be received

Gf&r 3T=T /1 AT / Secured considered good )

TG fETe [T WHT 74T / Un-secured Considered good S 17.76
WW'&WW/ Significant increase in credit risk = -
81.27 81.27

G 0T / Credit Impaired
TS Hfewer FoT ST 1A o feag e (81.27) (81.27)

Less: Provision for Credit Loss

(T1) HEATEY Y AT AW / (c) Deferred employees cost 157.31 163.14

() W (UE) ST / (d) Prepaid expenses
‘E‘Eﬁ(&'ﬁﬁ's?) W@W / Prepaid mining lease renewal B -
Qﬁaﬁ@ﬁg) Ta H’IE%"T T / Prepaid railway siding expenses B h
qﬁ'ﬁf HITAT AU Y[ / Prepaid coal licences fee
WWWW (tﬁEc) / Prepaid mining shipping Exp.(port)
Tac 98T fohraT / Prepaid lease rent ) )

et / Total 188.28 181.41
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e 10 - IEggleat & g )
Note 10 - Inventories (R in lakh)
31 WIS 2020 ShT| 31 HTS 2019 Y

faawuT / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

Shedl HIeT / Raw Materials
9ftas ® AT / Goods in transit

HSR ¥ / In Stock 600.19 467.57

TATF I S/ Work-in-Progress 3,564.17 2,957.23
IR W / Finished Goods 7,628.81 9,165.93
farsnt o fIT AT / Stock-in-trade - -

W 3‘ﬁ'{'3@f/ Stores and Spares

9Rae § "I / Goods in transit 11.14 117.74

SR T / In Stock 3,255.33 3,087.95
Tl 3@/ Loose tools 3.55 4.80
3T~ 3T okt Ufshar o fog wearadt (SeTHifete) Same 30.91 335.37
Others- Intermediate products for further processing
%ﬁ'/ Total 15,094.10 16,136.59
1.3 & oheelT Aol ¥ G TR H Aol e € | - -
1. Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Raw Material

11.14 117.74

T YUK 3T I § Wafea TR § A e § |

Inventories includes goods in transit relating to- Stores & spares

2 .37 ot ATk o T Aeerdt Seare & HiTsTee &t 2 30.91 @G (et o 2 335.37
) T T ImfHer @

2. Intermediate product for further processing includes an amount of ¥ 30.91 lakhs
(Previous year ¥ 335.37 lakhs) of monazite.

3.9ER 3K goif Y Gt H 1988-89 X 1990-91 F < TTHE T T 101.440
ferair =it (et @ 101.440 foram) wnfae 7. Hfer = & o STt o e 18 Yok
afrferd T o T o7 ST SSTRET 1 TS Yook el fera 7T o, /e 37 gHeady
T HTATH T 1/- T AHT T 2| (e ad 2 1)

3. Inventory of stores and spares includes 101.440 kg of silver (Previous year 101.440
kg) recovered during 1988-89 and 1990-91. Since no cost was allocated to silver
residue and no charges were paid to BARC, the said inventory has notionally been
valued at X 1/-. ( Previous year¥ 1).

4 THST H YRT THR T 3MIfT & faw 2 338.30 (Tt aw 2 552.72 A1@) T4 &1

TSt TS & 2.497 27 (o 9 4.916 27) A 7|
4. FG includes 2.497 tons (Previous Year 4.916 tons) of NG ADU valued at ¥ 338.30
lakhs (Previous year ¥ 552.72 lakhs) meant for supply to Govt of India.

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

\\\

IREL (India) Limited

e 11 - frawr R = )
Note 11 - Investment (X in lakh)
31 |T 2020 Y 31 1T 2019 Y
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
F4ETUT / Particulars e (€.) [sifeagea| T | unen (@) [sifea gem| vt
R |GEEW) R |GEEWH)
Quantity Face Amount | Quantity Face Amount
(No's) value () | Rinlakh)| (No's) value () | Rin lakh)
A | THAIC T # faer GERa)
Investment in mutual fund at FVTPL (Quoted)
@aﬁﬁaﬂ (émﬁﬁagw) 1,75,113.517| 3,251.443| 5,693.72| 2,24,607 1,019 2,289.76
UTI Investment (Cash Liquid Plan) - Direct
Growth
wa?hnﬁ%w Total Current investments | 1:79:113.517| 3,251.443| 5,693.72| 2,24,607 1,019 2,289.76
for S50t et et o6t et feT -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
I50 AT 37T AT e S et TR 5,693.72 2,289.76
Aggregate amount of c?uoted investments and
market value thereof
EENER @RI AT CEIE] - - - -
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of
investments
T 12 - SR A 9o R =T )
Note 12 - Trade receivables (X in lakh)
31 |Tef 2020 ST | 31 T 2019 AT
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
ﬂ'{ﬁﬁ, 3T=3T HHT AT / secured, considered good 2,572.26 1,518.41
3TYIIEd, 3T=T /T T4 / Un-secured, considered good 581.93 213.24
waﬁfmﬁm@qﬁa‘ / Significant increase in credit risk : -
G{d 0T / Credit Impaired 6.49 6.49
3,160.68 1,738.14
T4 WfeTy O & fTT WG / Less: Provision for credit loss (6.49) (6.49)
et / Total 3,154.19 1,731.65
ﬁzls-maﬁ'{mmax & @ )
Note 13 - Cash and cash equi valents (X in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 Y| 31 HTE 2019 T
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
m@'@ﬁrﬁéﬁﬁ%wm / Balances with banks in Current accounts 853.85 1,517.67
3 T ek bt 37afy o feTT S H STHT / Bank deposits for less than 3 months 3,202.11 -
T ® g / Cash on Hand 1.39 0.65
et / Total 4,057.35 1,518.32
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AT 14 - AT dehl ok IIT & g )
Note 14 -Other Bank Balances (R in lakh)
31 WT 2020 SHT| 31 WTE 2019 T

faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
dent o Tt e ST (fSTRTATH) / Earmarked deposits with banks (PRMS) 3,500.00 3,500.00
12 W?WWI 3T / Deposits placed for 12 months 44,351.45 36,241.67
TS o9 o 7§ T TS ST Al / Deposits held as margin money 653.73
= / Total 47,851.45 40,395.40
AT 15 - g o ufteufa= - o R A= )
Note 15 - Current financial assets - Loans (R in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 <Y | 31 W 2019 <At

faawut / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

EEUTQ'E[ e - ﬁ'a'?l'aﬁ'/ Loans and advances - directors
E,Tr?d'ﬁ, =T HMHT AT / Secured, considered good

?HW&W, 3T=3T HHT AT / Unsecured, considered good

FOT SfE & %r_cl'i[ﬂ'f 7{@ / Significant increase in credit risk
g{d %07 / Credit Impaired

3EUTQ3' ST - a»'ﬁ%m"r/ Loans and advances - employees
QTFW, 3T=ST H{MT AT / Secured, considered good

3:|§Tr?ﬂ?f, ST QT AT / Unsecured, considered good

0T SITEH H HeqUl 914 / Significant increase in credit risk
W09 %07 / Credit Impaired

FUT AT A= ThS AT ARG T § U HTA I FHIT AT Yool § U Yool o forg

Loans and advances -advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Y&, 3T=T /T 7T / Secured, considered good

ag’\'ﬁﬂﬁ, 3T=3T HMHT AT / Unsecured, considered good
W?ﬁ@ﬁ'ﬁ'wq@( / Significant increase in credit risk
QT 07 / Credit Impaired

HATC: FOT 1 BI o foag aaem

Less: Provision for credit loss

el / Total

- 0.43

236.00 331.13
271.32 468.64
3.57 3.57
9,909.99 9,786.31
2.92 2.92
(2.92) (2.92)
10,420.88 10,590.08
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T 16 - = Fau fasig gfgufaat g )
Note 16 - Other current financial assets (X in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 ST | 31 T 2019 AT
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
12 9EH ¥ hH 99 o fog MfSH 7+ oF ®9 § grafy s 246.66 -
Term Deposit as Margine Money for less than equal to 12 months
THTAT AT / 0T &/ Outstanding income / Despatch Money 1,156.75 1,156.82
WIS <1 / Claims receivable
ﬂTﬁ’ﬂ?‘f 3T=3T HIHT AT / Secured, Considered good 1.60 -
JTGfera T 9T 74T / Unsecured, Considered good 3,386.71 4,585.05
WW'&WW/ Significant increase in credit risk ) N
Wd &7 / Credit Impaired 116.45 116.45
T« Wfarer FoT qo S % fo waw (116.45) (116.45)
Less: Provision for credit loss
e 17 - 3= g gt R g )
Note 17 - Other Non-Finanacial Current Assets (X in lakh)
31 UTel 2020 <Y | 31 WTE 2019 ShT
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
YT ST o STEATET 3T T
Advances other than capital advances
TehE AT ARG T H AT Y WA A o AT G A FT I A S 6,599.23
Advances to statute recoverable/ adjustable.
FOT ST T - e - TR STt AT T EHE 14.98
Advances - Employees - unsecured considered good
W?ﬁ'@qﬁwqﬁ&' / Significant increase in credit risk - -
GUd 30T / Credit Impaired = -
FHHART SIS AT / Deferred employees cost 31.32 38.41
TUS =T / Prepaid Expenses
TfiUe gg o7 fohTRIT / Prepaid Lease rent ) 38.39
el / Total 8,855.35 6,691.01
e 17 & - =T g gt R = )
Note 17A - Other current assets (X in lakh)
31 TTel 2020 <Y | 31 WTE 2019 <R
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
foem & fore wifera aftaafaar / Asset pending disposal 6.93 3.40
6.93 3.40

el / Total
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e 18 -gfFadt vraw Uit & g )
Note 18 - Equity share capital (X in lakh)
31 WT 2020 SHT| 31 TS 2019 T
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
S1ferehd / Authorised:
1000/ - ¥ % 10,00,000 3T IR (e 99 < 2 1000 / - F3% & 10,00,000 10,000.00 10,000.00
HEZRIEY!
10,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 1,000/- each (PY: 10,00,000 Equity shares of ¥1,000/-
each)
el / Total 10,000.00 10,000.00
Gllﬂ, mﬁm 3ﬁ'{' Wm: [ Issued, subscribed and paid up:
8,63,650 (fraet a: 8,63,650) 3R IR U 2 1,000/~ & T e T PTAH 5 A 8,636.50
™
8,63,650 (PY: 8,63,650) Equity shares of ¥1,000/- each fully paid up
el / Total 8,636.50 8,636.50
31 TT 2020 ST | 31 WTE 2019 T
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
fraifd fafer T ek Teet Ui ret Y STafY o SR T8 e F YA ok T H afad I/ Nil I/ Nil
IeRI Y THfRT G@AT S a7 SRt STy & ST 9K famT T § e
Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract
without payment being received in cash during the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting date
fraifd fafer & ok et Ui QT Bt YAy 3 SR S STERT o HreAm  Srafad e I/ Nil I/ Nil
ot TR T ST SRl Y S, Rt g0 T T e femar T €
Aggregate number and class of shares alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares
during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date
it aRE § T Tt I QI i AT & < BEE! TE IR &1 FoT G T I/ Nil I/ Nil
IR T Tt
Aggregate number and class of shares bought back during the period of five years
immediately preceding the reporting date
frarfd fafer § X Tt U Uret BT STafY o <A St 7 R off SR o SRt/ I/ Nil I/ Nil

o GeT e fRar R |

During the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date the Company
has not issued/bought back any shares.

S T SIS VTR T Tk o & Skt T % 1000/~ I T2 § | Heieh ¥R €k ohT Wi $19R Uk a1 3 foe ar § | ofegemas
Y AT H, 3 IRYRS ST SR 3 STIUTd #, <hU+t 1 IIY TOfe e e o e o 7.

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of % 1,000/- per Share. Each Share holder is eligible for one vote
per share held. In the Event of Liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company,

in proportion to their shareholding.
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(i) o o Yre3TE W ST 3id o FehTar Sfaact FIERl shl UTAT vl YHIM:

(i) Reconciliation of number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
fa@ut / Particulars T R @@ o) e u REE@H)
(In Nos.) (% in lakh) (In Nos.) ( in lakh)
T F ST F THTAT I 8,63,650 8,636.50 8,63,650 8,636.50
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
a9 & 37q T THTAT I 8,63,650 8,636.50 8,63,650 8,636.50
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

5% I 37fereR JIET aTel Uedleh YIECeIeah g &M shu=t o Y1 okt faaur:

Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

31 W= 2020 ST 31 Wt 2019 AT
WW?W/ Name of Shareholder As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
T IR | QfesTarT % | oM@ 9IEl | gifesTT et %
= @ % of Holding Cakeeo % of Holding
Number of Number of
Shares held Shares held
E%M/ Equity Shares:
TR O ST wgE e 8,63,650 100% 8,63,650 100%
Government of India and its nominee
I 19 - 3T ZfFAET / Note 19 - Other equity
[T o R T #)
General reserve (X in lakh)
31 |Tet 2020 <hY| 31 W 2019 AT
faawuT / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
TRf\es 319 / Opening balance 8,200.18 8,200.18
T o SR TS / Transaction during the year . B
T 9 / Closing balance 8,200.18 8,200.18

WEY AT YA - TE SHU 3 o AT T § rferyig ¥ fffa faawor @ fisd 21

Nature and Purpose - This is distributable reserve created out of surplus in profit and loss of the Company.

Ufqenfia ShuTe / Retained earnings

31 T 2020 AT | 31 A= 2019 <At
faa®ut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
URWeR 9w / Opening balance 63,156.90 56,113.04
T & SR ST / Transaction during the year -
9 o T &MY / () / Profit / (loss) for the year 29,175.91 11,751.93
aﬁ%fm 3 Ak AT / Other comprehensive income for the year (810.13) (307.80)

fTenfie TS # HI=IaT Ot 9 STafy S o ST T
Impact on account of prior period items recognised in Retained Earnings
TS / Dividend (12,658.31) (4,400.27)

3ifaw 919 / Closing balance 78,864.37 63,156.90

70th Annual Report 2019-20




s (e fafies

IREL (India) Limited

TET 3T TS - T TS HATE hu-T GRT 6l ¥ TR ST ST gIal ht Hfafiere sedt 21

Nature and Purpose - Retained earnings represents accumulated earnings and losses made by the Company over the years.

A\

e 20 - = T-adu fawia T=an R o )
Note 20 - Other non-current financial liabilities (R in lakh)
31 WTe 2020 ST | 31 W 2019 AT
faawur / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
faw qgrt T / Lease Liability/Finance lease obligations 40.50 14.48
A / Others 0.01 0.01
el / Total 40.51 14.49
1T 21 - TC-TAH HTae= R e )
Note 21 - Non-current provisions (R in lakh)
31 9Tl 2020 AT | 31 WK 2019 AT
faaxut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
) FHIART AT foTT 1T / a) Provision for employee benefits 11,741.31 10,512.81
@) 3 / b) Others
37 T WS / Other long term provision 184.91 196.22
TOI¥T Y o foTT UTAET # / Provision for entry tax # 67.79 69.67
@ﬂ-/ Total 11,994.01 10,778.70

# g TS 3T ShTTT h el A o & & 3G GU U hT SGhIT IHTE 7 I UG 3o U, 1999 T WL o el 3
T JETT T Ut 35 o YT 31T e ohT STl fehalT © | FIfTTSres ohi S1Tgeh, hadh “CCT” & KT 39 faeg st = -t 3<ran
I AT o GHY Ueh T AT R 1 | BTeiifeh, @Tal | 2 148.94 g (st o 7 148.94 Tr@) =t faanfed Tiyt ugme =t
TE B | U 7 Fer AfuhTiar gRT FERTT Wfdt o T H 2 79 .28 W@ (T 99 ¥ 77.63 TRG) 1 el YT Rl GHTITST feRaT,
518 Toret <ga o faes fere forar T 2

# The Oscom unit of the Company, considering furnace oil and coal as raw material claimed set off of entry tax paid on them
under the provisions of ‘Orissa Entry Tax Act, 1999. Against the disallowance of this by the Commissioner of Commercial Tax,
Cuttack “CCT” the Company filed a writ petition before the Hon’ble Orissa High Court. However, the disputed amount of ¥148.94
lakhs (previous year ¥ 148.94 lakhs) has been provided in the accounts. The Company adjusted an aggregate amount of
% 81.15 lakhs (previous year ¥ 79.28 lakhs) with CCT as directed by the competent authorities which has been nettted against
the gross liability.

T 22 - T-adu Taar R o )
Note 22 - Other non-current liabilities (R in lakh)
31 |T= 2020 <hY| 31 WT= 2019 <hY
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
3T TFAIC # / Other liabilities # 5,000.00 5,000.00
5,000.00 5,000.00

el / Total
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# 3T AT - Sk MY T o HRT GO JROT (ISN) o STTAR Jraht 7 I3 & FR0T A9 et § 5000 G TG BT

UM CIERERIRICIY
# Other Liabilities - Being Bank Guarantee encashed amount ¥ 5000 lakhs off M/s TTPL due to non lifting of materials as per
schedule.
T 23 - TAHH SR I (Elck:))
Note 23 - Current trade payables (X in lakh)
31 WT 2020 ST | 31 T 2019 Y
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Bl aﬂ'{'agm/ Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs) s 974.23
e T o ITH & A / Other than MSEs A 2,212.57
e/ Total 4,171.45 3,186.80
AT 24 - 3 FAAH o TIamd g )
Note 24 - Other current financial liabilities (X in lakh)
31 9Te 2020 Y| 31 °T 2019 Y
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
T T - A, T ST A T 360.57 177.30
Other Payables - Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSEs)
EcEikcn f?«nz w / Liabilities for expenses 7,255.03 4,238.41
ST AT / Lease Liability Aty -
L& 3T TfemoT o / Security and retention money 2,010.18 1,530.48
e ¥ A / Advance from customer 652.98 442.52
3T AT ## / Other liabilities ## 2,063:13 2/446.52
12,351.89 8,835.23

el / Total
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Yau, oY AT Heam Sem faenmm sifafaw, 2006 (MSMED) o T&d Uit gai i o1Y Seml o ohel GehTaT (eT 31T

ST) & AR W TR T & TS g

The information regarding total outstanding dues (principal & interest) of micro and small enterprises as defined under
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) is given below.

@ @@ ®) /  in lakh)

31 |Te 2020 Y 31 9T 2019 <RT
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
I o - TAAE- IR T - FAHME- AR
drdentforen q9aMG- | IT IR I | Aefertlcren 3qaG- | 7 i oy
faawut / Particulars étreﬁ'{'smy [ é?raﬁ'{‘amr T TG
Tt R
Non current Current -Trade Non current Current -Trade
- Long term payable & - Long term payable &
liabilities -Trade Other current liabilities -Trade Other current
payable & Other liabilities payable & Other liabilities
current liabilities current liabilities

TAUHTAS St SUTTT & o Tsiigha STyfaehian &l o
e TR S o o 39 A acprr Ay SR UL 2,111.91 I/ NIL 1,151.53
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the = o
MSMEs Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of year
THTHURSS! fufTe & qRd USiehd STafaehdie i o
et fer i & 377 & wepren fer =1/ NIL IR/ NIL IR/ NIL TR/ NIL
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMEs
Act and remaining unpaid as at the end of year
o & R fr o % 91, TIeETEES & de TSied
TMfieRaiall o THUHUAES! Stffam &t &RT 16 % T&a
T o2 T =t NIL NIL
Interest paid, under section 16 of the MSMEs Act, W/ NIL EEI/ NIL QI;I/ W/
to suppliers registered under MSMEs, beyond the
appointed day during the year
YA A F forcier T eTafyr o ferw =amet Rt < T 3T
T (et T foma T € wifer o 3 <R fra fem
% 91E) ik TUEUEEE! sttt o ded iy = &t
e femi
Amount of interest due and payable for the period A/ NIL A/ NIL A/ NIL ST/ NIL
of delay in making payment (which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without adding the interest specified under MSMEs
Act.
I o 37 F AT AT HT T I 7T o forw srehram
awroo » _ IR/ NIL I/ NIL I/ NIL I/ NIL
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at
the end of year.
TICEUAEE St ST T URT 23 % TR haldt A o
H WG & IETT W, T Hi ARG § T T i
31 T 31X <7 T o, 57 ok o STk =1t Bt AT
I § 1T ST T AR FT F T HITE B
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable R/ NIL T/ NIL I/ NIL I/ NIL

even in the succeeding years, until such date when
the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
MSMEs Act.
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T 25 - A TAUH IATY, g )
Note 25 - Other current liabilities (X in lakh)
31 WT=t 2020 AT | 31 WI=F 2019 AT
faa®uT / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
IIT%H#I\T 3T T / Advances from Customers 3,883.15 2,913.27
Tifaferes AT / Statutory Liabilities 575.60 256.88
3T AT / Other liabilities 2,338.54 2,766.56
= / Total 6,797.29 5,936.71
AT 26 - AT UL X Trg ¥)
Note 26 - Current provisions (X in lakh)
31 WT=t 2020 <hT| 31 WI=F 2019 AT
faa®uT / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
SIS AT & T I / Provision for employee benefits 7,484.79 8,669.33
3T / Others
GfagreTer UTGeT / Contractual Provision 2,220.37 972.50
%7 / Total 9,705.16 9,641.83
A< 27 - TR ¥ 3 X Trg )
Note 27 - Revenue from operations (X in lakh)
31 |T= 2020 hY 31 |T™ 2019 Y
faaut / Particulars AT o o |EIQ: AT o o lE"I-

For the year ended

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

IATE] T faeht / Sale of Products 96,680.57 72,156.39

frsht / Sale of Services 6,294.67 4,498.17

37 YIS 3T / Other Operating Revenues 898.86 319.74

hel / Total 1,03,874.10 76,974.30
A / Note:

IeqTeT T farcht  THSE o SR W 0T 1 T el g H ¥, 53742.35 9@ (T a6 &, 40137.37 A1@) 1 377 MHAE |

Sale of products includes earning in foreign exchange amounting to ¥ 53742.35 lakhs (Previous year¥ 40137.37 lakhs) calculated
on FOB basis.

iR IS HIET f5-T0 (TSNS & fT ¥R TR 1 fa9 §9 § YfT forT ST aer gatest o fae Ter =i o
2010-11 % fow 7Hifed < A &. 13,557 / - UfA fohell o SR O AT < STt 8 1 ¥ 2T 2012-13 § 2019-20 T Foff o
% feTw amfreR WT=TaT o foTT ShITaR oIy ot 778 2 | 9T SR § oiifeh ohe I 3= <X T ST fohaT ST Gehell €, IR T (S
T T YR 7) I =1/ Tfehanati # sifaw s/ifed X (F. 18733 / - WiT fohei) 3R F. 28806 T ¥ &1 Gohell € 1 2016-17
# RED 3K OSCOM ¥ SHHTT: 3TfT & T 2019-20 & Whepa / - wfT foram) | fafers s1amTe ot 819 W, 39 T & STHIeT &I
T 3 o1 % ST JTe Th XIS S FeeqT WA STl € | e8I, &.1393.00 ARG T 1T JRF9e &9 F F.Y.2016-17 & feIe wr=ram
TS € 3T 379 S 91 o o Tiepa TRT a1 & 2019-20 H o1 o & § A1 & TE B |

Revenue towards compensation for Nuclear Grade Amonium Di-uranate (NGADU) supplied exclusively to Government of India
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(Gol) is continued to be recognised on the basis of rate approved for the year 2010-11 vide communication dated 13th April,
2012; i.e. at¥ 13,557/- per kg. This rate has been consistently applied for the initial recognition for all year from 2012-13 to 2019-
20. This is because even though a higher rate may at times be claimed, the actual cost incurred (Which is the basis of the claim)
may at difference plants/processes be less than the last approved rates (318733 /- per kg & ¥ 28806 /- per kg approved in 2019-
20 for supplied effected in 2016-17 from RED & OSCOM respectively). Upon receipt of specific approval, the differential impact is
considered as part of the revenue in the year of receipt of such approval. Accordingly, ¥ 1393.00 Lakhs being the difference of the
sum initially recognised for F.Y.2016-17 and the sum now approved for those years is recognised as revenue in the year 2019-20.

foerTe=r o Tifaer / Performance Obligations:
HEeqUT ST I TR fersht o wrer-wner frafa fesht o W H, SATSTeR WG H STe Sl vTt o fore ST ST i Savgehan
Gkl

Significant Payment Terms: In case of domestic sales as well as export sales, in most of the cases contract terms require

payment in advance.

e 28 - 3T I & g )
Note 28 - Other income (R in lakh)
319 2020 ST | 31 WIS 2019 ThY
faawur / Particulars TR T e T T4 ferg
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
T B feiTar 3T AT U ST 92 AT 7T ©
Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
sk STAT 9T / On Bank deposits 3,482.93 2,454.77
3T STHT 9T / On others 939.06 1,357.79
T AT T o WA ¥ 3 qo WA M i uRguthEt § e 3 e 279.29
Dividend income from financial assets measured at Fair value through profit
or loss
ﬂo‘&'ﬁﬁ?ﬁ'ﬂ?{fm/ Net foreign exchange gain 213.79 32.52
Ty, G497 AT SUH0T 1 faeh T oo 547 60.84
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
31 TC-AR=Te e 377 / Other non-operating income 631.77 503.58
F / Total 5,649.17 4,688.79
e 29 - SUYTH QAT Sl AW R T #)
Note 29 - Cost of materials consumed (X in lakh)
31°Te 2020 Y | 31 9T 2019 ST
faawut / Particulars AT 4 ferg A T ferg
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
JYYTh hedl Al / Raw material consumed TG 6,460.54
JYYh THET / Chemicals consumed 2,600.16 2,626.56
et / Total 9,387.99 9,087.10

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

A\

IREL (India) Limited

qE- 29 & - AR | ©ich oht @IS X arg ¥)
Note 29A - Purchase of Stock in Trade (X in lakh)
31 HT= 2020 Y 31 HT™ 2019 &Y
foraTuT / Particulars TG A ok few, | W o ok ferg

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

R § Wik &I WS / Purchase of stock in trade 1,922.04 B
heT / Total 1,922.04 -
A 30 - FTR TS, Wich-3T-3F A Wi U h1dl o aeg et o ufiad o )
Note 30 - Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-Trade and work-in-progress (X in lakh)

31 9T 2020 ST | 31 WTE 2019 ST
faawut / Particulars U =T o ferg T o4 ferg
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
4 ok 3T W / At the end of the Year
JF A / Finished Goods 7,628.81 9,165.93
Wi W % / Work-In-Progress 3,564.17 2,957.23
MR | &T%(&od(ﬂlgwi’ld) / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization) = -
3T 6 Sfeha % fae Femadt I 30.90 335.36
Intermediate product for further processing
11,223.88 12,458.52
o oh ATCEH A/ At the beginning of the Year
IR A / Finished Goods 8,865.60 9,519.48
T R & / Work-In-Progress 2,957.23 959.48
R H «qu@wmls'ww) / Stock-in-Trade(Canalization) = -
3T B Sifohan o forg weperetf Seare LESH 267.68
Intermediate product for further processing
12,458.52 10,746.64
heT / Total 1,234.64 (1,711.88)
T 31 - HUAR oW =T R g )
Note 31 - Employee benefits expense (X in lakh)
31 9T 2020 ST | 31 WTEF 2019 ST
faawut / Particulars FuTe o o ferg T T4 % ferg
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
CLE] ﬁTW / Salaries and wages S 19,747.62
wfersy fafer 31T 3777 faferll 7 AeT / Contribution to provident and other funds 2,310.59 2,748.09
FHHAR HAT T / Staff welfare expense 2,920.49 3,737.27
HaTE: R TRASITST / Yo Tl & HTaRES Y[eeh o 7= Tt 31X I (112.43) (119.03)
YA o e g&aiaia =
Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead
charges from the Government projects/capital works
et / Total 25,549.94 26,113.95
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AWifeRer T/ B1T) / Acturial Gain / (Loss)

Tt / Gratuity (990.41) (84.96)
FANTHATH / PRMS (94.15) (388.16)
W T / Resettlement Allowances 1.94 -
heT / Total (1,082.61) (473.12)

AT URATT AHE AS -19 o 3T fafde HHET o ATl o o foht T W o e § 3Tavaes Uahed i ST 41 & agd

fegm M 7.

Note: 1T : (1) WA GT WIeh T -19 o 7aTia {af¥7e swH=mt ol o fou forT T oraren o Gaer i ey areh Jeha A1 =T

41 % TRa fe@m M E.

(1) Disclosures required by Ind AS -19 in respect of provision made towards various Employees benefits is shown under Note

no 41

(2) o & R, e 1 SHaRt 2017 T 31 SHART 2018 T o AT AfUHRAT o Fa= o TR F HRT T o HROT
2018-19 H ST T A & T AT S 7TE 7, T, 285 TARG o V1T HT T YT o T ot off stframedar ot g1y et

% Y & ®TH R ST TR

(2) During the year, liability due to pay revision of executives w.e.f. 1st Jan 2017 till 31st Dec 2018 has been recognised out of
provision created in 2018-19, balance provision Rs. 285 lakh is being carried as provision to meet any exigencies at the time

of payment.
e 32 - fau =t e X g )
Note 32 - Finance costs (R in lakh)
31UTe 2020 ST | 31 WTE 2019 ShT
faawut / Particulars Wa‘f%ﬁfﬂ‘l Wa‘fﬁb‘ﬁ'ﬂl
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
TR AT T A e fowi Sl W S 2
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

ST - 3T / Interest - others 4.78 2.62
el / Total 4.78 2.62
e 33 - T @ g )
Note 33 - Other expenses (R in lakh)

31 TTE 2020 ST | 31 W 2019 ST

faawut / Particulars bl EIH‘&‘%—TW qH “aﬁ‘a’?l%'q
For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
HISTT ﬁTﬂﬁWB’q‘lﬁ"T # / Consumption of stores and spares # 2,733.68 2,222.57
farTeft 3R €21 / Power and fuel 7,563.87 8,170.34
f&aT / Rent 186.02 126.12
AL S I / Repairs to buildings 780.58 530.66
YR oh! WO / Repairs to machinery 1,328.34 1,231.71
A - 39 / Repairs- others 2,406.90 2,511.37
T / Insurance 80.09 110.10
134.51 88.13

T 3 37 &T / Rates and taxes

70 = arffer fatE 2019-20



sgemEue (gfean) fafiee

\\\

IREL (India) Limited

TFeat / Royalty

3R TS €t & &9 / R & D Expenses

3af¥Te fae @ / Waste disposal expenses

it aﬁr%@t%mm@%f/ Packing and handling expenses
SHHIYH / Commission

9 ML/ feet T GUf, WA ST IUHIT W THGM

Loss on property, plant and equipment sold/discarded

Hfery 30T, gufa ST 371 o A e

Provision for doubtful debts,assets and advances

3T WEN T JohdH
Loss of non-moving stores

TITHSR ot YO ## / CSR & Sustainability ##

IqMET - / Travelling Expenses

SerTfrer TraTReT Y[k / Statutory Audit fees

T T T Yok / Tax audit fees

@ IXET AT / Cost Audit fees

3T YA / Other services

I 3 ST T / Travelling and out of pocket expenses
Gist T ﬁ'ﬂ'f?f‘{[('_m" / Export Duty on minerals

frsit gL LT3 o few =77 / Expenses for Pvt. Security Arrangements
WW@‘WW / Mining Lease exp.

fafayr =19 / Miscellaneous expenses

T 3T T T TR o STX T fCASTred / USft STt § s
el St g

Less: Expenditure transferred to other heads & recoupment of overhead
charges from Government projects/capital works

el / Total

2,359.50 1,907.07
179.49 229.97
139.92 214.79

2,788.04 1,828.05
13.55 8.37
0.50 14.86

- 1.20

93.06 34.89
271.80 150.58
328.14 312.72
8.80 7.38

1.80 1.63

0.60 0.60

0.38 0.25

6.42 6.36
731.36 613.55
1,056.99 955.96
1,778.36 954.10
2,222.48 2,480.95
27,195.18 24,714.28
(211.57) (454.94)
26,983.61 24,259.34

#N: 31 WTE 2020 1 TUTW o o feIT Smanfae / Ty shetgst ST ¥2eh! 1 Tod

# Note: Value of imported / Indigenous spare parts & components consumed For the year ended 31st March 2020

faaut / Particulars

31 |T= 2020 Y
[T 9 ok ferg

For the year ended
31st March 2020

31 |T 2019 Y
T o o oy

For the year ended
31st March 2019

AT (%) / Imported (%)
< (%) / Indigenous (%)
%l / Total

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

## 1T - TGS T / ## Note - CSR Expenditure

(&) T ZRT T o SR T for el ST o AT STavareh Tehe M1 2 241.32 A (et o - 2 33.72)
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year ¥ 241.32 lakhs (PY ¥ 33.72)
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(@) 31.03.2020 T T¥ o SR @ ! TE TRTR 271.80 (T a9 (PY) 2 150.58 )

(b) Amount spent during the year on 31.03.2020 ¥ 271.80 (PY % 150.58 lakhs)

A\

31U 2020 ST | 31 WTE 2019 ST
faawut / Particulars HHTH aﬁa;ﬁ'"{ T T4 ferg
For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(i) fopt oft wftegufs =1 fmfor / S3femrgoT / Construction / acquisition of any asset 43.68 12.12
(i) SULT=P (i) o STATET 31T AT T / On purposes other than (i) above 22812 138.46
et / Total 271.80 150.58
T o o o1e ek ok § A 5T ST a1k T € 2 32.15 WRa (et o - 2 14.79)
Yet to be paid in cash for the year is ¥ 32.15 lakhs (PY T 14.79)
AT 34: T KT =T R @@ #)
Note 34: Income Tax Expense (R in lakh)
31 HTel 2020 <Y | 31 |T 2019 T

faaut / Particulars

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

(o) AT h{ =T / (a) Income tax expense
AU T / Current tax
TAH I R feTT / For Current Year

3 &Y / Income tax 11,617.62 7,494.21
faser =t oh fAT / For earlier years
3T Y / Income tax - (284.47)
Qﬁ'aﬁ’qﬁaﬂ'/ Total of Current tax 11,617.62 7,209.74
AT ST / Deferred Tax
SR T YUK / (ShfST) / Deferred tax charge/(credit) (499.12) 1,099.86
el AT ST / Total of Deferred tax d2) 1,099.86
e/ Total 11,118.50 8,309.60
AN 34.1:T T T THATT ST HT ATH ST ST ST W 0T Feham STrem & € g )
Note 34.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate (R in lakh)
f— : 31 HTe 2020 Y | 31 HT 2019 &Y
/erinlene 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
h{ ok UgH YI§ &Y / Net Profit before tax 40,294.41 20,061.52
U T 25.168% BT <X F T BT fached I € (T 9 : 34.944%) 11,617.62 7,494.21
Company has opted tax at the rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 34.944%)
AT feRaT T THITEET / MAT utilised - 1,442.59
I IITE T kT THTE ST SR AT ST hi TUMT ehid U she il AT TRE @ /
HT AT T &
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / not taxable in calculating
taxable income
(743.87) 44473

HIg 1 / Depreciation
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Hferer %o o oI qTar9T= / Provision for credit impaired 33.05 638.99
YT 43 &t o e 3TEHIA / Disallowance u/s 43B (42.86) 595.42
HaTgf o a1g faferedT ASHT / Post retirement medical scheme 496.96 (209.83)
3T GHY 3T / Other timing differences (234.89) (1,814.96)
ST BT / Unabsorbed Loss ; N
EECHNIIEG] HeIgIH / Unabsorbed Depreciation ) .
ITST AT kT AT / Deferrement of interest income 0.14 1.47
EX REL I / Finance lease obligation (7.65) 1.46
7 o 3 feF T A Frore W Iae T : (284.47)
Reversal of excess provision made in earlier year
3T h{ T / Income Tax expense 11,118.50 8,309.61
frer & daer W srefitg sve 9w 1 3T 2019 |oNW AT AHSEH | 31 | 2020
=) TeT | WI=IAT | W=t U / Q)
W / Seret fear|  gAeiteRa
Deferred tax balance in relation to As at Recognised/ | Recognised in As at 31st
1st April 2019 reversed I reclassified March
through profit from OCI 2020
and loss
e o forg, srmeerfia sRT AT
Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
T ST HT YETY o SreT B e 1,217.62 (743.87) 473.75
Difference between book and tax depreciation
mew 1,217.62 (743.87) - 473.75
Total deferred tax liabilities
1 @ W i s uiEutaai:
Deferred tax assets on account of:
TUT & 3qT F FHRUT 4R 43§ F Aq0G D 358.62 42.86 249.27 650.75
T AT T 7
Disallowances U/s 43B allowable as timing
differences
@ETHW@TW%WW 91.15 (33.05) 58.10
Provision for Doubtful debts and Advances
Fanfrgfa & are faferaT et 1,994.98 (496.96) 23.70 1,521.72
Post Retirement Medical Scheme
3T UOF 37X / Other timing differences 2,642.39 234.89 -0.49 2,876.79
ST 37T ] ST 0.57 (0.14) 0.43
Deferrement of interest income
fowr qgT TS / Finance lease obligation 5.06 7.65 12.71
QTI@ ohfea 9T / MAT credit entitlement B B B
Hel rerfiTa ST Hule 5,092.77 (244.75) 272.48 5,120.50
Total deferred tax assets
el / Total 3,875.15 499.12 272.48 4,646.75
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e 35: W&Wtﬂ'ﬂ' /Note 35: Fair value measurements
ST gRT a1 T / Financial instruments by category

A\

R arE )
(X in lakh)

faerut / Particulars 31 |T=t 2020 / 31st March 2020 31 ®Tet 2019 / 31st March 2019
: ftgnera TiyT G aftgnfera TivT

FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
fariter et : T ada=
Financial assets: Non-current
ﬁT -ga f1937 / Non-current investments 14.17 " 14.17 -
% T 919 / Bank Balances 4,478.54 483.27
GU&T STHT / Security deposit : 2,152.95 B 1,893.17
Loans and advances - employees
37T H0T TS M . ey - -
Other Loans and advances
ot uftgufvai: adam
Financial assets: Current
99T / Investment 5,693.72 B 2,289.76 -
AN 9T / Trade receivables = 3,154.19 - 1,731.65
Cash and cash equivalents
37 ¥ & 919 / Other Bank balances : 47,851.45 B 40,395.40
F0T TE A - T - - - 0.43
Loans and advances - directors
Loans and advances - employees
Other Loans and advances
T A fertiar ittt - SRS - 5.741.87
Other current financial assets
@?ﬁ?ﬂ'ﬂ'ﬂﬁ'@qﬁ‘l’q’[ | Total financial assets 5,707.89 77,738.66 2,303.93 63,043.63
o Saard « AT -adw
Financial liabilites: Non-current
IR < / Trade payables ) N
ST M TS 31 / Lease Liability & Others - 40.51 - 14.49
foritar Taa : A=
Financial liabilites: Current
MR 3T / Trade payables . 4,171.45 B 3,186.80
Other current financial liabilities

- 16,563.85 - 12,036.52

et fawita QA / Total financial liabilities
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I.  3fad YoT UG / Fair value hierarchy

“forefar aftufaat S eIt o Sfora gout &1 39 T § wnfier ferar Swar € S foreft aftgf <h1 s & fore ome g @
77 91q kT fafer I AT YTt 3 ST Uoh i eie H ST ohl ST o o ft A fRer ST e |

Tg G 3 farita Tremt o Sfer gout o1 i s § fou o fofat 3fix STaT ot e Shar ® ST (o) W o € S
3o g A S © SR (@) TRt am WA S § SR s o o oot # st gedt o e
ST @ | 3fer e ferifea e & ST fohT ST ATl Y R [T o IR K U Hehd e i o fow, U T o1
foreita WU T oRaT Ak o ded (e o SR § aefiehe foram @ | Toieh TX ohT W0 aifeiehl & = €17

"The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed
in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,
the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the table."

W1 : TR | TEIHA & ST Il 1 ST STen AT T forciir Are et € | 39 Yo siaaet igHed, 358 a1
3 BIgaret %S e § = e Sga o ¢ | Wit 3fet Siriew (ate wfea) T Sf g S i Taes  FRER
fefrar ST €, Rifd srafer 3 SR QoI oo o ST ieh qodd & | FeTel &S ohi 5 i dTel TTe! T ST feha
ST |

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including
bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual
funds are valued using the closing NAV.

T 2 Toefr qrert o 3fer oo et ek I & HRIER 6T foa ST € (ST o o, MR 97, SieR-2-H1EaT
2fcafea) 1 FefRor qeaier qer=iich! T SUART ek fohaT ST & FSTE STaciioh a1 aTSTX ST ST STfeeha™ ST §1efT ©
3T ST Tora &1 3T gaTE-fafTe oAt W o fit e € 1 afs ol et o 3t g & o atmavers gt weget
SR AR A €, AT 39 Torg o & 2 H waet ferar T 7 |

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

W 3: A WEwaqul ST H § Ueh AT 31fereh Yacieh I TSR & A(ehel U S el €, af er@ 1 TR 3 ¥ ufffera
T T ® | 7 TR-Teiteg, 3ot Hfafaat, sefees fam ofiT afegfe T) 3 & wnfiet oREufs o JHe 2 |

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Y o R ST qoT TR T o S e TRy e gam € |

There are no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels during the year.

FHHIEAT T FT 3T GREAT STAT <hT 3T o TeTIoh™ o WX 2 § aifchel foham T & | 3771 Tt aegaif ol & 3 | Fffepet
fepam T 2|

Loans to employees and security deposits have been categorised into level 2 of fair value hierarchy. All the other items
have been categorised into level 3.
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sfaa oo fertfta sves o forg Su=inT feman < aret geich den-ich

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Tt vorG o1 Tedich i o foTT UGk Weaqut Jodich aeheichl § T oIfier &

Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

T ST, HAAET T & ST a1et %01 o faw 3faa qod, Taeitens st weferd Sfied amt <X, 10 §Te o afs T e
gfahet <X, el 10 99T & 9 w1gH wifeT 3T & 3o qoa famadt &% T SUEnT ek Tohdl FaTe T ST ©

The fair values for Security deposits, loan to employees are based on discounted cash flows using a discount rate
determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10 year bond, last 10 years
average prime lending rate.

Todieh= AR AT / Valuation processes
S T for farem e e Sewat o for sTavareh TRt 31T SAeIREt o Heaieh S § | Heaieh Uaid o STTHre
& faw T e fgere faw ot fard st 71

The finance department of the company performs the valuation of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes. The team directly reports to the Director Finance for approval of the valuation method.
The main Level 2 input for the valuation process are derived and evaluated as follows:

. Discount rates are determined considering the average of prevailing interest rate of SBI, average yield rate on 10
year bond, last 10 years average prime lending rate that reflect current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

- BT H T THSISTE T FEITCAT AT ST, 10 HTeA o 9178 W S qfqwer <%, et 10 a6 & {19a IqE SR T 1
T g i S § ST R o 9 ged o Hisel SIS et Y uREuty o o sifew o @ g 7

ferd oo UETIeh Y - STTadl Stad Hod Wi

Fair value hierarchy - recurring fair value measurement:

RIF3TA BT H T, 5693.73 TG T a7 AT 31X 7 o A1eam ¥ 3o o7 o feqmar & Tergehe o W) 1 H aifepet oy MU |

Investment in mutual fund amounting to ¥ 5693.73 lakhs accounted at Fair value through profit and loss is categorised into
Level 1 of hierarchy.

ferefrr ufiwiufaa sit Setfiat s sfoaa g uftspd onTa ot amaT 71 fawes foe st geat s gemar fear e
? | (T2 e o UeTIehT o WX 2 S Siaiid aiiehd @)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
(It is categorised under Level 2 of fair value hierarchy)

@ @@ H) / in lakh)

31 WIS 2020 / 31st March 2020 | 31 Wi 2019 &Rt / 31st March 2019
faawur/ Particulars T Tl 3faa 7o T Tl sfaa 7o

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

fo<ita aftguf™r : / Financial assets:

TRET ST / Security deposit 2,152.95 1,879.42 1,893.17 1,796.83

E

Loans and advances - employees

ﬁ?ﬁ?w:ﬁ'{:w

Fina

3T o1fi - =T 1,331.73 1,960.51 1,490.07 1,859.25

ncial liabilites: Non-current

qg'[a]ﬁ:la’/ Lease Liability 40.51 47.67 14.49 16.89
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SR YT, THe T THS THFHE, F0T 37 31 - Fevrer, o7 %07 3fR o1, or=r adwr fasir aftgufta, =) 8 i o=y
A farit aftgufat, SR 37 S 7= adA faxia SeTfial T S oY -TE & HRUT 36k (I qeat o A € AT
SR

The carrying amounts of Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances - directors, other Loans and
advances, other current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities are considered to be the same as
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

e 36 faxia fEw yerem

Note 36: Financial risk management

A ST T foi St 3 for aET S, SR ST 3T AT SnHe € | 3 faeie St o T 3evd St o aRerer
o1 for ST © | At b T foriter qREufal # %07, SR 3T o1 Wi, i Tehe 3R Tehe THehey 6 IHe € <71 W 3ueh
e § ST R | SO GeehT) St # uweetdiuer (FVTPL) fraer off Tedt §1

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise finance lease obligations, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade
and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL
investments in co-operative societies and Mutual Fund.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks.

I.  SRUTSIE@W / Credit risk

T ST IRETer TAfafeRT (T §9 T AR 0 o o) S 1T fammer nfafafest (ot o 31 faxiia qremt &
ey 57 T shfEe SifEw § yfad € |

The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

TEUT SI@W Uaeld / Credit risk management

FOT SFGH T Je YT o fo, ot Te ifd ot 9T et @ S TTeehl ohT Wiet oht BEIE ¥ Teed ST YT SH
T BT § | $9 JHR, AR I T HHT BT FIT HT AT HIA BT STIIRAT AT Tl Bl €, FRIfeh Frfeehar

SfEH o T ST € |
To manage the credit risk, the Company follows a policy wherein the customers are required to make an advance payment

before procurement of goods. Thus, the requirement of assessing the impairment loss on trade receivables does not arise,
since the collectibility risk is mitigated.

S I HaeT I JUT o SRl o T T W ¢ S STERTET T ST JA €7 § YIhRT TS| o T T 9 ¢ |

Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with
government agencies.

T st ST S oo aeTan &, ST @a T8 @ & TrE #)
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired (X in lakh)
31UTe 2020 ShT| 31 Wi 2019 At
faaTut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
6 |TE deh / Upto 6 months 3,151.77 1,731.55
6 ¥ 12 ATE / 6 to 12 months 2.39 .
12 § 24 W& / 12 to 24 months B 0.01
24 § 36 W / 24 to 36 months 0.03 0.09
36 | 3k A8 / More than 36 months 3 )
et / Total 3,154.19 1,731.65
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TAAT W@ / Liquidity risk

T SEH 1 3 MG o T H AR o ST € ST st 7o ZRiceit shi Sy o 7 Sfet e o fver =
Wﬁw?ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ e SifEw fadi Serfet S fm fom g, W%éﬁaﬁrmﬁ?ﬁa
ch [{UT Il cd] SISkl

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. For the company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities such as finance
lease, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

(SR TLeTaT WR@H Wael / (a) Liquidity risk management

S T HIARE TSR T aeram ST Gt & wrer-qe fue & fog off fTier @ | 39er ST, 39 oW ! Sifawi §
Taferd ufshaTe 3T Fifaar aftss e gRT 3T 1 S € | Hee S Tohal JaTe o SR I T qaigH o e
Y T T YT rT 1 e Rt R e €|

The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement. In addition,

processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company’s
net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

31 Tl 2020 SR / As at 31st March 2020

T-sgee it SeTial st uftaerear R g #)
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities (R in lakh)
GUEARA | 6UEA 1Y | 1599l ah | sauf s ag
fa@uT / Particulars ikl et / Total
Less than 6 | 6 months to Between 1 Beyond 5
months 1 year and 5 years years
SR 39 / Trade payables 3,463.39 176.98 521.18 9.90 4,171.45
fTﬁf‘:@T/ Lease Liability 717 717 35.65 82.11 132.10
a7 forefts e 9,312.89 1,072.42 1,648.72 317.86 12,351.89
Other financial liabilities
et / Total 12,783.45 1,256.57 2,205.55 409.87 16,655.44
31 |Te 2019 TRT/ As at 31st March 2019
- fasit e st uftuererr R e )
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities (X in lakh)
GUEUHY | 6HUEY 199 | 1 ¥5aufeh | 5 a6l share
faawut / Particulars % el / Total
Less than 6 | 6 months to Between 1 Beyond 5
months 1 year and 5 years years
S 22aE / Trade payables 3,060.05 22.85 20.14 83.77 3,186.80
ﬁ-ﬂ--q-g-r/ Finance lease - 1.61 8.05 83.72 93.38
311 forfr Samd 7,158.69 437.39 150.90 1,088.24 8,835.22
Other financial liabilities
et / Total 10,218.74 461.84 179.09 1,255.72 12,115.40
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AT Rl SREH / Market risk

ﬁ%vﬁgaraﬁshﬁatr/ Foreign currency risk

facett ga7 <X # ufiad o Sifaw o faw ot &1 Sifes T8 €9 § 9@ fagel faskt (tafa sTaftent Sier) o ot shut
T qfteTer Tfafafert § Tefua €1 qfen, fadelt g1 Sifem & fae & fou, st uer AT 7 wrem et €, faw ot
el TTEeh! I AT Ted €14 T o1 STt € | 59 TR, Shut el qs7 Sifes & wurfer et greft 2 |

The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating
activities due to major overseas sales (i.e. US dollars). Hence, to combat the foreign currency exposure, the company
follows a policy wherein the sale is made only on receipt of advance from the customers. Thus, the company is not exposed
to foreign currency risk.

ed ahi SF@W / Price risk
FHO A W H T FERT o qe SREH F T et € ST AT S B o e & S g W g o H atiopa
fepar ST 2

The company is exposed to price risk from its investment in mutual fund and classified in the balance sheet at fair value
through profit and loss.

T el € ATt 31U Hed SIGW o1 Jaref i o fo, st = Sifem fiX e iiweet W e &3 & a1 Hgere %
¥ e o € 3teifa IgaTel e T F 0T MTRTEe SATA Shic © o F0T faamaurs dor 3 o1 TR wifdat i e T € |
To manage its price risk arising from the investment, the Company has invested in the mutual fund after considering it's risk

and return profile i.e. the debt profile of the mutual fund indicates that the debt has been given to creditworthy banks and
other institutional parties.

& @@ ) /  in lakh)

) 319 2020 ST | 31 WTE 2019 ST
Fﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂm/ Sensitivity As at 31st March | As at 31st March
2020 2019

TATE # 2% 1 9 o FAT T o 18 Y T T s 45.80
Impact on profit after tax for 2% increase in NAV

TATH # 29 Y FHHT o q1E AT T TATE (113.87) (45.80)
Impact on profit after tax for 2% decrease in NAV

e 37: Yuit yaes

Note 37: Capital management

T G A B, O T A T e s S T A SRR 4 B T e e E e o o
e T JTIfieh IETT VAR o Yoo bl STfehed AT € |

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable
to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

ETHIYT / Dividends @ @@ ®) / & in lakh)

31 9Te 2020 <hT| 31 TS 2019 Y
faawut / Particulars As at As at

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
(i) sﬁbz"rﬁalﬁ/ Equity shares
31 AT 2019 T AT e 99 61 T 463.15 T T SifH T (e av T U 3,650.00
422.62) T T TE § YA T T 9fT ) W 7
Final dividend For the year ended 31st March 2019 of ¥ 463.15 (PY X 422.62) per fully paid share
(if) forfrar o 2019-20 % foT T fea e fafe @mieT 6,500.00
(ii) Interim Dividened paid for the financial year 2019-20
(iil) RfEa srafir & i & ATwTvT oAt Wr=rar 8 < e & 2 oosnt 4,000.00
(iii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
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T 38: @< I AR

Note 38: Segment information
ECEA] aﬁrug@wﬁrl%rﬁaﬁamﬁam/ Description of segments and principal activities

U T & URETE T sl - HRRRT fITeh! T THE SOt o FSITe ST ST ST € | FeeE | e e futaehat
TR THIET & TR G STORET IHT BT TG 1 ¢ | Fe o Il o o1, o=t 370 ST 3 SR T AT gohTeal i
TS T TE & TATe WIS TR SR THAT THWT. R TR 7 G T -26 / 2015-2020 FeAifera 21-08-2018
S gfe foran € fo s eTEue Tz e wieit o geft fafdt & fow te e 3fem o™ & §0 & %l 0T | 39 Ty # giEnes
/ T i 2019-20 o <R & foham e o | sifes nfafafudt o @ 3rer €, gufer faxta 9 2019-20 % SR T T
TE I AT < ST TE R THR G T 2019-20 T A€ 35k FEER 79 fafén s g6 R

The company’s chief operating decision maker - Group of executive directors examines the company's performance. The
management has identified the operating segment on the basis of review by chief operating decision maker. For management
purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products i,e mineral division and chemical division. Govt.
of India vide notification no-26/2015-2020 Dt.21-08-2018 has notified that IREL shall act upon as a State Trading Enterprises for
all exports of Beach Sands Minerals. The operation/ transactions in this regard was initiated during the financial year 2019-20.
Since the nature of activities are different , hence a new segment is being recognised during the financial year 2019-20. As such
for the year 2019-20 ,there are three reportable segments, as follows:

@) @iTsT g, fSrad STfaeria, THeR 3T =& I et @

(@) Mineral division, which comprises of OSCOM, M.K. and Chavara units

@) TEERTeE Toear, Fas tHedd o7t T3 a7 g It =,

(b)  Chemical units, which comprises of MOPP and RED units.

(M YR T2 I @S o1 AR

(c) Trading of Beach Sand Minerals

TS ol TRETe TafareEt o felg Sep el o SR T 37 37T o7l ohT erEieh fehal T 8 | 37 3 =14, S Toh 9oy &9 4§
HH T G € 3 3fae SR W el o A 1afed el §, 3= ohHeT: SSTfad 7 it S el 33 31X Javdfad 7 foma
S I 93 o e YTl e T 8 | GRETiar S Saa, S SeH & G0 &9 § Fafud § 37T 3o 3UR | §S & fow
3Mefad TR §, STehT 3 3MTafad 7 ol ST et TRET(E1/<IaNS o q8d YA fohal T 8 | 3TN - TS RN bl Wk SeTT
I It o T FTRER /T SaT © ST Uk G Sg3ii o o oTheg TTech! oh! FTR fohar ST € |

Revenue and expenses has been accounted on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Income
and expenses, which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been
included under “Unallocable Income" and “Unallocable Expenses" respectively. Assets and Liabilities, which relate to the
enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been included under “Unallocable Assets/
Liabilities”. Inter-segment transfers are accounted for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar
goods.
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Segment revenue and results:

IREL (India) Limited

& @ ®)/ (Z in lakh)

31 |T 2020 T 31 HT 2019 Y
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
gfier  |TeEteR| ®e gt [t ®e
frata fata | et/
. . el / Total . . Total
Mineral |Chemical | State Mineral |Chemical| State
Divisions | Divisions | Trading- Divisions |Divisions | Trading-
Exports Exports
3T / Revenue
Wﬁm 87,285.07| 13,706.89 1,983.28 1,02,975.24| 64,412.11| 7,744.28 72,156.39
External customers
Inter-Segment Sales
A 3™ / Other Income B
mﬁm 1,491.40 104.97 o 1,596.36 691.28| 4,583.60 5,274.88
External customers
I{AC-WE / Inter-Segment ) ) )
ESUACERSIR] 88,776.47| 13,811.86 1,04,571.60| 65,103.39 12,327.88 77,431.27
Total segment revenue
JEfed T8 & T8 / Unallocable 4,951.67 139.95
hel AT
(EEEKSCIRINGICIIRC ) 1,09,523.27| 65,103.39| 12,327.88 77,571.22
Total Revenue
(Net-off Inter-segment)
U / Results
W UfUTT / Segment result | 38:237.87| 1,360.13|  61.24| 39,659.24| 20,453.17|(1,207.70) 19,245.46
3Tafed TEt H T FMRE T (et
(2,993.90)
(frae)
Unallocated Corporate
expenses ( Net)
Operating Profit
ST o & / Interest Expenses (4.77) (2.62)
TS i 37T / Interest Income 4,422.00 3,812.55
=T 7 A 40,294.39 20,061.49
Profit Before Tax

70th Annual Report 2019-20




s (e fafies

IREL (India) Limited

We uftgmfaat it T :

Segment assets and liabilities:

A\

we yftgmfaat ST Saaret i fore faeroll o6t T8 &) Arar Sar € | 57 aREufar S SFarsll ol e & y=re ST aREuty &
fifiTer T & STYR T 3Tafed fora ST ¢ |

Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the financial statements. These assets and liabilities are
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the physical location of the asset.

R @@ ®) / & in lakh)

31 WTe 2020 <hT 31 9T 2019 T
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019
g | WEE | e gt | wmEA | €
frrata heT / Total fratq %heT / Total
Mineral |Chemical| State Mineral | Chemical | State
Divisions |Divisions|Trading- Divisions | Divisions |Trading-
Exports Exports
e yfgufaat 61,282.08|22,306.60| gg.98| 83,675.66| 47,689.86| 21,801.87 69,491.74
Segment assets
STEfEd Tt B TS ufeamfe 62,085.61 53,895.59
Unallocated assets
WW&!’W 1,45,761.36
Total assets 1,23,387.32
-@gw 62,201.52|22,539.73| 335.99| 85,077.23| 48,588.88| 21,980.03 70,568.91
Segment liabilities
ST 7 T TE TFAT 60,684.04 52,818.41
Unallocated liabilities
+ 1,45,761.36

?:gmties 1,23,387.32
AT Uched
Other disclosures
qsﬁ-,-mgq-q 4,718.63| 562.94 5,281.57| 8,813.21| 1,448.38 10,261.59
Capital Expenditure
W?WWWW 962.10 40.47
Unallocated capital expenditure
et / Total 6,243.67 10,302.06
e -89 / Depreciation 2,335.30| 1,721.72 4,057.02| 2,001.21| 1,823.15 3,824.36
W?WW@- FTg 88.84 26.09
Unallocated depreciation
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TG % ATl W-The =T | 1,172.35|  393.45 1,565.80| 3,168.42| 1,090.20 4,258.62
Non-cash expenses other than

depreciation

TETETE ¥ ST S 1,886.62 1,411.12
ferar T -ehe o

Unallocated non-cash
expenses other than
depreciation

e / Total 3,452.42 5,669.75

T oA uftuty (fasia
o, AT ST e
AT Sk STATAT)

Non Current Assets (Other

than Financial Instrument,
DTA& Employee Benefits)

YT / India 31,114.57 29,021.74
T & < / Outside India - .
e / Total 31,114.57 29,021.74

e 39: Wafer uref o | o e
Note 39: Related party transactions

ﬂﬂ?ﬁﬂéé@ﬂﬂ'm" 24 “HefYd qTdf TR0l oF STIHI, TGN Aeh # IR Faferd TIfdai o 9rer oF-37 ST TehdenTuT e
fear T R

As per Ind AS 24 "Related party Disclosures”, disclosure of transactions with the related parties as defined in the Accounting
Standard are given below:

(Sh) W8Tk hu+T / (A) Subsidary Company
1 ITEITRETS 3THIA AT S 18 STHERT 2018 =T ffHa

1 IREL IDCOL LIMITED Incorporated on 18th Jan 2018.

HETaeh U o |1 3 oh faeuT 36 UahTT & { @rg H)

Details of transactions with Subsidary Company are as follows: (X in lakh)
=k faaut / Particulars 31.03.2020 Y 31.03.2019 &'
Bl TS 91 T TS 91 T

Balance Receivable | Balance Receivable
as on 31.03.2020 as on 31.03.2019

1 ML Th 1ol fAfE / IREL IDCOL LIMITED 25.50 0.50
@) ug@u-q‘a?asrﬁﬁm/ (B) Key Management Personnel:
a;mi?qanﬁ%ma?: / Functional Directors:

1 ot <19 & / Shri D. Singh : 3T TG W&y ¥ / Chairman and Managing Director
2 S . o FTEd / Shri K K Mohanty : f1eeTeR (fa9uT) / Director (Marketing)

3 ST % 9 / ShriAK Mohapatra 13T (q@TIT) / Director (Technical) upto 29.02.2020
4 T, T =ert / Shri A Roy Chowdhury : freTes (faw ) / Director (Finance)

5 ﬁffﬁ?‘lﬁTW/ Ms. Sheila Sangwan : T v / Independent Director - Upto 27.12.2019

6 st o A/ Shri V P Yajurvedi : T f1S3Te / Independent Director - from 16.07.2019

6 St &t. &t. Wifsa / Shri B B Pandian T v / Independent Director - from 16.07.2019

7 ot TU=<T & / Shri Rupender Dhiman : S giea / Company Secretary
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AT FIRyTeR! & T e ol faaur T Ush R A 2

Details of transactions with Independent directors are as follows:

T feTehT b1 9 2019-20 T <R 935 &1 BT & AT 2,95,000 ([Tt o 2 1,40,000) T T AT I fofra 7 o |

An amount of ¥ 2.95 lakh (Previous year : ¥ 1.40 lakh) was paid to the independent directors towards sitting fees during the year

@

1
El
3

2019-20.
WU Yae Shiial o ATl oIFe ohT {qaiul 36 Ueh K &: R AT )
Details of transactions with key management personnel are as follows: (R in lakh)
.4, | faawur/ Particulars 31 UTe 2020 31 1T 2019
Sr No 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
1 qftgfHe / Remuneration 287.72 146.85
2 =0T aﬁﬁraﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ / Repayment of loans and advances given 1.7 2.12
3 feu T 31w / Advances given 1.28 2.20
4 31 T S IR AT / Outstanding balance as at 31st March:
Elﬂ?fﬁ'ﬂﬁ"'q( 37/ Amount recoverable ) 0.43
AT 40: STeRTTIeR TATU, NTehTEieh Fuld ST =T AfdagaT: & g H)
Note 40: Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and other commitments: (R in lakh)
.4, | faawur/ Particulars 31 UT= 2020 31 UTe 2019
Sr No 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
1 SRR <IATT / Contingent Liabilities
F) | S o e e R 0T % w0 6 wienT T8 fehar T ©
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
i) TR / STI'{WWEF%/ Claims by Contractors/Suppliers
%) FGEHICHT / a) Manavalakurichi 0.00 0.00
) =@ / b) Chavara 10.13 9.88
) 3{TGHIT / c) OSCOM 885.11 885.11
o) T ST / d) Head Office 0.00 0.00
i) FHARET 3T 311 §RT IR o7 T STeTerl H iferd Jered
Suits filed by employees and others pending in Courts
F) HHA- TS, THSR qUT STHHH 135.56 137.88
a) Employees- Alwaye, MK and OSCOM
) 37 - WA gfaes-fafaa, dfeT i sfim 189.59 122.65
b) Others — Forum workers-civil, loading & bagging
ii) FHHARY TS 37 / Employees and others YT S I YT S A
TR T
Amount not Amount not
ascertainable ascertainable
V) | s o fa stfumfed fi % fAT 3= eTTasT (ST, TR TR STEeT) pelee 466.77
Higher Compensation for land acquired for the Company (Chavara, MK and
OSCOM)
v) yfey o <, T 37X TS & e o IR IEIHT THR ZRT FE I | 401.31 53.32
Claim by the Government of Orissa on account of revision of ground rent
rates, cess and interest thereon.
vi) U % fa%g 317 19 / Other claims against the Company 0.00 0.00
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Vi) | orgeY / R gfHeRt o SrehTAT YT o fo wferer ffer miferskRont SR <rer 1.1 2.28
Claim by Provident fund authorities for belated payments of contract/forum
workers dues

vill) | ey T ST ST TR ied S Shiee T ST g 0.00 0.00
Unexpired value of Letters of credit opened and outstanding

@) Tfrap (aﬂ—q:ﬁ' &I W@--cﬂ--rrga-a;w FT T 11@-) 238.72 340.37

(b) Guarantees (Unexpired value of Bank Guarantees given on behalf of
company )

M | 3 o forgen fo st srsfies SwRer ¢

(c) Other Money for which company is contingently liable

i) faanfed &< @t 77 / Disputed Tax demands
%) fereht &< / a) Sales tax 128.92 96.78
@) ¥aT &L / b) Service tax 0.00 0.00
) JA9T FX / ¢) Entry tax 226.68 226.68
H) T &Y / d) Road Tax 31.57 0.00

)| ge et of & forg e - TR 26 68.75
Claim for differential royalty on rebate — MK

i) | 57qT T hfeT o foa forsht ST MIferehoT SIRT 2Tl -UHes 0.00 0.00
Claim by sales tax authority for input tax credit-MK

iv) ot B =l o foT srEmeat Ty -=e 0.00 0.00
Severance amount for shipping forum employees-Chavara

V)| TSR % Swe T SET S Yo S-St UL 0.00
Central Excise claim on production of NGADU-Alwaye

vi) TASTUETY & IS W e IS I[eeh o ST IX 1T - 3T 0.00 0.00
Interest on central Excise claim on production of NGADU-Alwaye

Vi) | sl 3eTe Yee BT WA Y - Te 58.83 °8.83
Service tax claim by central excise-Chavara

vill) | geirTse fewta W fatias ace - sEe 0.00 0.00
Differential Royalty on limenite Dispatch -OSCOM

x) | T W T ST T SR T ALY 0.00
Local Cess & Surcharge on Royalty- MK

X) TSI T IS Yok ST IHh TRUTHEEY - T S 986.00
Excise Duty & Consequent Sales Tax on Minerals-PENALTY

X) | St o fag 91 91 - TeHa 3N fregae- e RN 0.00
Other claims against the Company - National Green Tribunal- Chavara

2 3RS FUMT / Contingent assets
TEE W AT 13 § fawman 16 e frata et e s 2 - stfwent St 3,254.37
Export Duty Refund claim on limenite from Mar'13 to Dec'16 - OSCOM

3 YfaeGaTe / Commitments

@) | Fromfe forg ST arer TGS S s STgAa T SR fSrehT e bt 4,601.33

(@) q?f]%lﬂlT% / Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for

(@) | IRRI SR e T § YA oy T e fani ) st S 0.00 0.00

(b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid

(c) Other commitments
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AT 41: FHHAR N ST

Note 41: Employee benefit obligations

AT TREGT T -19 “TFHHA AT & TR HRAT TR@l Aok H G yeha e fey M e
As per Ind AS-19 " Employee Benefits", the disclosures as defined in the Indian Accounting Standards are furnished below :

() 3TcUehTcTeh SHEERI &9 / (a) Short term employee benefits:
FCTehTIeTeh THHER] 1Y o Ui ST ol a8 o foTT &1y Ta BT o foeor & Teh o3 o &9 H AT ST & |

The liability towards short term employee benefits is recognised as an expenses for the year in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

(R) ﬁg%wmm/ (b) Post employment benefits:

i.  ORCWIe STPTET TSHT / Defined contribution plan: R A@ H) /  in lakh)

faewur / Particulars 31 9T 2020 31 9T 2019
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

e fafer & frrireT &1 Sfere™ TS 169.77

Employer’s contribution to Pension Scheme

T YT AT B FERRT T STveH 25.31 27.86

Employer’s contribution to New Pension Scheme

rferaftar s & f=ihT T STeTeH 530.47 478.63

Employer’s contribution to Superannuation scheme

ii. ORI &Y AT / Defined Benefits Plan:

S et e TR oy s R
The Company has the following defined benefits plans:

faaut / Particulars feuutt / Remarks

3 / Gratuity TASTEHT o ATeEH § Y ¥ / Funded through LIC

wfeqsy ffer (dIT®) / Provident Fund (PF)

TaTfgia ggTa faferear AsHT (TTRTATY)
Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS)

=T o ATEEH ¥ A 98T / Funded through Trust
fafer et 8T / Unfunded

SUSTH / Gratuity:

AT T T AR SUCT FT AT Ueh QST ey AT & |wﬁﬁwaﬁw§amﬁﬁwﬁsz&ﬁqm
UGN ek Aok Tedich o SR R g ferar Sirar 7, Rres Far o6t yeies rafy wﬁmﬁaﬁwa{f‘aﬁ?ﬁ
wﬁzﬁwﬁwww%wwﬁmaﬁq&r%ﬁnﬁ%mmmﬁmmm

The employees, gratuity fund scheme managed by a trust is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is
determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which considers each period of service
as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

W@W@ﬁqﬁﬁﬂw & / The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

faawur / Particulars 31 |T=E 2020 31 W= 2019
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
TSI o SR Hg <X / Mortality rate during Employment 3'11?"{@'@ JTTEUTATH
(2006-08) 3ifa@ | (2006-08) ifa™
IALM (2006-08) | IALM (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate
T @fT T) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.59% 7.64%
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ST TGt I AT ohi Yty <% (of a9)

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum)
A § gfg i T @ T) / Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)
AR quaTed ohi €T (rrﬁram‘) / Rate of employee turnover (per annum)

FaTtgfa 3T (@) / Retirement age (years)

6.59%

5.50%
2.00%
60

7.64%

5.50%
2.00%
60

STcheh YR | fa= § feIw 0 ome o1 HeanfeTe oX Widiuss S Sifed ek ol v 3etse Wit St € Sriifer TarsTeat

¥ forereT €raT © e el o g 3oty TR

The expected rate of return considered in actuarial valuation is assumed to be available on risk free investments like PPF

as the investment is with LIC and list of investments is not available.

TR ST ST o Sfod Yo o STRW 319 U& 3ifaw 919 oht e

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation:

@ @@ ®) / % in lakh)

ferRat / Particulars 31351t ﬁciozzé’zo 313slt ﬁiﬁ"zl&g
Y o U T IS e et 11,631.76 12,058.44
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year
I AT @I / Current service cost 305.14 330.08
TSI ! AT / Interest cost 888.66 926.09
fraelt Jar ema 1T fAfed @Y / Past service cost- non vested benefit B )
el TaT T - ffed AT / Past service cost- vested benefit B .
SATeReh (AT)/TT / Actuarial (gain)/loss 949.01 132.17
3TEX AR TFAT / Liability transferred in 245 -
(@TeT ARk I / (Liability transferred out) - -
WWWW“T/ Benefits paid (1,881.39) (1,815.02)
LT mﬁwﬁmﬁvmaﬁ:ﬁ/ Defined benefit obligation at year end 11,895.63 11,631.76

T afEutE o Sfea ged & smfies 3T sifaw viw s awrem ¢ g #)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets: (X in lakh)

T/ Particulars 313slt mjciozzgzo 31351t mjchozlogw
L) T YR § Ao gREiA w7 3 T 10,734.09 10,850.24
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year
TS 3T / Interest Income 820.08 833.30
ST uftufat ot sTuferd amat / Expected return of plan assets (41.40) 47.21
fTII=RT T 37T / Employer’s contribution 840.85 818.35
%H{AI ST § TR / Transfer from other Company 2.45 B
({Gﬁ%""l’—ﬁaﬁ JAR) / (Transfer to Other Company)
T foFT 7T &MY / Benefits paid (1,635.68) (1,815.02)
9 & mﬁwwwm-@ 10,720.39 10,734.09
Fair value of plan assets at year end

778.68 880.51

ST aftufat I arEafaek 37 / Actual return on plan assets
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T uftgufaE ST gfat o St god aht gt ¢ € &g )
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations: (X in lakh)
- . 31 9T 2020 31 9T 2019
el 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
TF ST SHHT e / Present value of obligation (11,895.63) (11,631.76)
WWWE@HW/ Fair value of plan assets s 10,734.09
37afy & i & X AT a1 37t §a i AT - -
Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period
37afy & o7 H T AT AT HohHUTehTe o] - -
Unrecognized transitional liability at the end of the period
T T A 9 e (&) / ot ile 20 (897.68)
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet
o o SR HI=IdT U didifeneh (TH) / g1 & @@ )
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognized during the year: (X in lakh)
. 31 9T 2020 31 9T 2019
feRT / Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
reTT TRufEt W) Suifeher (A1) / 9 4140 (47.21)
Actuarial (gain)/Loss on plan assets
TR T sftAifoher (@T9) / TH / Actuarial (gain)/Loss on obligation 949.01 13217
et et / Net Total 990.41 84.96
A Srafer o fog fraet s o & @ ¥)
Net Interest cost for Current period (X in lakh)
ST : 31 1T 2020 31 1T 2019
I Prindie e 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
37T o S H T/ T BT A gt LA 12,058.44
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
(3Tarfer o ST | TSI ST ot e qer) (10,734.09) (10,850.24)
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)
e H faer <gar / (AEUfEn) / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning 897.68 1,208.20
TST ! NG / Interest cost 888.66 926.09
(@Tﬁ'ﬁ 3T9) / (Interest income) (820.08) (833.30)
AT 3TafY o e faet =ATST @A / Net Interest cost for Current period 68.58 92.79
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T o QI o1 31T BT o TaamoT & Wi o = g )
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year: (X in lakh)
- . 31 |T= 2020 31 AT 2019
Pl 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
AT AT AT / Current Service cost 305.14 330.08
f79eT =TT AT / Net Interest cost 68.58 92.79
fST W1 T / Past service cost B )
(FH=NET SR STuferd SfvTe) / (Expected Contributions by the Employees) B B
Sl 3R FUTH ) (e )/ 71) - -
(Gains)/Losses on curtailments and settlements
forceft a1 <X # gRad o1 faet aume
Net effect of changes in Foreign exchange rates
A=A E / Expenses recognised 373.72 422.87
TAA rafer o T o= smueh e (SMrtenTs) W ur=reT ure = & g )
Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period: (X in lakh)
f— . 31 9T 2020 31 AT 2019
VP G 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
37afer 3 forg Siforc X diifeRen @/ (@T) 949.01 13217
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period
TS 3T 1 BTSHT AT IREGUTET T 37 41.40 (47.21)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income
ufeufa o Hifer ® giiad / Change in Asset ceiling B )
3T & A= a1 21afy o o faeEm) / =3 Sl Sl
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI
oI U ST GHTT: R o )
Balance sheet reconciliation: (X in lakh)
f S . 31 HTe 2020 31 1T 2019
P e G 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
AREYe faet TAAT / Opening net liability 897.68 1,208.20
AT ST BT o feor & Hr=rar ot = 373.72 422.87
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
SETE & W=rel 9T &5 / Expenses recognised in OCI 990.41 84.96
< At faer rfacer /(@ftgaft) / Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In : }
qTex fafia fraer (i), afiduft / Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out : -
(IRt 3T S WWWW) / (Benefits paid directly by the Employer) (245.71) .
AT T SATTEE / Employer’s contribution (840.85) (818.35)
1,175.25 897.68

T T W AT 9T e (Sare) / afEata
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet
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Investment details: (% of investment)
31 | 2020 31 |1 2019

faaut / Particulars

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

AT §LHI okt F1ae 9REIT / Government of India Assets
FHTRT ITH / Corporate Bonds

IENEISEIRISEIW Special Deposits Scheme

Wﬂ@m %WW / Equity shares of listed Companies
s / Property

AT 4% / Insurance fund 100.00 100.00
3 / Others ; )
TSt o 2ok ferg fraret st e ® A )
Net Interest cost for Next year: (R in lakh)

f— . 31 | 2020 31 | 2019
MFEdenEns 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
37 o SR ¥ T I B A qeo RLEST 11,631.76
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
(37afer Y e H o MRl 1 3fea 7o ) (Ob ) (10,734.09)
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)
R § faet TFar / (TREUR) / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning 1,175.25 897.68
ST ! NG / Interest cost 783.92 888.67
(SATST T 3T19) / (Interest income) (706.47) (820.08)
AT A & fﬂ"{ 7t =TT &t 3T / Net Interest cost for Current period 77.45 68.58
ST Y ok SIOH T 3T i+ o ferar & Wit wre = R AT )
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year: (R in lakh)
- : 31 | 2020 31 | 2019
el 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
T | ST AN / Current Service cost 161.84 305.14
T TS ! AT / Net Interest cost e 68.58
(eheenfat grT eTuferd STeTer) / (Expected contributions by the Employees) ) )
ot AT / Net Cost 239.29 373.72
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@ @@ ) / in lakh)

ST eht uftuerar fageror: 3191 2020 | 31T 2019
Maturity Analysis of Projected 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
fraifd ot arg § wfess & quf § <F STTHIT ey

Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

1T STIHT & / 1st Following year 2,335.63 2,262.01
2 T ST a9 / 2nd Following year 1,456.45 1,415.80
3 T 3T % / 3rd Following year 2,096.52 1,869.47
4 oI ST & / 4th Following year 2,102.36 1,831.19
5 9 ST ¥/ 5th Following year 1,280.23 1,859.92
T 6 ¥ 10 T AN / Sum of Years 6 to 10 4,004.75 4,274.98
TAAYTerar fageuuT / Sensitivity Analysis:

Garereiierar faveror, TgT favemur @ S e | T 3 Jfe Ar=rarail Sl 3TenT-3TerT T U Gal |ifad et famar T2 g1
T g T § TRad o1 Tehd a1 © Fle shfedd AT ITfdeh o el ohT AT TSy ieraT fagelyuT & AIqee! ol I
T I @

Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be
true on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the
actual is not following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.

@ @@ ®) / & in lakh)

- : 31 9T 2020 31 9T 2019
Pl 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
A IS T STAT e ey ks 11,631.76
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions

TTH T H + 1% Tad 1 ST 19 (Eirs) (396.66)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of discounting

T H T H -1% TRE T ST T A HA 430.94
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of discounting

A G T I H + 19 TRaH ol SeaT T Bl 334.00
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

A FE R G H - 1% TREH T SeeT 91T (Rt (327.27)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase

THHAEN & SRR 1 SCH + 1%  Tad ol e T4 50.67 63.33
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover

FHAART HRIAR & G H -1% TRad w1 Seal T (54.24) (67.91)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee turnover
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TAHT aTfieh Srafer S st wr anfier srafr & forg e & g )
Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods: (X in lakh)
fHEUT / Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 201718 2016-17 2015-16
WWWH\W 11,895.63 11,631.76 12,058.44 10,820.06 10,824.06
Present value of obligation
WWWWW 10,720.39 10,734.09 10,850.24 10,191.38 10,089.15
Fair value of plan assets
ST A STTWIY / (&) (1,175.25) (897.68) (1,208.20) (628.68) (734.91)
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan
SIS THTEIS :
Experience Adjustment:
ST IR IX (@) / 7T 41.40 (47.21) (103.97) (258.34) 131.36
On plan liability (gain)/loss
ST IR 9% e / (@17) (41.40) 47.21 103.97 65.01 86.39
On plan assets gain/(loss)

yfaer f4fer (PF) / Provident Fund (PF) :

T 3T TR o o Uk wfaer ffer 7 o wrem @ ufasy ffer o1 weer et © oy wfges fafyr ofk fafay qrawm
™, 1952 & qed TIAfd & TE § | Tg AT T i HHERET GRT ST oht TRehedT Hidt © 3T wferey fafyr
TIereRRoT T TfRe <X W o S MR A 7

The Company manages provident fund through a provident fund trust for its employees which is permitted under the
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan envisages contribution by employer and employees and
guaranteed interest at the rate notified by the provident fund authority.

HIA T e © o o5 afifer STMHR X eTfad =St o T g% o FowT o o7 # fordlt ot et o7 7 Y | et 3
TITe Qe St e g SR fert T Arieefe & e W wfaer fafy <eria o fa uer qeaien yem fear € 3K
e JeT ST T WIS % SR W, 31 A 2020 3 31 HIE 2019 T RIS HH T 7 |

The Company has an obligation to fund any shortfall on the yield of the Trust's investments over the administered interest
rates on an annual basis. The actuary has provided a valuation for providend fund liabilities on the basis of guidance issued
by Actuarial Society of India and based on the below provided assumptions, there is no short fall As at 31st March 2020
and 31st March 2019.

frfRoTTTes GfEeRIoT o STaTia SATST TRET o THT oo QI ohl [THTd i § STANT i ST aTell T9@ HRUME 7 5
Te:

The principal assumptions used in determining the present value obligation of interest guarantee under the deterministic
approach are as follows :

. 31 |T=E 2020 31 |T 2019
fe@TuT / Particulars 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
fomat <t @fa s ) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.59% 7.64%
YT 3T @ T) / Guaranteed return (per annum) 8.50% 8.55%
ot G wIferEr o1 M I ST () 522 %/Years | 5.13 9/Years
Average remaining tenure of investment portfolio (Years)
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fafer et Sren afteafae et faaor e fear e € € g )
The details of fund and plan assets are given below (X in lakh)
ferrzun / Particulars 313slt :\qnﬁczhozzgzo 31351t E:fciozlogw

ST IRt 6T 3fd 7 / Fair value of plan assets 35,380.64 34,681.09
WWWE@D / (Present value of obligation) (34,787.32) (34,254.34)
ST i afedt § fraer stfafts 5 am=rar T e 593.32 426.75

Net excess not recognised in books of the Company

ST Y G T & Y TR Hferferdt it ke afe & frae o 8

The plan assets have been primarily invested in government securities and corporate bonds

ﬁaﬁqﬁr%mﬁﬁmm/ Post Retirement Medical Scheme (PRMS):

YTrafa & o1e 1 Fafercan FrsmT SHH=IRE! T STt YA & STE WL @IS AT (g T Sreqaret & o)
AT Y Wi v et € | Hfufd St o T HHeRT o het o YR W TS THY T o ST B 7 |

The post retirement medical scheme provides for reimbursement of health care costs (both domicilliary & hospitalisation)
to employees post their retirement. The reimbursement is subject to an overall ceiling based on cadre of the employee at

the time of retirement.

TH TG oh WgYUT difcheh HT=IATE fAEATIaT off : & o )
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows: (X in lakh)
- . 31 |Te 2020 31 9T 2019

RS 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

Hog <X AIeAHT / Mortality Table ST 3TEuTeTTH
(2006-08) 3ifq® | (2006-08) 3ifaw

IALM (2006-08) | IALM (2006-08)

Ultimate Ultimate

foamaa =T (@fa av) / Discount rate (per annum) 6.81% 7.78%
YT HaTfgfd st 3T (@) / Normal retirement age (years) 60 60
e (3731 ) (T o) / Attrition rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%
3.50% 3.50%

ferferca ST eTehifd 3T / Medical cost inflation rate

feeT o AT o AT Yot ohT SiHieheh qedTohT | 6.81% TS S o MU W AT f5haT 11 §, &€ W gU o Afgahat
fioTd 5 YeaTeh TR g SR Aigw H W T HH 6.81% AT <X o WY Thiee foham S |

The present values of the future liabilities have been arrived at on the basis of 6.81% interest rate in actuarial valuation,
assuming that the medical reserve arrived at by this valuation and the future increases thereon will be credited with at least

6.81% interest rate.
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ARHIeR AT sifaw aftefia e ST o Ul ST JHTe & A )
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligation: (R in lakh)
e : 31 1T 2020 31 1T 2019
e 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
i & s Frerffee e aiPre 5,709.06 5,108.60
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year
U | St AN / Current service cost 184.85 165.75
TS 1 ARG / Interest cost il 396.43
T e ara- T g &Y / Past service cost- non vested benefit : -
forT Tam amTa- fAfed @Y / Past service cost- vested benefit ) -
37T FEATI AT / Liability transferred in - B
(ATeT TEAIT <FaT ) / (Liability transferred out) - -
SifeRen (@) / BT / Actuarial (gain)/loss 94.15 388.16
AT fohT T T / Benefits paid (386.02) (349.88)
o & 3 H freifed @ S / Defined benefit obligation at year end 6,046.21 5,709.06
T ufEuwE ST gt o ST Jod aht JHTe ® e H)
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations: (R in lakh)
31 9T 2020 31 9T 2019

faaut / Particulars

31st March 2020

31st March 2019

ST ARGt o1 3fed I / Fair value of plan assets

ST T AT T / Present value of obligation e 5,709.06

37afy & i & X WT=raT a1 37t §ar e - -

Unrecognized past service cost at the end of the period

T T H HIT 9T TRT / Amount recognized in balance sheet 6,046.21 5,709.06
fHae &I st AT ¢ & @ ¥)
Net Interest cost: (R in lakh)

feraRaT / Particulars o ﬂcﬁofoﬂzo o ﬁiﬁ%g

st & mﬁmmmw@ 5,709.06 5,108.60

Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

(37afey o ST | AT STl o1 3ferd o) - -

(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

e H faet < /(aREufe ) / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning 5,709.06 5,108.60

TST ! A / Interest cost 444.17 396.43

(SATST T 3T ) / (Interest income) . B

AT 3Tafy o feTu faet =ATST @A / Net Interest cost for Current period 444.17 396.43
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T o SR T A g1 ok feraor o wr=rer we = @ g )
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year: (X in lakh)
foeruT / Particulars 313slt :\qnﬁczhozzgzo 31351t E:fciozlogw
U FaT AT / Current Service cost 184.85 165.75
fTaet SATST ! T / Net Interest cost 444.17 396.43
(SFeenfat grT evufer SfvTer) / (Expected contributions by the Employees) " B
19T T / Net Cost 629.02 562.18
TR At o fe 3 Sueh 1 (NESS) W A= uie =a R T )
Expenses recognised in Other comprehensive Income (OCI) for current period: (X in lakh)
T/ Particulars o m:rfczhojoozo e :\T:rfcfmozl:w
3rafy & o <iferes T Siferes &9 / (&16) 94.15 388.16
Actuarial Gains / (losses) on obligation for the period
ST IRl 9T 3T, FTST 3T il BISHT - )
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest income
uftEufa ot |1 § IRadT / Change in Asset ceiling - i
STT3TE & AR o STafy o fore frae (31m) / =2 94.13 388.16
Net (Income) / Expense for the period recognised in OCI
qA U hl HTT: @ 9T H)
Balance sheet reconciliation: (X in lakh)
T/ Particulars 313slt rn]:fczhozzgzo 31351t :;l]:fciozlogw
TR ek faret ST / Opening net liability 5,709.06 5,108.60
AT 3 BT & fHawoT § W=t ure = 629.02 562.18
Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
aﬂﬁw@‘ﬁwmm/ Expenses recognised in OCI 94.15 388.16
L HARCT faet (Far )/ aiEaft / Net Liability / (Asset) Transfer In - -
e AR faet (37ar )/ aftguft / Net (Liability) / Asset Transfer Out - -
(FrreT g Sy helGIE fohT T YY) / (Benefits paid directly by the Employer) (386.02) (349.88)
et T STvTE / Employer’s contribution
6,046.21 5,709.06

I T H A= 9T et () / ot
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognized in the Balance Sheet
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ST o8 o Torg freret st oI g ®)
Net Interest cost for Next year: (X in lakh)
faraor . 31 |T= 2020 31 |Te 2019
S 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

37afe st ST H 1Y T 1 I T ] 5,709.06
Present value of Benefit obligation at the beginning of the period

(37afy o TR H AT ST o7 3o Joo) - -
(Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the Period)

P H fraet <Far / (afEuf ) / Net liability / (Asset) at the beginning 6,046.21 5,709.06
TS &t AR / Interest cost 411.75 444.17
(SATST ht 3T ) / (Interest income) - -
A Tafy & 1%1"1' f9a SATST ANTA / Net Interest cost for Current period 411.75 44417
STl T8 o SR 19 ST 1 o ferarcur o r=ra uie = R g )
Expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss during the Next year: (X in lakh)

- . 31 |T= 2020 31 |Te 2019
S 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

AT AT AT / Current Service cost 198.81 184.85
19T SATST @FTA / Net Interest cost 411.75 444.17
(=TT gRT STufEad STeTeH / (Expected contributions by the Employees) " B
et AT / Net Cost R 629.02
SITHTA T ok S Shl URUerIar ekt faverauT: faer o

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation: From the employer

ot e 9 ’Wéﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ 343’?@?[@‘# 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Projected Benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting

1< ?ﬂﬂ"Tl":ﬁ'aﬁ:/ 1st Following year 352.81 314.89
27T STFF’:I')[H'Q: / 2nd Following year 346.16 331.67
37 ea‘:rrrq“ran‘ / 3rd Following year 347.84 341.46
4 ?::I':J:’TI'EI"T7>|'5it / 4th Following year 350.48 351.14
s5ar 313"11"#3\'&/ 5th Following year 348.34 361.24
4 6 ¥ 10 T AT/ Sum of Years 6 to 10 1,679:58 1,834.99

TAGAYTierdT fa9ei™uT / Sensitivity analysis:

Gaeeiierar fargersur, T fageryor & i arferee & Tfa 3 afe AT ohl STerT- 37T U 0T et Wifed et fomar e o
I Fhael ST T TREd o1 Tond ST © AfE Shfcad T aTedferss o a9 ohT 3TaT GagYIerdT foveisuT & HIee! o IrerT

T F @R

Sensitivity analysis is analysis which will give the movement in liability if the assumptions were not proved to be true
on different count. This only signifies the change in the liability if the difference between assumed and the actual is not

following the parameters of the sensitivity analysis.
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R @) /
(X in lakh)
et L 31 |T= 2020 31 AT 2019
Sy 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
A IS T STAT T ey R 5,709.06
Projected Benefit Obligation on current assumptions
fama T H 1% q@éﬂ”méamﬁtrﬁaﬁ:r (515.85) (502.84)
Change in liability for 1% increase in discount rate
e 2T 1% 1 et o A S & aftada 613.88 59247
Change in liability for 1% decrease in discount rate
faferear e garemifa & 19 @1 3fg o fa Taar & afteds 499.46 476.37
Change in liability for 1% increase in Medical Cost Inflation
ferfeReaT AT ERRI 7 1% 1 Serdt o forg e # ufteds (Gl (403.64)
Change in liability for 1% decrease in Medical Cost Inflation
AW dfien Srafr ST frseht = anfier srafir o forg eaafymEt g )
Amounts for the current annual period and previous four annual periods: (X in lakh)
faaTuT / Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16
WWWW 6,046.21 5,709.06 5,108.60 5,418.80 5,109.55
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
AT A ST / (&) (6,046.21) (5,709.06) (5,108.60) (5,418.80) (5,109.55)
Surplus /(Deficit)in the plan

@M 3= e STelT o / (c) Other Long Term Benefits:
Fe1 AT STULENAA / Leave liability

i TR R I I Sefhiferen HHSRT M o R € R SHRT Tedich T Ae €9 I ferar T § ofiT afed # qrere
fepar T

i Leave liability is under “Other long term employee benefit” and is valued actuarially and provided in the books accordingly.

@ @@ ®)/  in lakh)

- ) 31 W 2020 31 W1 2019
FETIEIELE 31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
Hehel S/ Gross liability 7,298.09 6,353.84

i. QA T U ¥ YaTgi W T o 3T eehTiereh Siffueg AR Ay o ®Y H A W61 ¢ | afedt §F
65.93 A (Tt a8 &. 70.39 TARG) T T SHi{heh TeTeh T ST 7 |

ii. Resettlement allowance: Resettlement allowance on retirement from the Company is considered as “Other long term
unfunded employee benefit”. The provision amounting to ¥ 65.93 lakh ( previous year ¥ 70.39 lakh) in the books is made
based on actuarial valuation.

i, TR-STfereRTiEET o ferw gt amn fama (LTC): afedi % LTC & feu &, 55.83 @@ (et a8 &. 61.26 TR) S TeT h7 qraeim
srwifeneh qeaioh o SR T fehar T 2 |

iii. Leave Travel Concession (LTC) for non-executives: Provision for LTC amounting to ¥ 55.83 lakh (previous year ¥ 61.26
lakh) in the books is made based on actuarial valuation.
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i, Swifoe qeareRd ¥ wiass % 9o H gfs % STE o R i 9He, TR (i, aftedr, weEfa 31K TSR SR # oy

aﬁrw,é@mmmmmww% |

i The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

i, S ST ST ¢ TR faita 9 2020-21 % fow SUe fAfy @At we) H AMTE ST S ATl A F. 895.90 TG (et

T &, 865.16 rE) BN

ii. The Company estimates that the amount to be contributed to the gratuity fund for the financial year 2020-21 will be

895.90 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 865.16 lakhs)

AT 42 wfd I 1 (Fdaw) o ®)
Note 42: Earnings per share (EPS) (X in lakh)
31 1T 2020 <hT| 31 WTE 2019 Y
faawut / Particulars As at As at
31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019
74 o T T & 916 ge v / @1F) R o ) Zehilge 11,751.93
Net Profit / (loss) after tax for the year (% in lakhs)
St Y1 aant ok forg @met / 21fF (2 ot o) H/A bl 11,751.93
Profit / loss attributable to equity share holders (< in lakhs)
THTIT TRT Y MR ST T (S /B e 8,63,650
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (Nos.)
Tfd R YT S A Y T I (3) Cotel SRt 1,360.73
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (3) A/B
1,000.00 1,000.00

U 919 3ifehd 9o (%) / Face Value per Share (3)

< 43 / Note 43:

T4 F A H, F. 76,332.14 ARG (A a6 &. 6471452 TG) 1 FT H A BT G FA ATH T X AT HT Fohe
TR &. 78,893.85 @G (et I %. 67,026.41 TG) o IO GIAINS femar 147 € 31X 99 AT BT Sy off A7Her €, o 0
¥ - S qREiE 3 Srearatyr e o e e oA T R | (FuAT AT § °W)
At the end of the year, provision for tax amounting to ¥ 76,332.14 lakhs (previous year ¥ 64714.52 lakhs) has been adjusted

against the total amount of advance tax and TDS aggregating to ¥ 78,893.85 lakhs (previous year ¥ 67,026.41 lakhs) and the
balance amount is included under Non-current tax assets, and short term provisions in the balance sheet as the case may be.

(Refer Note 8)

< 44 / Note 44:

U T AT GIHR (Gol) 1 ST F F3 THIfIeh URATSHIS o fTe o ATl TiaT 7727 € | 3 UfATSrTaT oh1 931 ST TR
TR for T & | TFR 1 S ARTE. 2,112.78 @ (TS5 T8 7. 2,844 .64 @) TG0 STefcdl’ & siqwia ofier & 1 @< 7
T IR BT T 2 R 7.2, 112.78 TG (e A %, 2844.64 ) F T H o fomar TR |

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of certain strategic projects on behalf of the Government of India (Gol).
The entire cost of the said projects is funded by the Government. The amount unspent is booked under current liability is of *

2,112.78 lakhs (previous year X 2844.64 lakhs )
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I 45: AT ShT Hehe [GhTUT e )
Note 45: Disclosure of Provisions: (X in lakh)
fe. aH & ST aﬁa?%rgv fe.
01.04.2018 TR = 31.03.2019
=T 3ifa oI PICBIE) Plcoic) i Sifad 919
faawut / Particulars
Closing Provision Provision Closing
balance as on made during adjusted balance as on
01.04.2019 the year during the year 31.03.2020
faanfea AT - sigerd & AT yreem 69.67 - 1.87 67.80
Provision for disputed entry tax-OSCOM

AT 46 / Note 46:

U ST YRS TIHT 1 ST Y 5T AT BT e TN 1T 7 | 3 IS o TR R TR §RT <1 TTE GaTg o TR

U GRT 3T 9 F aferd ford ST € 1590 Ui § Tafea %, 315.86 @@ (el 99 . 315.87 @@) o 7o 3% oo |

TN 3T 37T TS, ST 3 e @l # e el R M ], S o wRa e gfed foRar T € | s o WeTeh 3T,

first T, A F 2. 29.06.2013 F1 fewis we FHoT el e (CUH) Tt 58 T gRT 39 fEs § Wafta 5 %,

668.67 TR  foIT skl T, I T AT ST T o YA S /T 1 T8 € | R YRR BT T Y, ot 7 It THUITA(@US)

@m%ﬁw@mmmwﬁﬁwmﬁwwﬁmW|WWWaﬁW@QWW%
fegm g

The Company has been entrusted with the execution of a project on behalf of the Government of India . The operations relating
to this project are being carried on by the Company in its own name. The cash and bank balance of ¥ 315.86 lakhs (Previous
year ¥ 315.87 lakhs) and other transactions pertaining to this project, though managed by the Company in its name, are not
incorporated in the annual accounts of the Company, as advised by the Government of India. The Company received Demand
cum Show-Cause Notice (SCN) dated 29.06.2013 from the Asst. Commissioner of Sales Tax, Mumbai demanding payment
of Sales Tax, Interest thereon and penalty aggregating to ¥ 668.67 lakhs relating to this project. On behalf of the Government
of India, the Company contested the said SCN and the assessment order passed by the assessing authority is set aside. The
assessing authority is directed to assess afresh.

€ 47 / Note 47:

1. TG S T TS ;e i aeget o A §, {9 ateifae a % emeR W freif forer s €, ateifae
Y T TRt Jfa HAT T ek Ter # Uk =0 1 I TS T STHE I A & 91 Wl ohi JEsh! # G
fomam ST © | 36 W1 I otfereh ot off oo ot e MRt o STHTe § S § THES R ST € |

1. Inventory Book Adjustment: In case of bulk finished goods which are to be quantified based on volumetric measurement,
a deviation in the physical balance upto the acceptable error limit of volumetric measurement is adjusted in the books of
accounts after obtaining approval from unit head. Any deviation which is more than the said limit, adjustment in the book is
made with the approval of competent authority

2. HHIE T g 3 T S ifuf e 1947 F URT 12 (3) F & I FHEaT €. 01.07.2018 ¥ T 7 3R TSR
T aE # 7. 1884.77 AE(Ier 9 T 395.63 TG ) T WA foRar T € |

2 Wage settlement u/s 12(3) of ID Act 1947 with workers' unions has been due w.e.f 01.07.2018 and accordingly a provision
of Rs. 1884.77 lakhs (previous year ¥ 395.63 lakhs) has been provided in the book.

3. fedr 1 3t 2016 ¥ U T TS @1 HIeh! & Tft Heh! ol ST € ST ST ol qRIE o &7 & 1 3, 2015
I, YA T Ak 101 AT o €9 H, TEel AR RIS ST@T HTeh] Sl STIAIET 4T | TH-37 YR ere fagial ¥ foar
T, ST SHAR T 9 | St (o) W, 2014 (1GAAP) & a1 7 o T 9 ST aTet 3Tfuf-am @t 6T 133 & 8 ©,
ST e STTedt (GAAP) T |

3.  Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance
with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transaction date. The
transaction was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP
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4. wIfgg-19 WHE
HITS 19 AETHRT o HRUT I 7§ T Yohd o et GLRRI ot TfAehaT o STTER, AT ¥ Tt THT 0 SHY! o6 SHHEE],
glaensii i gt o Qe wW@reed i Yo Grfaa s o o gafe mofierar & | wgfia & 9) 1), % wa=Er
1 5T HTH HT o foTT a7 797 © | HETHRT o ThTT 3 HI0T 297 WX H SATHEIST o HeIsTC, I GLehTT o SAeHTIas
FRT STRY 97T / STRTTT o STIUTeH | U=t o 3 TIHT § TeTe ol STER ®9 F ¥ / 3NifeTeh &7 Y 51 T feram ma o
JEE & SH SThE o STIHR, U o TREIRAT, ST ST ISR o W& Sl &M | 7@ g, T41, ST 9,
TR T, e SiX 7= fai aftEafaet Y " S o of S W i faauit # i Aecul g9 O SHES S
STITAHAT TE ¢ | e 9w it 3nferen fefaat & seera ot FrRrt o ST T@T | HeTHRY oht fhereTet =17 et et =
ST % TG g, Sk T o ifam oo 7 farar fawori o STHe ot fafer & Sar o7 § fug €1 gahar 2 |

4. Note on COVID-19

In accordance with the Governments response to the ongoing health crisis caused by the Covid 19 pandemic, the company
gave top priority to ensure the safety, health and well-being of all the company’s employees, facilities and communities
across all locations. As a precaution, many employees have been asked to Work from Home to the extent possible. In view
of the lockdown across the country due to the outbreak of the pandemic, operations in some of the Company’s locations
were temporarily scaled down / partially shut down in compliance with the directives/ orders issued by the local Government
authorities. Considering the nature of the company’s shareholding, products and markets, as per management’s current
assessment, there is no significant impact or adjustment required in the financial statements on carrying amounts of
inventories, intangible assets, trade receivables, investments and other financial assets. The management will continue to
monitor changes in future economic conditions. Considering the ongoing nature of the pandemic, the eventual outcome of
its impact of may be different from what is estimated as on the date of approval of these Financial Statements."

fe.1 3 2019 F, U T R T A 116 TST T ST |
With effect from 1st April 2019, the company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases.

foreftar faaoT fceTes Hed 51T fadieh 3 SJas 2020 i RT Teh TTMa o TTIR ST i o faw fedd foe T &

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board of Directors on 3rd
July 2020.

o o g W

T 48 / Note-48
I o TSI T TAHH T F THIT / Feha 1T o STTEY A o foAq STet off STaweh &1, [ 4o /37 Jffehd o T € |

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year's classifications
/ disclosures.

TR 34T feAieh i Fer R o ST ar Fd T8 YT Hedt &t 3§
gt e He
RECARSICIEaTS
FRN: 103264W
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W
R it T, T Sy o=z fae
ST Tfera frgere (o) 3Ty T vaY fewe
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
SRGRRIC]
LKAy
HSEIT ShHTeh : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale
Partner

Membership Number: 33767

g

Mumbai Mumbai
fearem 03 ST, 2020 fearem 03 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734
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Plot No. 1207, ECIL Bldg, Veer Savarkar Marg
Opp. Siddhivinayak Temple,
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% adid IREL (India) Limited & 31 & 2020 #' woreg af & A aEt o
Rreaforar

#EIey,
$H 97 & WY, FET FEE 2013 & e IREL (India) Limited & 31 &n 2020
I FATCT a9 & Consolidated Td Standalone fafag @rdr, 9T WHUTYT ST ST 1@ B

PIAT SH T DT Ao ot dHY HAT HY
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31 W 2020 oh! GUTE a¥ o fog emgemEue (Sfeam)
fafee o wafea fasia faaun o o stfefrEm,
2013 Sht &R 129(4) Sk TTT UG T ATl &RT 143 (6)
(@) ok ST WA o oRAT-Eeh Ud HgTeRaaieeh hi
feurfora

ot erfufrag 2013 @fufrem) & Tea i faxe foafd
FRET % TTER 31 AT 2020 T G a9 o T STEITRZTA
@fean) fafres o wafera faxia faawolt &1 GO & o
ST S o e T eI € | Sfam 1 9T 129(4)
& Y U T aATe AU Y URT 139 (5) o Tod YR o
o e T8 merETRee g 1w Sifafus crariee
rfufTom &t ¥R 143(10) & Tea fuiRa sramaien & At
% STTHI TS TIETIETT o STTHR I STTUf=rT &t &1RT 129(4)
% Y U¢ S ATl ¥RT 143 o ded faa faeon ) T &t
fyefts & feTw STeTEt €1 § | U9 S §RT 19T feies 3
TS 2010 T er@mRIET fird o SR s @R |

FY, YR & G99 T HeTo@nadiees st 3K  atfufram
T YURT 129 (4)%F 9T T&T ST aTell ¥R 143(6)(F) o T&d
31 HTE 2020 T A ¥ o AT SRS (3fean) fafies
% GHfRT o faawoll ST STqIeh oRETade H {1 T 31
ATE 2020 T FAG T4 & AT LRI ISHIA [ATHES B
foreiter feramoTt AT STYeR TRETURIET i § | TET9R, H TS Usfl o
T 1 gifafees RETaIeeht 1 f1gfH 1 € 3K T 2 5T TS B
ST TRETIET &1 7 | T8 ST T WIeT Fifaferes oram
TTTeRT o SHTHSHTST o SHITTSII qeh Tg o o o1 Wad &9 9 fomam
T ® SR g ifafien orET TeThT gRT St o i o
I TE TS I AGIHT Rehie! § T F& hT TAAIHS T
T W 2 |

TR STIX ohal e o MR W, # Afufam T & 129
(4) % T T T RT 143 () (@) % T8q W &7 | 3 g
frefafen TeaTel At 1 SR HTT =R T S A
fereme # farefter fararott 37k Gafura Sramadie fuid = a7eat e
Y gue o o Trovee 7
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR
GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) READ
WITH SECTION 129 (4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
INDIAN RARE EARTH LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Indian
Rare Earth Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 in
accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility
of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139 (5) read with section 129 (4) of the
Act is/ are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial
statements under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) of the
Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 3rd July 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India,
have conducted a supplementary audit of the consolidated
financial statements of Indian Rare Earth Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2020 under section 143(6)(a) read with
section 129 (4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of IREL (India) Limited, IREL
IDCOL Limited for the year ended on 31 March 2020. This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors
and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors
and company personnel and a selective examination of some
of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the
following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) read with
section 129 (4) of the Act which have come to my attention
and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better
understanding of the financial statements and the related
audit report:
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1. | -adwe ufwufeat

AT W USITe shT (F1E-4): 3,916.43 WG

ST T (TR 2019) ¥ 239.31 TG &1 AT § 1500 m3
T T T 31T STIRTE TS ok AT T W feam o7 | 31 71
2020 T FTH T TTET A e few@m {7 & T R T
170.36 @ S TRT TR ¥ G571 hrdf o &9 & wr@ifond ot
TE | 7T 9 G b & ), s T 2019-20 o ER 3
ST o e @ H 400 m3 T AT T ST fofAm 3R 3
T T | Afeh %, 63.82 AT o1 T o WA # YT vl
% A H SAreh (RTae &7 JTeM el fohan T o it fof
I T oG el 1.4 T Seeto oAt € | g9 TRumeEEy yf
% USTa ohTd SR 2T 63 .82 T T YT & SR THT g T
3T e TR & o o o oy ot SR AT gan e |

T ST T A (AT 2018 H) T, 200.82 TG &I ANTA
T 1500 m3 S & o 31T TS @S o i o faw m
feam om1 2018-19 & ¥99 230.67 TG Y IRANTH AT F
I, 700 m3 ST &HT ShT STANT fehalT 7T (STTTIcreh TRIE
¥ 107.47 W) 3T 2019-20 F TT 800 m3 (FIWfaH
TREME 123.20 ARG €92)hT ITAMT fohafT 7T |

YR T AT 8 % T 42 7 Gef fear v 7, ford 7@
T T R o R Od orfYr & o e i i
TR HTA

% foTT ITe0T @Il o 916, Wil foriTd faa<on o Teot §e ¥ Ia
37afY Y eyl 3l ol qEeETd FY F T AT S | THIRR
2019-20 o fawi faeworl # =16t fhT T 2018-19 & G
FEH A HE. 107.47 TG ! TR o IROTTEEY AT
TG A 8 BT ST el gam 2 |

317 1T | SRETEeh Ud WETer@TiRieeh aht femtura PEDERCOREEIC)

RS

% | o W femfirat € TG Feeiieh Feieh 1500cum &HaT o &1 319 Trgat
et 1 Y Fafya

(1) TEe W T HH 2018-19 F & T 3 2019-20 &
230.67 TG ¥ o T T G G| 9 ST STl /st 6
ST e (2018-19 T TRM 700 cum 3T 2019-20 &F
R 800cum) THATT: F.107.47 TG X &. 123.20 @@
T 39 Gy ¥ @ T STaeieRd I8 € foF, =g 9 % @ #
T TE T 51 T ST o 79 78 37afer o @il o e .

107.47 1@ ok fot ST =g & | (2) 2 T @TE T 61 1T ok

¥.293.31 TG %! AN W T@I 7T 0T, 98 2019-20 F GRT

71% (Rs.170.36 TR T HeF FeIfRor) T fofam Tam 37K 91

T SIFAR 2020 T T T F INAT 2 1 GF 2019-20 F

ER 400cum X T, AT F g T4 R 2019-20 T <RE

Rs. 63.82 TG T 3Tk XML T YoiieheoT AT qRerT

T e o

TH GaY H e o7 ek PR 8-

%) WTgAl T G Sheet ql GSiigrd fehaT ST Gehall © 579 @
Y Feiferd T QX7 ET ST 37R fwior 37X W o et &
VT T TS o AT H YSfiche Te| ol < ek 7 |

@) TG e R 7.-1.9 & ITIHR, & &1 7AYo G &0
ft =TT < ST ® ST JTA A7 <k o | oA 9y § g
ff & .10 TG 37

AT TSI o 1% § 3tk a7era g 9 it off afren &71 dfer

¥, 107.47 TG 1% 1 A7 & e 8, 39fer 39 e arafyr o @it

& 7 E A T AT R

IR o SR W, 2019-20 F S 230.67 TG T4 BT (4T

T GSIeRTT 3T IRETER / TedeTy foram T ofiX o o fau 63.82

TG &9 T & &G H g 78] [T T

TTCAl(oh, Foe 9 GaY § o o ot JTae i o Hedor g

TG AT T 3T G HM | 3T Y % T H oS

T o o Forrdt STy e BT @t ST T Tifafafyr Bt STt € )

au uRwutar faxie afuter [ o aaee fasda
.

([12- 16 ): . 4,791.72 7@

I H T T it o & et d e o g o g
& AT T, 513.24 G F TG @ MHA & G F fowg
T H =T T o | W S1aTS (13 A 2020) T fRh 7t |

S o € T E. 362.10 TG 7 Wi e |

freTer Wedt ST fareia foramor ot ST ek, et T 37aTe o foe g
T <R T AT oft | 5 W el A 9 el any gt Wi g
3T A a1 et § S o FoAT Were e =ee o

Tt o o fery <@t % fofe e 7 0 € o @ o o

TG S T ¥ 151,14 WG 99T B A I |

1. T 151.14 TG ST AT T 52T T T Sifeh HEaere STaTe o fo
T GRT LA T 0T ey oraTe oht J rafy (feien 13 W
2020) S o o feraRoT I AR A o AT e g8 € |

2. IRSTSA & TWd G, ol < 3 Fraifad S s i fear o
fop “afe e arafer 15.03.2020 % SC A R £, 7 15.03.2020 ¥
3T TG T @ Fary forg
TR GRS I AHT & ¥ 31 T & ST foae gam & 1 <Tai shior
R T RIS I3 o T 15 el ol & forw share et araty
TS ST |

3. 3% ST FURT 3FTE T SR O SiTgTe 3 g e @ o &
3 T A S R SR B ¥ Sieq ST T SR € SR
T 3T feaT foh SR TG HHeh 37 o STl HaHT b STl b
TiET 2020-21 § Y S |
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Sl. C&AG Comments Managements’ Reply

No.

A | Comments on Balance Sheet The Audit observation is pertaining to two nos. of solid trenches
Assets having capacity 1500cum each.

Non-Current Assets (1)  The work of the first trench was started in 2018-19 and

1. |Capital Work in Progress (Note-4): Rs. 3,916.43 lakh completed in 2019-20 at value of Rs. 230.67 lakh. The
The Company awarded (August 2019) a work proportionate value to the quantities filled up (700cum
for construction of solid waste trench at a cost of during 2018-19 & 800cum during 2019-20) is Rs. 107.47
Rs. 239.31 lakh for capacity of 1500 m3e As on lakh and Rs. 123.20 lakh respectively. Audit observation,
31 March 2020 around three fourth part of the work in this regard is, Rs. 107.47 lakh would have been
was completed and an amount of Rs. 170.36 lakh was booked under prior period expenses instead of fully
accounted as capital work in progress. Out of capital work charged to current year account. (2) The work of the 2
in progress, company utilized and filled capacity of 400 trench which was placed at cost of Rs. 293.31 lakh, 71%
m3 in trench with solid waste during 2019-20. But did (valuing Rs.170.36 lakh) was completed during 2019-20
not make provision for proportionate diminution in value and balance is expected to be completed by Oct’ 2020.
of capital work in progress amounting to Rs. 63.82 lakh Since 400 cum filled during 2019-20, Audit observed
which is also in contravention of company’s accounting that proportionate amount of Rs. 63.82 lakh should have
policy 1.4. This has resulted in overstatement of capital been capitalized and amortized during 2019-20.
work in progress by Rs. 63.82 lakh and overstatement of C L

) Management contention in this regards is :-

profit for the year by the same amount.

Further company had awarded (July 2018) a work for|a) Value of trenches can only be capitalized when the work

construction of solid waste trench at a cost of Rs. 200.82 pertaining to the trench is completed and it can't be

lakh for capacity of 1500 m3. Against actual cost of capitalized in part in compartment due to its nature of

Rs. 230.67 lakh capacity of 700 m3 was utilized in construction and operation.

2018 - 19 (proportionate amortization Rs. 107.47 lakh) BT, . . . .

and remaining 800 m3 in 2019 - 20 (proporiionate ) .speracc_:ountlng 2y e no-1.9_, prior pgno@expense

amortization Rs. 123.20 lakh). A reference is invited 5 reeag iz enditure arising in current

to para 42 of Ind AS 8 which states that an entity shall yeazas 3 result.of SrTors Oroliggeion ex.cee.dlng Rs. 10lakh

correct material : or 1% of operatlng.reve_ntlje whlchoeve.r |§ higher. .

prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial Since RS‘ 107‘47. lakh > Wity 1% limit, the same is not

statements approved for issue after their discovery by [EG0gRIZed asgpnior period expgfises. .Bafsed on the abgve,

restating the comparative amounts for the prior period the amou_nt of Rs. _230.67 lakh was capitalized and amortized

presented in which the error occurred. Thus diminution ! gdepreciated dur!ng 2019 - 28and Rs. 63.82 lakh was not

in value of capital work in progress in 2018-19 amounting booked as expenditure for the ye?ar. )

to Rs. 107.47 lakh charged in financial statements of However, management shall review and make changes in the

2019 - 20 has resulted in non- compliance of Ind AS 8. present Accounting policy in view of providing for expenditures
in this regard. In order to account the expenditure in the year
in which the activity of solid waste is dumped in the trenches
is being made.

2. |Current Assets / Financial Assets / Other Current|1. Provision of Rs 151.14 Lakh was not created as decision
Financial Assets (Note-16) : Rs. 4,791.72 lakh of Arbitration is under scrutiny by Company and limitation
The above includes claims receivable of Rs.513.24 lakh period for arbitration award (dated 13" March 2020) has not
towards reprocessing losses of minerals recoverable from expired till signing of Financial Statement of the Company.

a private party which had gone into arbitration against the | 2. In view of Lockdown, Supreme Court had given decision to
company. The arbitration award (13 March 2020) restrict effect “In case the limitation has expired after 15.03.2020,
the claim of company on private party to Rs. 362.10 then the period from 15.03.2020 till the date on which the
lakh. Till the adoption of financial statement by Board lockdown is lifted in the jurisdictional area where dispute
of Directors, Company had not filed appeal against the lies or where cause of action arises shall be extended for a
award. period of 15 days after lifting of lockdown”.
Thus recovery of balance claims recoverable is doubtful | 3. Further M/s OSL aggrieved by the arbitration award has
of recovery and company should have made provision for intimated that they prefer appeal in higher forum challenging
the same in books. Non-provisioning for claims doubtful the same.
of recovery has resulted in overstatement of other current IREL assures that applicability of Provisions under IND AS
financial assets and profit for the year by Rs.151.14 lakh. 37 will be reviewed in 2020-21.
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T | S gt ET & faerer ue femud TG & 37.01 TohE o T G 431 (TAUA) H forg ST
=T Tl SIS ST SHafent &1 § Gaferd fasia faawolf # famme # 7
I T (AT - 33) : F. 26,983.61 @ 7T TTT G T TG % 41 /- WG S € |
IR | G & F SHTBICTT ST FHAGH BT T. 41 TG HY | THUAS GRT G T & T & Tfafaferdt st arfass amm s uar
T SIS Te1 € | 35k TR @&y 3§ T gRT & o fo7g | o 7 gehen 2 |
T o IEX LeHe GRT SIQIAN o ot A STaemt &t | <Hfoh STTAI o2 bt U Sl Agcaqul a1 AT T o, S
HETLTHT +ff 3 G5 | YT T ST ATl Tfare & a9 39 ge I i 1o off |
B |Comment on Statement of Profit and Loss Account |The provisioning of expenses not considered in financial

Expenses
Other Expenses (Note-33): Rs. 26,983.61 lakh

The above does not include Rs. 41 lakh being the cost
of backfilling and leveling of the mined out area. This
also resulted in understatement of current provisions for
liabilities by overstatement of profit for the year by same
amount.

statements estimated to be Rs. 41/-lacs pertains to dozing &
levelling work to be carried out in Standing Mining Plants (SMP)
at Oscom of 37.01 Acres. The actual cost of the activities can
be ascertained only on completion of the mining by SMP’s.

Since the amount of expenditure estimated was not considered
material, hence was planned to be booked in the year of the
activity being undertaken.
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M (Sfea) ferfwes o T o fog
AT T @ereh! ki fae
Tifera fawit faeror st sramter u fed
Srfvma

T RIS ($fean) fafies (‘") 3R 3Th! TETEw
U LIRS Tl e (Ut T TUH T
U BT “THE” o T H SN ST ) F G R fae
feraoit ot orETTe i ¥, fEw 31 9T 2020 7 FHfFT Tor
T, o 3T B o1 FhfRa faawor (/=1 = 37 Hied),
gierarct 3 e o1 Ffend feraor 31T 39 fafer o1 wamea o &
o et yaTe T WHfSh faawoT, ToT Heyut sra@ieh Hifaar
T 3777 ATEATH ST o TR (3Hoh 91E STHfehd foita
fqarure & ¥ § ¥efia) wieq wafed faxdia faewor & Hew
M B |

TAR T & 3R TAR Garw SHahRT o S9N 37T SWIth
TR ST ! A § @A gL, T §H QU T BT o6
IER, ST FHfoha foedia faemor sot stfufm, 2013
(“rfufTem”) gRT SMavaesh STHHRT TF F4T 3Tavaesh aiih §
T T ST HIAT (YA T Aeh) Frarmraett, 2015, (“HRa™
T AR ) ST WA H 3T AR T Tepel 377 era@ieh (g
& 1Y UG S aTel T TN IUfET, 2015 T €RT 133
% T (e TR orRaT Al o 3198 31 A1, 2020 T
ST o AT T TRt GEfed oy K G el STk
3, sfoadt  whfed aftady ot 39 90 &1 THIE a9 &
foT Tiifene Teret yame & A H HEt ST Sfaa TF e B

arfir o ferg st

T U2 (TG Tk ) St €IRT 143 (10) & 37 fAfem
TRETIRIET & HITeh| & STTHR AT SRETRIE 1 € | S HITeh!
% TEd BAR fSTEeTfea 1 A frurd o gfend famier faawor
TS ! AQIRILT o foIw eramierss o1 fSreerfa & o1 aftra
o T ® | B YR o TS ST ST (SEEITSTE) 5
SIRT ek SR W & SR, 37 Afde SavEware &
T ST Y T 7, S e S et o weer & qed
TR faxita faawoll ot gaRt eraTaRier § Fafud 8 31T g
T AT I LT3R Y MR Wfeam % TIER
3T 377 Aferer eIl ohT T feerT © 1 &9 A € o T
ST SRETIeT Fed AT fR 7, 9 TR ifuEd & o SR
T X o o 7o 3T g ¢ |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of IREL (INDIA) LIMITED (“the Company”) and
its subsidiary IREL IDCOL Limited, (the company and its
subsidiary together referred to as “the group”) which comprise
the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date and notes to the
consolidated financial statements including summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of the above named subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March, 2020, the
consolidated profit and consolidated total Comprehensive
Income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated

cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditof the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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T FrefeTiad WTaell Ut 91 STIehtad shid &

1.

AN I I fe-qhe (Tsuey) & fau afagfa
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters:

1.

2.

3.

Note number 27 to the consolidated financial statements
regarding the rate per kg. adopted for estimation of
revenue in regard to compensation / processing charges
for Nuclear Grade Ammonium Di-uranate (NGADU).
The company receives these charges from Government
of India (GOI) for the NGADU processed by it. The
rates for such processing are determined by the GOI
taking into consideration various factors, including level
of output, actual cost incurred etc. As mentioned in the
note although the amount claimed is higher than the
rate at which the revenue is estimated, the rate of Rs.
13,557/- (which was approved for F.Y. 2010-11) has been
consistently taken for initial estimation from F.Y. 2010-
11 to F.Y. 2019-20, since the approved rate is usually
intimated by GOI after a lag of approximately three
years. Upon receipt of such approval, the differential
sum is recognized. Accordingly, GOI has approved in FY
19-20 the rate of Rs.18,733 and Rs. 28806 /- per kg for
supplies effected in 2016-17 and the differential impact
of Rs. 1393 Lakhs has been recognized as revenue in
the current year.

The RED plant at Alwaye has undertaken manufacture
of ND Pr Oxalate (More than 99% Purity) which has
applications in electric cars, e-mobility and renewable
energy. Commercial production of requisite grade
of purity has commenced last year. For commercial
reasons the inventory of Rs. 7.53 Crores (50.56 MT) as at
01.04.2019 has increased by Rs. 20.84 Crores (133.65
MT) in the year under consideration. Accordingly the
sum of Rs. 28.37 Crores (184.21 MT) is carried as part
of closing inventory. Management has explained that
inventory of this rare earth product is built up for meeting
the requirements of e-mobility plan of Government of
India (GOI) and other strategic reasons. Since it has a
long shelf life no part of the said inventory is considered
impaired.

We draw attention to Note 47.4 to the consolidated
financial statements, which explains the uncertainties
and management’s assessment of the financial impact,
if any, due to the lockdown and other restrictions
imposed by the Government and condition related to
the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which definitive
assessment of the impact would highly depend upon
circumstances as they evolve in the subsequent period.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
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Key Audit Matters
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period owing
to events that occurred in the period of the audit. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Considering the circumstances under which audit
has been conducted in the light of lockdown due to Covid-19
pandemic, we have determined the matters described below

qﬂ-@'é CIRNKIRIGEIEARERIICRER %| to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
ﬁ@ﬁw%wmﬁ @1 T hi ATafohaT Key Audit Matter Auditor’s response
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e — 1 S WWWWWWW@ZT ASI, j resun,l W(T have | the following procedures:
’ : relied complete on
F1 A T 24 W 2020 |3 TG F I A B digtal /electrc‘:nic ) ratla. Obaining reports in regard to
3 sl T G . SR Tl TR q| evidence as a part of our| SR, IETENE PR PO
IR R TR A FFEUR G| fifdss T & Ty W] |audit process effective| the same in the manner
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T ST a2 THTEIT e till the date of this report.[ Chartered Accountants of India
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Information other than that in the Consolidated Financial
Statements forming part of the Annual Report of the
company

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors
is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the [information included in the Annual report but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon]. The Annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
In the event of such situation arising we shall draw attention
of the said matter to those charged with governance and if not
suitably rectified, to the stakeholders.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible
for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated
total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Director’s of the companies included
in the group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding company as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the group are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
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as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management/Board
of Direct or’s either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting

process of the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiaries
which are company incorporated in India, has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
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may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or the business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
consolidated financial statement. We are responsible
for direction, supervision and performance of audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditor. One other entity included in the
consolidated financial statements, has been audited
by other auditors, who remain responsible for direction,
supervision and performance of the audit carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the
holding company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance of the holding company, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication..
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary
whose financial statements reflect total asset of Rs.
47,30,825/- as at 31st March, 2020, total revenues of Rs. NIL
and net cash flows amounting to Rs. 33,61,741/- for the year
ended on that date, as considered in consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and discourse
included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of
sub section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of
the other auditor.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements, and our
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor
and the financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on
our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditor on separate financial statements of such
subsidiary as was audited by other auditor as noted in
the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and reports of other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance sheet, Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) The Company being a government company, the
provisions of section 164(2) and section 197 are
not applicable in accordance with the Notification
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No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by
MCA. Accordingly, no reporting in regard to Clause
3(g) and 3 (j) of section 143 is required.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting of the company and

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters included in the

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

as amended in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i The Group has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in
its Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
— Refer Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements;

ii. The Group does not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable
losses;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company and its
subsidiary company incorporated in India.

Fd ME T 98
HEt Sr@mTer
T TARYE . 10326437

ST O, TREer
e
ST . 33767

I Jag
femieR: 03 IeTE, 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207

For Gokhale & Sathe,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

Jayant P. Gokhale
Partner

Membership. No. 33767

Place: Mumbai
Date: 3rd July, 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207
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FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF IREL (INDIA) LIMITED

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION
143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)
(Referred to in Paragraph 8. 1(f) of the section ‘Report on other
legal & regulatory requirements’ of our Report of even date on
accounts of IREL (India) Limited as at 31st March 2020.)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated financial
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31.2020, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of IREL (India) Limited (herein after
refer to as “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company,
which are companies incorporated in India as of that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanation given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of other auditor on financials statements of such
subsidiary audited by such auditor, the Holding company
and its subsidiary company which are incorporated in India
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of internal
control stated in Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company, which are companies incorporated in
India are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.
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Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company
and its subsidiaries internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the ‘Guidance Note’
on audit of internal financial control over financial reporting
(“the guidance note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. The Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their
report referred to in the Other Matter paragraph, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company and its subsidiary internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Gokhale & Sathe,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

Jayant P. Gokhale
Partner
Membership. No. 33767

Place: Mumbai
Date: 3rd July, 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207
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31 TT 2020 Tk ohT TATRT FoIT U X T H)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020 (X in lakh)
faawut / Particulars E I 31 TTe 2020 AT 319 2019 <hT
Note No | As at 31st March 2020 | As at 31st March 2019
L1 oftgufet
ASSETS
1 HT-adaT afreufaaf / Non-current assets
Tuft, G 3T ST / Property, Plant and Equipment 2 25,094.21 26,600.55
3T IREHTT / Intangible assets 3 pELE 807.21
ITNT T 3TFHR / Right-To-Use 3A 35.32 -
TSI HAUH / Capital Advance - -
TTﬁqua?lﬁﬁﬁ / Capital work-in-progress 4 3,916.43 1,164.98
foreiter gfRgufe™t / Financial Assets
'ﬁ'{- AT 99T / Non-current Investments 5 1.42 1.42
TGS U / Capital Advances . -
Other long term Loans & Advances
3T TTETHT - 9 & 9 6A 4,478.54 483.27
/ Other NC FA-Bank Balances
ST T wftEafeat () { S e 3,875.85
Deferred tax assets (net)
TT-TAT T IRETaT / Non-current tax assets 8 2,561.71 2,311.89
‘Fﬁ"’l’d’ I / Capital Advance 1 LR 267.57
3T T - FAH YREHITET / Other non-current assets 9B 200.34 184.26
45,835.86 38,280.04
2 FAHT UREUTET / Current assets
m—f / Inventories 10 15,094.10 16,136.59
foritar aREwf™T / Financial Assets
7937 / Investment 1" 5,693.72 2,289.76
AR 9T / Trade receivables 12 3,154.19 1,731.65
hq 3ﬁ'{' Johq HhE / Cash and cash equivalents 13 4,090.97 1,538.08
3T dehT % I / Other bank balances 14 47,851.45 40,395.40
ST/ Loans 15 10,420.88 10,590.08
Other current financial assets
3T AT IREHIGET / Other current assets 17 8,856.10 6,691.01
faqem & fau wifse aftemfaat 17A 6.93 340
Asset Pending for Disposal
99,934.55 85,117.34
el UHUfaT / TOTAL ASSETS Ak e 1,23,397.39
Il gfeedt wer TG / EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
WA FfFat / Equity
3'%5 I ‘{Fﬁ/ Equity share capital 18 8,636.50 8,636.50
ST T/ Other equity 19 87,062.26 71,355.60
AT &ATST / Non Controlling Interest 19A 1.17 .21
95,709.93 80,003.31

@/B <IATE / LIABILITIES
1 9 -adu 34T / Non-current liabilities
faref™ TFM / Financial Liabilities
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YR TRITT / Borrowings B B
R T / Trades Payable - -

() THUHEST ! T el ThTAT / - ;
(a) Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

(@) THUHEST 1 <F o STATAT el FehTaT T / . -
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

37 - forei <amd / 20 40.51 14.49
Other non-current financial liabilities

TT-SAHT T / Non-current provisions 21 11,994.01 10,778.70
WﬁT EREic) a'ﬂ'd'lE / Other non-current liabilities 22 5,000.00 5,000.00

17,034.52 15,793.19

2 afrrrﬁé'émq/ Current liabilities
fai™ <A / Financial Liabilities
MR <TERAT / Trade payables 23 4,171.45 3,186.80

(oF) & 3T o7 ST T FeT SehTaT 1,751.34 974.23
(a) Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

() TITHEST 1 < o STCATAT e sehTaT T 2,420.11 2,212.57
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

377 4= AT / Other financial liabilities 24 12,351.90 8,835.43

(o) THUHEST ST 3T et ShTaT / 360.57 177.30
(a) Total Outstanding dues to MSEs

(@) TICHEST T T o STEATAT e T T / ClEEE 8,658.13
(b) Total Outstanding dues other than MSEs

3T IGH TFATT /Other current liabilities 25 6,797.45 5,936.83

A ﬁ'QT'I'I'Q / Current provisions 26 9,705.16 9,641.83
33,025.96 27,600.89

amgﬁ-?az”rqaré"a?rrq 1,45,770.41 1,23,397.39
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
TEeqUT @i At 1
Significant accounting policies
farita faarutt o Hem 3348
Notes on financial statements

TAR T feieh ot Hord RUld o STgER Fd TF FSTTen 78 &l AR Y

e WS T3

LECARSECICary

Gokhale & Sathe

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103264W

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T A T T e s fg

EREIRICE] freere (o) 3Ty TF HaY e
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh

Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director

ERCRIRITC

N .
AT AT : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale

Partner
Membership Number: 33767

Mumbai Mumbai

feer 3 I, 2020 feAie 3 e, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020
UDIN: 20033767AAAAAI2207
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31 T 2020 T THTE 98 o T &1 Ta 1 ehT A ferd fearawor X AE H)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (R in lakh)
faawut / Particulars ElCa: 31 WTe 2020 ThY 31 | 2019 T
Note No | graey ot o5 forg T 99 & fere
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
I Ui ¥ 3T / Revenue From Operations 27 1,03,874.10 76,974.30
I 3T=T 3T / Other Income 28 5,649.17 4,688.79
. z5et 31w (1 +11) / Total Income (1 + 1) 1102523520 81,663.09
V. =1/ EXPENSES:
ST AT S I / Cost of materials consumed 29 9,387.99 9.087.10
eTd / Purchase of stock in trade 29A 1,922.04 h
TR T, Wh-39-3€ ST IIfreiicr shred oht aeg gt 30 1,234.64 (1,711.88)
ERITCRE]
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-
Trade and work-in-progress
HHART Y 5 / Employee benefits expense 31 25,549.94 26,113.95
foT 1 @A / Finance costs 32 4.78 2.62
BT 3T qfReTeT =9 2 4,145.98 3,850.44
Depreciation and amortization expense
3T & / Other expenses 33 26,984.90 24,262.93
el ST (IV) / Total Expenses (IV) 69,230.27 61,605.16
Voo aTeTereh agell S ST (V) T TR T/ (Ff) e 20,057.93
Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (llI-1V)
VL. AT HS / Exceptional ltems ) B
Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI)
vill. el T / Tax Expense: o4
0] A9 T / Current Tax 11,617.62 7,209.74
(ii) ST T / Deferred Tax (498.93) 1,099.17
11,118.69 8,308.91
Net profit / (loss) After Tax (VII-VIII)
X. 31 =TUes 3 / Other Comprehensive Income (810.13) (307.80)
HA. (i) T e = A o1 o1 o forg iR e fepar s | 31 (1,082.61) (473.12)
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(il) 37 TSl ¥ GafHa SR S ol a7 711 o fow 34 272.48 165.32
qdieha TR BT
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
GB. (i) d7E S oy = 71 o fore qaaitena femam S
(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) 37 S ¥ Tafq TRt ST A 1 B & fau
qdTeRd foRT ST
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss
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Xl srafer 3 for et sameR T (1X+X) (3Tafir o fog 28,364.18 11,441.24
T (FT1) ST =T ek 1 igd)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)
Profit for the year attributable to
(i) YT o T / Owner's of the Company 29,175.10 11,750.45
(if) 3ATITIT =TT / Non Controlling Interest (0.79) (1.42)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to
(i) S & HIfT / Owner's of the Company (810.13) (307.80)

(if) ST ST / Non Controlling Interest - -
XV {7 & hror 98 & fow ot =mueh o1

Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to

(i) ST & AIfetsh / Owner's of the Company 28,364.97 11,442.65
(if) 3ATTITIT =TT / Non Controlling Interest (0.79) (1.42)

XV.  arafe 3 foe spet omTes 3T (IX+X) (37afy & forg ey 28,364.18 11,441.24
(®TFT) 3R 1= =M 1 W)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX+X)
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive
Income for the period)

XVL. uf et 319X 31 / Earnings per equity share: 42
T 3R 0 T T @ F ) / Basic & Diluted (in ) 3,378.02 1,360.39
gfef TR T 3ifehd qe7 € # ) / Face Value per Share (in 3) 1,000.00 1,000.00

ﬂ'ﬁﬂ;ﬂf@r@’m# T/ Significant accounting policies 1
foreiir fqa¥oTl 9 A1ed / Notes on financial statements 35-48

TR 4t feeh ol Hers Rurd o T8 Fd T FeeTeh 7ed T 3T ¥

T WS T3

TS @R

FRN: 103264W

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Gokhale & Sathe

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 103264W
T oo T T ey o=z o
T | e (forer) 37ee UF yay ey
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
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31 =K 2020 T THTE a8 o ToTg Teret wag faawor X AT )
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 (X in lakh)
faawut / Particulars 31 |Te 2020 SHT WUTE | 31 HTE 2019 i FHTE
ELEE T ELE Ty
For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

. URETEHT fafafeEt ¥ Tendl uareg
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

o4 @ﬁ?gﬁa“_ ST o STTE oY § TR e A 40,293.00 20,057.93

Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss

T e 34 / 74 o fow o

Adjustment for Non Cash Income/Expenses :

T 31T 371 @ / Rent and other expenses = 46.53

TS & Ga T S &1 379 / Interest Income on unwinding of SD (79.32) (85.89)

TedT fafsht 9K =TT &1 3T / Interest income on LC Sales = (105.20)

3T AU 3T o feTq rHifoher JehdT ohT AGTIeRToT

Reclassification of actuarial losses to Other comprehensive (1,082.61) (473.12)

income

TR ST e o7 4,145.98 3,850.44

Depreciation and amortization expense

Tg T T 14.21

Lease Payment

T, HA S IR 1 T T T 0.50 14.86

Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment

ST & 7 3T ST ST R JohE 93.06 34.89

Loss on Non Moving Stores

WUST AT qREmfta /3 6t ag @ Ster ) 0.69

Write-off of Stores Current Assets/ Advances

STYSHTIRAT o I M T AT i 429207

Provision for Pay Revision of Executives ’

- TP F T BT IR 38.41 42.64

Amortization of pre-paid staff loan

SERTIRAT < feTt et <67 e 1,861.46 856.87

Provision for PRP for executives

a“:‘a‘, 4t fafoream e AT AT , 622.98 554.39

Provision for Employees Benefits Medicals

Tt Sl e FT A 162.65 118.64

Provision for Assets Retirement Obligation

SEUREN qwﬁquwl_aﬂ%mﬁ?gﬁ(aﬁ?) 301.93 394.90

Gratuity (Differentials) for retired employees

IS S T 3 (712.84) (395.48)

Gratuity Fund Gap

AIHRT F T T o T S B HTaref 1,884.77 395.63

Salary provision for pay revision of workmen

0T, IRt 3 o o e . 1.20

Provision for debts, assets and advances

ST STelT SRkt ofel SATereehell e ¢ (251.56) (310.32)

Excess Provision no longer required

70 ot aftes faie 2019-20
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g/

R

TE W ST T ST ST TfETe FIT BT e

Provision For Bad and Doubtful debts written back

Hehl 3T 3T GEAHT o el STAT G 47T 37

Interest Income on Deposit with banks and other Institutions

A S Y TATHIT bl 3T
Dividend Income from Mutual Fund

Gufey, G 31 ITHTOT BT fareh! 9T &

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

HTTSRTST Ut UREd= ¥ Uget Uarer=Td are
Operating profit before working capital changes
YIS Ui ¥ ufad:

Changes in working capital:

axg‘eﬁ / Inventories

EI'I'CIT{'QH AT U / Trade and other receivables
Wé’q@' WW / Trade payables and other liabilities
SHTHEHTSIT TSl TREd o TG Jee ary

Operating profit after working capital changes

37T fordr T yoey Y (YTt o7 fee)

Direct taxes paid (net of refund)

Ui nfafate=n & fae T

Net Cash From Operating Activities

Tragr nfafaferay € Tene yae
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sale of property, plant and equipment

Sale/(Purchase) of property, plant and equipment including
CWIP

STTafY STHT § 1997 / Investment in Short Term Deposits
srerafyr T § frenTel/fawy Withdrawal/ Investment in Short

Term Deposits

3T HE ¥ faeT (LCP)
Investment in Mutual Fund (LCP)

B[ e | fad= (LCP)
Redemption in Mutual Fund (LCP)

TS AT § 997 / Investment in Subsidary
U ATST / Interest Received

fragr nifafafera @ fraet Teng

Net Cash From Investing Activities

fam ifafafe=n @ fraer Tehe wae
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

SATYIET BT YT / Dividend paid
ATHIT o7 ST ST YT / Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

(1,226.01)

(376.45)

(5.17)

5,391.99

45,684.99

917.74
(4,880.10)
2,862.76

44,585.39
(11,867.45)

32,717.95

7.34
(5,348.59)
(71,257.12)
60,747.29
(70,504.61)

67,477.00

2,291.42
(16,587.26)

(10,500.00)
(2,158.31)

(9.00)

(2,499.17)

(279.29)

(60.84)

6,385.44

26,443.37

(2,043.56)
(4,307.96)
1,069.79

21,161.64

(6,571.98)

14,589.66

65.10

(3,677.14)

(38,826.24)

30,808.15

(70,128.00)

69,975.00

1,092.04

(10,691.09)

(3,650.00)
(750.27)
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IREL (India) Limited w
USTTa 31 / Capital Advances (Ba:28)
L ERER TEY ‘Té T I / Lease payment out of principal (9.12)
FASH Y 1@‘ T YA / Lease Payment out of Interest (5.09)
Wﬁ TRt 9T SATST ST 3T / Interest Income on LC Sales B 105.20
RIS ERIECR IR AEEN 12.25
Investment by non-controlling party
far o wifafaferat & frae Teg W2 (4,282.82)
Net Cash from Financing Activities
Tehdl T Tehe AHRE ¥ 915 9fg / (@) (A+B+C) 2,552.89 (384.25)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C)
TG 3 THS THHET HT AL T ) 1,922.33

Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

T 31T TR TGS ST T 91T el 1,538.08

Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

o, 3T TohT THHET o TIh:
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents:

et 3 TTeT = WAT 3T 3T ST ST 7 319 Gl 1,537.43
Balances with banks in Current accounts and other short term
deposits
T | < / Cash on hand 1.39 0.65
TR T faAien 1 Herd RUid o STIER Fd @ FeTTeh 78 i 3R T
TGS TWE I3
RECARSICIEaTS
FRN: 103264W
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W
T A T T et o=z fae
EREIRIEE) EENENERD) 3Ty TE w9y feee
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
ERGRIRIC]
BILICATY
HEEIAT ShHTeh : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale
Partner
Membership Number: 33767
g ikH
Mumbai Mumbai
ferer 3 ST, 2020 ferer 3 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020
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31 WL 2020 hT AT a8 o Torg Sfaradt ¥ uftad= ot faawor R TG H)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020 (Rinlakh)
3foadt UReh! o foTT 3TN / Attributable to equity holders
TR e fere
Reserves and Surplus
fa@uT / Particulars TGS/
Share éapital i) S| A/ Total
/ General / Retained
reserve earnings
1 37T 2019 T I
Balance at April 1, 2019 8,636.50 8,200.18 63,155.42 79,992.10
Y & feTT AT / Profit for the year - 29,175.10 29,175.10
a&‘%mmm_ M, AL H T/ - (810.13) (810.13)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
f‘i&é‘?ﬁ'{wm 3T|T|'/ Total comprehensive N - 28,36497 28,36497
income for the year
STl SATHIT T YT (STetet ) / - - (12,658.31)|  (12,658.31)
Payment of Proposed dividend (Including DDT)
3171 2020 %1 I 8,636.50 8,200.18 78,862.08 95,698.76
Balance at March 31, 2020

T o IR 2018-19 T e o 2018-19 T FT0IET & SR T ATHET & FTH . 4,000.00 TG 3 TR F. 822.21F
SIS T ST T TE ST I AT T € SR SH ek STRfET o T AT foRar e © | faeha o 2019-20 & fAw E.
6500.00 ARG T STAFH AT S F. 1,336.10 TG T SIS oft Yo STRFET § foritay o o SR T febam T 2 |

During the year ¥ 4,000.00 lakhs was declared and paid as dividend based on the performance of the Financial year 2018-19 and
DDT of ¥ 822.21 thereon and the same has been ajdusted against free reserve. Interim dividend for the financial year 2019-20
of Rs.6500.00lakh and DDT of Rs.1336.10lakh is also paid during the financial year from the free reserves.

31 W 2019 h! TUTE oY o eI Sfaradt W ufiac aht faavur @ TG )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 (Rinlakh)
Zfeadt UReh! o foTT ITRETT / Attributable to equity holders
TRFYT TS e
Reserves and Surplus
faeut / Particulars IIeR U / g —
Share Capital L el e ekl
/ General / Retained
reserve earnings
| 3T 2018 T 9
Balance at April 1, 2018 8,636.50 8,200.18 56,113.04 72,949.72
¥ o feTT AT / Profit for the year - 11,750.45 11,750.45

o9 & fU 37T AU 3T, SFSHT T e /
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

an‘a:ﬁqgmm 3T / Total comprehensive
income for the year

- (307.80) (307.80)

- - 11,442.65 11,442.65

SRSt TR 7 7T (SISt ) / - ; 4,400.27 4,400.27
Payment of Proposed dividend (Including DDT)
31 AT 2019 T ¥ 8,636.50 8,200.18 63,155.42 79,992.10

Balance at March 31, 2019

70th Annual Report 2019-20
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T o SR fori ad 2017-18 o FTSI1ET o STHT O U9 TTH % 36,50.00 oG 3 IYW E. 750.27 & SISt bt 5o
Y S AT AT forar T R S IH ek SR o QI WA fepar T #

During the year ¥ 36,50.00 lakhs is declared and paid as dividend pertaining to year 2017-18 and DDT of ¥ 750.27 thereon is
ajdusted against free reserve.

TA 34T fadien ot T faid o 3TgaR T Td G Hed ot 3R &
TEet T8 913
RECARSICIEary
FRN: 103264W
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 103264W
T A T T S RS
HY giea IEEERER)) a7emreT U9y fevTe
Rupender Dhiman A. Roy Chowdhury D Singh
Company Secretary Director (F) Chairman & Managing Director
ERCRIRITC
HSHdT HATh : 33767
Jayant P Gokhale
Partner
Membership Number: 33767
Mumbai Mumbai
feie 03 ST, 2020 feier 03 ST, 2020
Dated 3rd July 2020 Dated 3rd July 2020

UDIN: 20033767AAAAAH8734
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AT -1: WEAUUT erEieR faar

1.1 (i)

(ii)

TGk ehT MM :

Foree FreRo 1 o T forier e e e
I BIEHT, UfTRTIEes AT T5ic o q8d qa fehar
ST ® fSHepT 31 R W 9Ra | AT o
g o STTE IT=F ST G TAT HIAT (VAT
T AEel) W, 2015 T U sifufam,
2013 o W 133 o Y UG WM el St
STfYfRIT,2013 o TTAUT! o ST T TAT 72T A
Ffergfr @ TR Tr@ieh weh (Ter) Fraet, e
31 wifaferer- fdel & Wafua mauet & 3w
3 T oI W A oA ST R |
TUHT T ST :

Tifea foxia foemol & St 3T STt Tedh
HufEr (@Hfed §7 T “OYE” F ®Y F Heq
fema Sira ©) o forehar faremor wiftret €1 €| WeTeeh
HUfTET T 3Tk AR i fafer ¥ gHfwa fopa
Sfrar &, for fafer 0T shaet T o shet ® 31K
39 fafyr 9o gafera B et € 19 % fob T
{7 T e BT S |

gHfera faxiar faazon =61 9o gRfefaat § oFeT
3 &= el ot e U GO wgieh Aiaal
T ST Lk qI1 fohar Sar ® 3 gy
3 e T A S 7, 79 W § e %
WeIre fori faemol & r=rem Her T e |

ghferd fada faaol &1 ot 31T 3T Teras
Ul o faxier fqawon o1 Uk 91 g -ag-rg
o YR I, IR, SAarstl, siaadt, o, &
Y oG % T e T SIS, T FHX-TE
AT 3T STaTEaeh ATy ¥ Gatee Tepel Yarg b
TRET T ST ST FHI0T & <t el deh STaTtash
gfer off T BT S B |

Y 7 BT ST 37 AU 3 & Teieh Faeh &l
ST o ATfetent 3T T-Frafa feat o forg e
JETAT ST § | el SAYSh 3T BT hUeAT o WIfeTeh
3R TR-frafaa fedt o fore fomieR 3w s €,
el € 3T HROT W-Frifa fedl & 918 o7 Wqer
i
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IREL (India) Limited

Note-1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

1.

1

(i)

(if)

Basis of Accounting:

The financial statements are prepared under
historical cost convention except for certain
financial assets and liabilities which are measured
at fair value in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India on an
accrual basis and comply with provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Ind AS notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 and other statutory
guidelines as applicable.

Basis of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group”).
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of their
acquisition, being the date on which the Company
obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
using uniform accounting policies consistently
for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented to the extent
possible, in the same manner as the Company’s
standalone financial statements except otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by combining the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries on a line-
by-line basis by adding together the book values
of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flow relating to intra-group
transactions and unrealized profits. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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(iif)

(iv)

SIHT T FEHTE:

fodts faewont & uegciene o fau o7 sTmavaes
o S S Hl SR qafgwet @1 eR foar sy
STt ot fomor =t fafer o fedifd srafy o
YT 31X 7t ot qtfer it @ | arecfarh afomay
3T ST o 9 o ST BT T 3Maf H AT
SR fSres oftoTay ot SR Bl B/t
fefrarT ST € |

T @l A S futa:

foefer faemol &t darY # wufw, <eifEr, o’
3R = Y A o T A 1 wefa e A
TrgIeR e 2t o SUFRTH fvier, STHT 37X SR
H o feIT Fee ot STTeavaehar €l € | Idfaeh
TR 37 AT ¥ TeRT BT Fohdt ® | TR
IV ST 3T HRhT o YR T SFIAA 3
fofa w FRET fasrg feran strm ®, forgd wfaer
Y SIS ST S ST AT ST § | @i
STIATT o T Aeraere 9T & Ug=m S & |

SR T A 8 e et Frote A
H ST, STk TTer & 1T T STAT 37X ¥R
ST erTer foig o & wftufaar ofi et
T ST o S ATl ThH o o Hare Heequt geime
i &, Frerferfa Heg ¥ e @

(@) RIS AT ST T 7= F1E 41

(@) ITeRTEeRarall ST UTaeT Sfed g1 i 7
FC GUTET - T 40 3T 45

(M) TIfTT ST Gl i /=T - AT 34
@) 3fo Ie A1 SR SEE - |1E 35

1.2 YU, ©ie Td SUShITT :

)

0}

T, @i T ITH0T () T Y& agen arg
N 7 ¥ Giaa qerg/afeye @ gfd wif, afg
T T, I TITRT AT UTeTEes AT I e
T R | o URE T AT AT H STHT ST AT
o TREUfa Sl 3Teh ST FANT o ferg =g
UM H A BT AT A 7 |

TGN 7] 1@ T IREafal W e e @+ ot q@
&1 ST H 7 A € S e U oyt % ad
TR FTATTSIIE o A ¥ W Tt a1y  gfg
A ¢ S o ufteufy & SwEnt S § faww,

N

1
El
3

(iii) Use of Estimates:

(iv)

The presentation of financial statements requires
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities on
the date of financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Differences between the actual
results and estimates are recognized in the period
in which the results are known /materialized.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting
policies that affect reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Continuous evolution
is done on the estimation and judgments based on
historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Information about critical judgments in applying
accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the
following notes:

a) Measurement of defined benefit obligations-
Note 41

b)  Measurement and likelihood of occurrence of
contingencies and provisions-Note 40 & 45

c) Recognition of deferred tax assets-Note 34

d) Fair value measurement & estimates- Note 35

1.2 Property, Plant and Equipment:

a)

(@

All items of property, plant and equipment (PPE)
are stated at their historical cost net of recoverable
taxes less accumulated depreciation / amortization
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of tangible
assets comprises of the acquisition cost and
any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure incurred on assets
put to use is capitalized only when it increases
the future benefits from such assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance e.g.
an extension in the asset’s useful life, an increase

70 & anfier fatE 2019-20
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THT AT H gl 3TeraT IHeh GRUTH St ToTa &
He@qul R o7eaT g8 iR Jemea anma o
AT |
FHodr A Afumfed oREdfd ST WA WK
(STrafrents) &t SR § SIS S STENT S STt
B 9T TR § 9T Gfeger / qfegfe w1 Al &
GURITSH o 918 Heaa™ & | greAiten, fresmr e
% 35T o fore Tt gt Fuftat ot =aw 2 1/- &6
T T TR |
iy i e afceE o e # fafere afteE
T Y FeEfud AT 3 F An grwfad © S
QAT &9 F FforehT efate & S €t € qen
fafete aftgafa = eTafed &1 5T 9 |
T & TR T X & T / freTer < TS enfeEr
oy | 1o 987 qo A7 Hieast FrHfa gRT 4T STehfad
YA agent g wea, it off & 7, afedt & T@r S
T 1 37T W & T/ Freete & T smfwEt % Faem %
T wfaemia qed & Hed # @y / 71 ot foem &
& AT forar Sar © | qenf, afe 3 ¥ R off
ST BT Ik FRTT/ T Shi Sl ARG § T a¥ St
arafy & fiqX foer T forar Stram 2 o forg o & 7%
T i HTeTES AT B ST § 39 96 ¥ A g
! OI: T @d H ST AT T8 2 foawor & woifia
fepan ST B |
ST o W | TR 3T arelt IREufadl ) ae fhar
T T TH T & q8T Hl T @l Fafy ¥ U ¥
qofRe fepam T R |
T & fau o uft & yfF =t @, IS o afafa
TS 39 T a1 ATt ot qe RifeT g9r & g Jmae
fegf, Tofehor TR, W Seat 31If o garaeT 7 ford
Y e, 9 i e, 1 Her fea s R |
TftgufEt & g o fuier s % fo uReufr &
foraifee T a1 7T ST YA S AT ST STIH T
TR
T it
3T TRl 1 Y& ageand i § § Hfed geagTe/
Tfeiee wd gfa =i, Al wE e, W uereT 3!
UfereTier AT X g9iian T € | 37 qREttE i e
H 3o 3T AT T TRETTE! ol 3ok ST ST
& fore =] e & e Y e e 1
WM TWHR (THRT) I e e T e,
TSTToRtoT Yoeh Tfed T 98T STTHehRI o 3Tfemg & foau
FE foRT T ST 1 T FhR o 3T IREuraal o &9
H AT ST €

Annual Report 2019-20

d)

1.3

IREL (India) Limited

in its capacity, or a substantial improvement in the
quality of the output or a reduction in previously
assessed operating costs.

Asset acquired by the company which are held
and used on behalf of Govt. of India (GOI) are
valued after adjustment by the amount of subsidy/
reimbursement received from GOIl. However, a
minimum value of ¥ 1/- is assigned to all such
assets for the purpose of control/tracking.

(i) The cost of self-constructed tangible assets
comprises of the costs directly relating to the
specific assets and those that are attributable to
the construction activity in general and can be
allocated to the specific asset.

In respect of assets discarded/scrapped, the net book
value or the estimated realizable value as assessed by
the Salvage Committee, whichever is lower is retained
in the books. At the time of disposal of the discarded/
scrapped assets, the loss/gain with reference to the
retained value is adjusted in the year of disposal.
However, if any of these assets is not disposed off within
a period of three years from the date on which the same
is discarded / scrapped, the value retained is fully written
off and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on
expiry of three years.

Expenditure incurred on assets not owned by the
Company is charged off to revenue in the accounting
period of incurrence of such expenditure.

Land held for mining includes cost of land, compensation

for trees & buildings thereon and payment towards
shifting charges, solatium, registration charges, stamp
duty, etc. less realization, if any.

The estimated cost of dismantling and rehabilitation of
the assets are capitalized for determining the value of
asset.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible fixed assets are stated at their historical cost
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization
and impairment loss, if any. The cost of intangible assets
comprises of the acquisition cost and any attributable
cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use.

Expenses including stamp duty, registration fees paid
to the local Government(s) incurred for the acquisition
of mining lease rights are recognized as one type of
intangible asset.
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1.4 W/q‘ﬁ's‘ﬁ'gﬂ . 1.4 Depreciation/ Amortization:
%) U, ©IC U9 3T W a5 T AT SHU-T a) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
stfufram 2013 =Y 3@;"1 k) ﬁﬁ'g ;@W is provided for on straight line basis on the basis
e & SETETE ;q_ STTOTT T ST I & of the useful life of the assets as specified under
2 & > ) > Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the
w _q)l_\TTqu %’ o F manner as specified in Schedule 11, except for the
: (R glich fere E sl following on the basis of technical evaluation:
%. | uiEuty | S et sitfae Sl. |Particulars |Useful life | Technical justification
W, | oAt faarur | Sfraenter No. |of Asset (in Years)
(a'q‘f'&') 1 Slurry Pumps 5 Life is technically assessed
1 | g 5 T # T T FTd TR 1 o considering the nature of operation
e U S s w9 M and working environment.
F—— 2 |Air 8 Life is technically assessed
) : conditioners considering the corrosive working
2 Q‘Q’T{ 8 N R F A K T £ environment.
HEIT SfierTehTet deheih! & ¥ ferifet feham 1| 3 |Fire 6 Life is technically assessed
3 |IrfeeTHE 6 T AETS U6 TR e AR extinguishers considering the corrosive working
TSI H T@d gL Saentel qehrioh! &9 § environment and replacement norms
Frertfeg fomar T 4 [Mobile 2 Life is technically assessed
4 |Ed ) e e R g wr—rﬁw%rgq Phones considering the frequent
g e STt e & Freti ferar T technological changes.
AT F TN Z 1/ WT@'# e The depreciation is continued to be charged till the

net block becomes Nil except retaining Re. 1/- as
nominal value.

Teh % Y[ € ok JodgTd AU fehal ST 8 |
@) ot F A gfed 39 FHe e o W w5
AT ¥ AT ST e & aeh W g3 AT ob ST

b)  Cost of construction of solid waste trench together
with the cost of the land thereof is depreciated in

L BIREIN SRS %| proportion of the quantity filled to the total capacity
o % 9 ¥ Al i Weest ot arld ¥ qeage of the trench.
WTETTFIT%I The cost of sealing of trench is depreciated in the

) & SR e o E e 8 g A A year of expendiiife.

"= ¥ Ifcafad ggufse s SieaT TR c) Inrespect of assets added during the year except

I= T T F A T d‘“qurdch MR T assets mentioned under (e) below, de.p'rematlon is
TPJIT%I charged pro-rata from the date of addition.

o e d) In respect of assets discarded/demolished/

RV SUALLS /W%Tﬁ"‘l"s‘ SR Ei“$ SERK] e Elhé { destroyed during the year, depreciation is charged
TH 3TCTTTE/HHITH/ALH i AR Tk SHlgHlIden pro-rata up to the date of such discard/demolition/
SR I IR WTTI'QT%I destruction.

T.) SIEIZ 5000/- 1 ITY HH AN & & Td FINT e) Assets costing T 5,000/- or less individually are
FT ITCTT- 37T Hel ] ol ar&(aeh arTd T T depreciated at 100% retaining Re. 1/- as nominal
Wﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁmwaﬂ 10% 3 37fres BT value in the year of addition excep_t |n_ gases vyhere

. the aggregate actual cost of individual items
T AT TH HTHAT ol BISHT STT- 37T T 5000/~ AT ) -
; ) of plant and machinery costing ¥ 5000/- or less
a‘q‘sF @ﬁw‘i@ﬁ; igq; Al X 3Tk TMHA Hid constitutes more than 10% of the total actual cost
[ 3R 7ed o €9 ¥ T 1/- 1 1@ T 100% of plant and machinery.
ﬁﬁﬁwfw ST & | f)  In respect of fixed assets whose historic cost has
=) 9 s« onfeEl &1 Udefees god wmd undergone a change due to price adjustments,
TS, TTeeh # qftaa W?WWW%, changerti.n c(ijutigs etc.,. dkjpreciationton. the rev.izeg
w % T a zpjsn;thlif/ZIy ojsrri:\f r:sidaun;lotr;efllls Iifzr(:)\:‘l tﬁe
A RT T TG S o TR ST Sfa
D asset.
H gure &9 ¥ fea S R |
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T ¢ A1 ST T o1 e TR ek ST ST 2 |
T T I Gl T AET ST S IY oW wE wif
& fewor # siferd foham ST 7 | JoH-17 fadir W afe
T ST o 77 ohiel # ikt TS afer o Suferd el €
T feT T T BT ST ST7ehT ST & ST 37 gy
&1 39 TGl HT G =T gy °) A awE
YT W 3ifere fopa e & 5 fafea feman mam g
(TCARTH 3T2FaT TP T Y1) foh 39 7d ora@ieh arafy
H gftgufe o forg efq g1 et o ST |

Fiera aREuft & § ®E off 3ART THE Bl 3T
gfeguftat & gemed W et ) fomr ft off Tonet e
T I FIA H TEH TEI 7, TUCAT I THTE BT T
TE Y Tohe I A dTAT TohT8 o & H AT ST 2 |
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g) At the end of each financial year, future mineable
heavy minerals in respect of land held for mining
are assessed based on technical estimates
considering available mining lease and/or surface
lease as the case may be.

Diminution in the value of such land is recognized
in proportion of actual quantity of heavy minerals
mined during the year to the assessed future
mineable heavy minerals plus actual quantity of
heavy minerals mined during the year.

h)  Amortization of intangible assets is provided for on
straight line basis as per the followings:

Sl. No. | Particulars Amortization
1 Mining lease/ Amortization of expenses pertaing
Compensatory |to mining lease and afforestation
Afforestation charges is recognized in proportion
Charges of actual quantity of heavy minerals
mined during the year to the
assessed future mineable heavy
minerals plus actual quantity of heavy
minerals mined during the year taking
cognizance of the lease period.
2 Computer Software | Over a period of 4(Four) years
The amortization is continued to be charged till the
net block becomes Nil.
1.5 Impairment of Assets:

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any
indication of impairment based on external/internal
factors. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at
the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impairment no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the minimum of the recoverable amount or
the carrying amount of the asset that would have been
determined ( net of depreciation or amortization) had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
accounting periods.

None of the individual asset is capable of generating
any cash flow without depending on the operation of
other assets of a production unit, hence a production
unit as a whole is considered as a cash generating unit.
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1.6 TraeT ot o fa=h ufcgufaa
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Investments and Other Financial Assets:

Initial measurement of financial asset & financial
liabilities is recorded at fair value. Financial assets like
loans & advances and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

Investments in Subsidiaries:

a) In case of subsidiary, the Company records the
investments in subsidiary at cost less impairment,
if any.

b)  After initial recognition, the company shall
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the net
investment in the subsidiary.

Valuation of Inventories:

a) Raw material and material in-transit are valued at
cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.

b)  Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at
cost.

c) Inventory of work-in-progress, intermediate
products for further processing and finished
products are valued at cost or net realizable values
whichever is lower.

d)  Off-grade material / contaminated stock is valued
at 80 % of lower of cost or market value of normal
merchandise considering the reprocessing cost.

e) Stores and spares not moved for more than 3
years are written down by 95 % of the cost.

f) The company follows weighted average cost
formula.

Insurance claims:

Insurance claims receivable are accounted for only
when admitted by the Insurance Company.

Pre-Project Expenditure:

Expenditure on feasibility studies, flow sheet
development, preparation  of  project report,
environmental clearance and other related matters on
new/expansion projects, to the extent not adjusted,
are grouped under “Pre-Project Expenditure” pending
capitalization/adjustment/write off.

Transactions in Foreign Currency:

a) Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction.
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Non monetary items which are carried at historic
cost denominated in terms of foreign currency are
reported in subsequent balance sheets using the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities as on the balance
sheet date, denominated in foreign currency are
restated at the rate of exchange as on that date.

Exchange differences either on settlement or on
restatement:

i in the case of foreign currency borrowings
relating to a ‘Qualifying Asset’, to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the
interest costs, are treated as borrowing cost.

ii. in other cases, are recognised as income or
as expense in the period in which settlement
or restatement is made.

1.12 Revenue Recognition :

The Company derives major portion of its revenue
from sale of heavy minerals and rare earth compounds
extracted as a part of its business operations and
production & processing of Nuclear Grade Ammonium
Di-uranate (NGADU).

Revenue from sales is recognized when
the performance obligations are satisfied in
accordance with Ind AS 115.

Performance obligations are deemed to have been
satisfied when substantial risk and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the customer and the
customer obtains control of the promised goods. In
case of domestic sales, performance obligations
are satisfied when goods are dispatched, or
delivery is handed over to the transporter in
accordance with the contracts with the customers.
In case of export sales, performance obligations
are satisfied based on terms defined in the
contracts, usually when the goods are shipped
onboard based on Bill of Lading / Airway Bill or
any other similar document evidencing delivery
thereof. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net
of returns, trade allowances, rebates, GST or any
other applicable taxes/duties. Adjustments on
account of out-turn weight are made in revenue on
the basis of available information from customers.

Revenue from processing of NGADU is recognized
on achievement of the acceptable degree of
concentration of prescribed materials and supplies
to Government of India (Gol), at the rates specified
by Department of Atomic Energy, Gol.
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1.13 Bonus/demurrage in respect of load port/discharge port,
relating to export sales is accounted on the basis of
available information from customers.

Incidental income/expenses relating to statutory
plantation activity as per mine closure obligation towards
restoration of mined out land in its original topography
is considered as other income/expenses for the year,
hence the plantations are not considered as biological
assets.

1.14 Employee Benefits:
A. Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within
twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
classified as short-term employee benefits and are
charged off in the year in which the related service
is rendered.

B. Post employment and other long term
employee benefits:

a) Defined Contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are Employees’
Pension Schemes covering all employees
and Superannuation Scheme and new
pension scheme for specified group of
employees of the Company. The Company’s
contribution to defined contribution plans are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss and charged off in the year in which the
employee has rendered service.

The contribution towards Employees’
Pension Scheme is remitted to the Provident
Fund authority concerned under the
Provident Fund and Other Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952 and contribution towards
New Pension Scheme is made to designated
point of presence. The Company has no
further liability beyond the contribution.

The Superannuation Scheme of the
Company is administered through Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).The
contribution calculated at the specified rates
on the monthly salary is remitted to LIC on the
specified dates. The Company has no further
liability beyond the contribution determined
as above.
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b) Defined Benefit Plans:
i) Gratuity
The company operates a gratuity
scheme for employees and contributes
to Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) towards meeting the gratuity
obligation.

ii) Provident Fund

The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards provident fund to
a trust administered by the Company.
The interest payable by the trust to the
members every year is being notified
by the Government. The Company
has an obligation to make good the
shortfall, if any, between the return
on investments of the trust and the
notified interest.

iii) Post Retirement Medical Scheme.

The Company operates a Post
Retirement Medical Scheme covering
the past employees and the benefits
are defined.

Other Long-term Employee Benefits:

Entitlements to earned leave and sick leave/half pay
leave are recognized when they accrue to employees.
While annual leave can be either availed or encashed
subject to restriction on the maximum number of
accumulation of leaves, sick leave/ half pay leave can
only be availed and can not be encashed during service.
However, the entire accumulated earned leave, sick /
half pay leave subject to eligibility, can be encashed
while leaving service.

The Company determines the liability for the Post
employment and other long term benefits every year on
actuarial valuation wherever mandated.

Actuarial gain/loss in respect of benefit plans are taken
to Other Comprehensive Income.

VRS Compensation:

Compensation paid to VRS optees is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss in the same year in which
VRS optees are relieved.

Royalty:

Royalty on the minerals is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss on the basis of production. However,
payment is made on the basis of dispatches from the
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